
 
Visit the Township's Web Site www.twp.ferguson.pa.us  and sign up for Notify Me! to receive email notices about Township Information. 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, April 19, 2021, 7:00 PM 
 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88575479202 

Meeting ID:  885 7547 9202 
Zoom Access Instructions 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. CITIZENS INPUT  

 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. April 5, 2021, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes 
2. March 29, 2021, Board of Supervisors Special Meeting – Whitehall Road Regional Park 
3. March 31, 2021, Board of Supervisors Worksession – Solar Power Purchase Agreement 
 

V. SPECIAL REPORTS 
a. COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Response Report 
b. Mental Health Taskforce Report 

 
VI. PROCLAMATIONS 

a. 2021 Asian Heritage Month Proclamation 
 

VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
1. Public Hearing – Recreation Fire Open Burn Ordinance 
2. Public Hearing – Resolution Condemning Violence Against Asian American Community 
3. Public Hearing – Resolution Establishing Green Infrastructure Policy 
4. Public Hearing – Resolution Authorizing Tourism Grant Application for Agritourism Event 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Consent Agenda 
2. Board Member Request – Terraced Streetscape District Ordinance Amendment 
3. Contract 2021-C9, Microsurfacing 
4. Contract 2021-C7a, Fuel  
5. Contract 2021-C7c, Asphalt and Aggregate 

 
IX. REPORTS 

1. COG Committee Reports  
2. Other Regional Reports 
3. Staff Reports 

 
X. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 
XI. CALENDAR ITEMS – APRIL/MAY 

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 

https://www.twp.ferguson.pa.us/administration/pages/zoom-instructions


 

Board of Supervisors 

Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, April 19, 2021 

7:00 P.M. 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. CITIZEN’S INPUT 

 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

1. April 5, 2021, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes 
2. March 29, 2021, Board of Supervisors Special Meeting – Whitehall Road Regional Park 
3. March 31, 2021, Board of Supervisors Worksession – Solar Power Purchase Agreement 
 

V. SPECIAL REPORTS          40 minutes 
 
1. COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Response Report – David Pribulka, Township Manager 
2. Mental Health Taskforce Report – Chief Albright & Traci Small, Centre County CIT Coordinator 

 
VI. PROCLAMATIONS 

 
1. ASIAN AMERICAN AND PACIFIC ISLANDER HERITAGE MONTH PROCLAMATION  

Prasenjit Mitra, Township Supervisor       5 minutes 
 

Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of a proclamation designating May 2021 to be Asian 
American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month in Ferguson Township. Mr. Mitra will 
introduce the proclamation.  
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the proclamation designating 
May 2021 as Asian Heritage Month in Ferguson Township. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the proclamation. 

 
VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

1. A PUBLIC HEARING ON AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA CHAPTER 
10, HEALTH AND SAFETY, ADDING PART VII SECTION 10-701 APPLICATION; 10-
702 DEFINITIONS; 10-703 RECREATIONAL FIRES; 10-704 BURNING LEAVES AND 



 
Monday, April 19, 2021 
Page 2  
 

LEAF WASTE; 10-705 BURNING REFUSE AND TRADE WASTE PROHIBITED; 10-706 
OPEN BURN PERMITS; 10-707 SAFETY ZONES FOR OPEN BURNS, SMOKERS AND 
RECREATIONAL FIRES; 10-708 SPECIAL PROHIBITIONS.   10 minutes 
Chris Albright, Chief of Police    

 
Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of an ordinance that was advertised for public hearing 
establishing additional fire code and safety regulations within Ferguson Township.  The 
Board of Supervisors reviewed this draft ordinance during their March 15, 2021, regular 
meeting and authorized staff to advertise the ordinance for public hearing.  The new 
regulations prohibit burning certain materials; and creates safety setbacks and prohibits 
burning during dry weather conditions. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance amending 
Chapter 10, Health and Safety by establishing additional fire code and safety regulations 
within Ferguson Township. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance. 

 
2. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, 

CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA, CONDEMNING ACTS OF HATRED, BIAS, AND 
EXCLUSIONARY BEHAVIOR TOWARDS PEOPLE OF COLOR, ESPECIALLY ASIANS, 
ASIAN-AMERICANS, AND PACIFIC ISLANDERS, HEREAFTER REFERRED TO AS 
“AAPI”, AND JOINS OTHER COMMUNITIES AROUND THE WORLD IN PURSUIT OF 
RACIAL AND SOCIAL EQUITY.       10 minutes 
Prasenjit Mitra, Township Supervisor 

 
Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of the resolution advertised for public hearing 
condemning acts of hatred, bias, and exclusionary behavior against the AAPI Community. 
This resolution was adopted in similar form by the Centre Region Council of Governments 
at the March 22nd General Forum meeting. Mr. Mitra will introduce the resolution. Judge 
Don Hahn and Dr. Nalini Krishnankutty are in attendance as representatives of the 
Governor’s Commission on Asian Pacific American Affairs. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution condemning 
acts of hatred, bias, and exclusionary behavior against the AAPI Community. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution. 

 
3. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, 

CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA ESTABLISHING A GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 
POLICY AS DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A”.     20 minutes 
Centrice Martin, Assistant Township Manager 

 
  



 
Monday, April 19, 2021 
Page 3  
 

Narrative 
The Township receives requests by residents, staff and the Board to convert passive areas within parks 
to green infrastructure areas. Examples include Cecil Irvin Park, Fairbrook Park, Tudek Park and 
Haymarket Park.  Responses to these requests have varied based on the nature of the situation and 
because there is no policy that exists to inform on how to process these requests or manage a 
maintenance plan for approved green infrastructure areas within Township Parks.  The drafted Green 
Infrastructure Policy presented to the Board in September 2020 has been reviewed and updated based 
on input from the Parks and Recreation Committee and Centre Region Parks and Recreation, as well as 
comments received by members of the Board. 

Provided with the agenda is a copy of the resolution advertised for a public hearing to adopt 
a policy to establish a program plan and process for integrating green infrastructure into 
appropriate park areas with a written maintenance plan for each approved green 
infrastructure area in Township parks. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution establishing a 
Green Infrastructure Policy as described in Exhibit “A” of the resolution. 
 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution. 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

1. CONSENT AGENDA         5 minutes 
a. Contract 2020-C3, Pay App #4:  $19,693.48 
b. Special Events Permit – Overlook Heights Block Parties 
c. Special Events Permit – Glimcher Keystone Country Ride 

 

2. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
TOWNSHIP, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA AUTHORIZING THE TOWNSHIP 
MANAGER TO SUBMIT A TOURISM GRANT APPLICATION TO THE HAPPY VALLEY 
ADVENTURE BUREAU WITH MILLHEIM BOROUGH FOR AN AGRITOURISM EVENT.  
David Pribulka, Township Manager        5 minutes 
  

Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of the resolution advertised for public hearing 
authorizing the submission and matching funds for a grant application to the Happy Valley 
Adventure Bureau for a special event focused on agritourism in concert with Millheim 
Borough.  If successful, the event would connect Millheim Borough and Ferguson Township 
establishments including 814 Cider Works and Pine Grove Hall for music and locally 
sourced menu through a self-guided tour participants can take throughout the week of the 
event.  The resolution also authorizes a local match up to $4,500 that would come from the 
Township’s Economic Development account. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution authorizing the 
Township Manager to submit a Tourism Grant application to the Happy Valley Adventure 
Bureau for an agritourism event with Millheim Borough. 
 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution.  



 
Monday, April 19, 2021 
Page 4  
 

3. BOARD MEMBER REQUEST – TERRACED STREETSCAPE DISTRICT ORDINANCE 
AMENDMENT          20 minutes  
Lisa Strickland, Township Supervisor  

 
Narrative 
Ms. Strickland has requested a discussion by the Board to review the Terraced Streetscape 
District (TSD) to provide direction to the Planning Commission as they begin their review 
of the TSD.  The discussion and work item will lay the foundation for the expected 
engagement of a consultant in 2022 to revise the ordinance.  Provided with the agenda is 
the request from Ms. Strickland and the text of the Terraced Streetscape District ordinance 
to help guide the discussion.  The Board is asked to refer their comments and goals to the 
Planning Commission for their review and comment. Following the Planning Commission’s 
discussion, the item will be presented back to the Board of Supervisors for an additional 
review prior to commencing the rewrite.  
 
Recommended motion: That the Board of Supervisors refer its comments on the Terraced 
Streetscape District to the Planning Commission for review and comment.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors refer the item to the Planning Commission. 

 
4. AWARD OF CONTRACT 2021-C9, MICROSURFACING   5 minutes 

David Modricker, Director of Public Works 
 
Narrative 
On Tuesday, March 9, 2021, bids were opened and read aloud for Contract 2021-C9 
Microsurfacing for select streets in Ferguson and Harris Townships.  This is a co-operative 
contract that is administered by Ferguson Township.  The bid was advertised in the Centre 
Daily Times and sent out to potential bidders.  This contract involves the application of a 
slurry seal to the roads for pavement preservation.  Provided with the agenda is a 
memorandum from the Assistant Township Engineer containing a summary of the bids 
received. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2021-C9, Microsurfacing to 
Asphalt Paving Systems, Inc., in an amount of $435,839.52. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2021-C9 to Asphalt Paving Systems, Inc. 

 
5. AWARD OF CONTRACT 2021-C7a, FUEL     5 minutes 

David Modricker, Director of Public Works 
 
Narrative 
On Tuesday, April 13, 2021, bids were opened for Contract 2021-C7a Fuel and read aloud.  Gasoline 
and Diesel fuel are bid annually.  The bid was advertised in the Centre Daily Times and sent out to 
potential bidders.  Provided with the agenda is a memorandum from the Public Works Director containing 
a summary of the bids received. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2021-C7a, Fuel to Nittany Oil 
Company in an amount of $59,239.50. 



 
Monday, April 19, 2021 
Page 5  
 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2021-C7a to Nittany Oil Company. 

 
6. AWARD OF CONTRACT 2021-C7c, ASPHALT & AGGREGATE  5 minutes 

David Modricker, Director of Public Works 
 
Narrative 
On Tuesday, April 13, 2021, bids were opened for Contract 2021-C7c Asphalt and Aggregate and read 
aloud.  Road materials are bid annually.  The bid was advertised in the Centre Daily Times and sent out 
to potential bidders.  Provided with the agenda is a memorandum from the Public Works Director 
containing a summary of the bids received. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2021-C7c, Asphalt & Aggregate 
as described in Public Works Director memo dated April 13 for items 1 through 4 (aggregate) to Glenn 
O. Hawbaker, Inc., in the amount of $17,800.00 and items 5 through 8 (asphalt) to HRI in the amount of 
$64,800.00. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2021-C7c 

 
IX. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS  20 minutes 

a. Human Resources Committee 
b. Finance Committee 
c. Climate Action & Sustainability Committee 
d. Public Safety Committee 

 
2. OTHER COMMITTEE REPORTS  5 minutes 
 
3. STAFF REPORTS         20 minutes 

a. Manager’s Report 
b. Public Works Director 
c. Planning and Zoning Director 
d. Chief of Police Report 

 
X. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 
XI. CALENDAR ITEMS – APRIL/MAY 

a. Ferguson Township upcoming committee meetings: 
1. Pine Grove Mills SAP Advisory Committee, Thursdays, April 22 and May 27, 4PM 
2. Planning Commission, Monday, April 26, 6PM 
3. Board of Supervisors, Mondays, May 3 and May 17, 7PM 
4. Planning Commission, Mondays, May 10 and May 24, 6PM 
5. Tree Commission, Monday, May 17, 4PM 
6. Parks & Recreation Committee, Thursday, May 20, 4PM 

b. Watershed Cleanup Day, Saturday, April 24, 8AM – 12PM 
c. Ferguson Township Virtual Bike Chat, Thursday, May 20, 12:30PM 

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 





CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3


State College, PA 16801
Phone: (814) 231-3077 Fax: (814) 231-3083 Website: www.crcog.net


CLIMATE ACTION & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE


MEETING INFORMATION


REGISTER LOCATE


STEP 1:


STEP 2:


To attend this meeting via phone:
+1 301 715 8592| Meeting ID: 820 6192 0357| Passcode: 719417


VOTING PROCEDURES:


PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES:







CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
Centre Regional Planning Agency 


2643 Gateway Drive, Suite #4 
State College, PA 16801


Phone: (814) 231-3050 Fax:  (814) 231-3083


CLIMATE ACTION & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 
Zoom Platform 


Monday, April 12, 2021 
12:15 p.m. 


 


 


AGENDA 
 


1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL – Ms. Whitman will convene the meeting. 
 


2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 


Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda 
(five minutes per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the 
agenda should be deferred until that point in the meeting. 
 


3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 


A copy of the minutes of the March 8, 2021 Climate Action and Sustainability 
Committee meetings are enclosed.  
 


4. COMMITTEE REPRESENTATION 


At the March 8, 2021 meeting, the Climate Action and Sustainability (CAS) Committee 
reviewed the PSU and SCASD representation, but the SCASD liaison was incorrectly 
identified by COG. The SCASD school board appointed Gretchen Brant to the CAS 
Committee on March 22, 2021. 


 


 


 


During the COVID-19 health emergency, to continue business operations of the COG and 
ensure the safety of municipal officials and staff, and to adhere to health emergency 
recommendations while remaining in compliance with Pennsylvania’s guidelines for public 
meetings, this Climate Action and Sustainability Committee meeting will be held via video 
conference. Written public comment or requests to speak to the Climate Action and 
Sustainability Committee for items not on the agenda, and requests to comment to specific 
agenda items listed below, may be submitted in advance by emailing mlaird@crcog.net. 







Climate Action & Sustainability Committee Agenda 
April 12, 2021 
Page 2 
  


The 2021 membership of the committee is as follows: 
 


Carla Stilson College Township 
Prasenjit Mitra Ferguson Township 
Danelle DelCorso Halfmoon Township 
Bud Graham Harris Township 
Betsy Whitman Patton Township 
Jesse Barlow State College Borough 
Rob Cooper Penn State University 
Gretchen Brandt State College Area School District 


 


5. COMMUNITY FORUM ON CLIMATE PLANNING – presented by Pam Adams and Lara 
Fowler 


This agenda item provides the Climate Action & Sustainably Committee with an update 
on the upcoming April 13, 2021 community forum on understanding and preparing for 
climate impacts in the Centre Region to increase resiliency.  


The forum’s purpose is to bring people together to identify shared values, think about 
what the future might look like for the Central Region, and explore common ground 
solutions. The forum will help set the stage for additional work in 2021 and beyond on 
the regional Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP) for State College Borough and 
the Townships of College, Ferguson, Halfmoon, Harris, and Patton. 


 
Professor Lara Fowler’s students in EXPR 972: Mediation of Environmental and Public 
Conflicts course will facilitate the forum. Professor Fowler will be at the meeting to 
provide an update on the forum, including registration and agenda.  
 
Below are updates on items that were discussed at the March 8, 2021 meeting. 
 


a. Zoom was deemed to be the best platform for this forum. Two other alternatives 
were investigated but they did not provide all the features and functions reliably 
needed. We plan to layer the protections to prevent against Zoom bombing. 


b. The event will be recorded by C-Net which allows for live streaming on 
YouTube, future airing on C-Net, and the ability to share the recording. 


c. Enclosed is the climate impact forum handout and flyer that has been 
distributed through social media, emails, e-newsletters, and more. 


 
d. Students in the environmental mediation course have been conducting 


interviews with identified stakeholders from local government (staff and 
elected), Penn State, utilities, local businesses, and related non-governmental 
organizations (NGOs).  


 







Climate Action & Sustainability Committee Agenda 
April 12, 2021 
Page 3 
  


e. Registration is required to attend the forum on Tuesday, April 13, 2021 from 
6:30- 8:30 p.m.: https://centresustains.com/forum-details  
To date, 87 participants are registered. 


 
The committee should consider any questions they have regarding the community 
forum planned for April 13, 2021.  


 
6. UPDATE BY THE SOLAR POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT WORKING GROUP -


presented by Peter Buck, Chair, and Gretchen Brandt, Vice-Chair 
 


This agenda item provides the Climate Action & Sustainably Committee with an update on 
the Solar Power Purchase Agreement Working Group’s (SPPA WG) activities, which includes 
the planned release for a Request for Proposals (RFP) for an Energy Services Consultant in 
May. Mr. Buck and Ms. Brandt will review how this project aligns with the regional Climate 
Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP).   
 
The following 15 entities are part of the SPPA WG that are exploring the viability of 
aggregating their electricity to invest in a joint solar power purchase agreement.   
 


Centre Area Transportation Authority Centre County Government   
Centre County Housing Authority College Township  
Centre Region Council of Governments  Ferguson Township    
College Township Water Authority  Halfmoon Township 
State College Borough Water Authority  Harris Township 
State College Area School District Patton Township  
Centre Hall Potter Sewer Authority State College Borough 
Centre County Refuse and Recycling Authority 
 


There are many benefits of aggregation including, (1) aggregated purchases have a bigger 
impact, (2) aggregated deals have better economics and prices, (3) aggregation lowers risk, and 
(4) aggregation creates positive network effects and compelling communications. Partnering 
with others on an aggregated procurement will enable the Centre Region to cost-effectively 
pursue renewable energy sources and help meet our climate action goals.  
 
During September 2020 – February 2021, the SPPA Working Group participated in a World 
Resources Institute (WRI) and Rocky Mountain Institute (RMI) Large-Scale Renewables 
Aggregation Cohort with five other groups from Maryland, Michigan, New Hampshire, 
Virginia, and the Delaware Valley Region of PA. The WRI-RMI team hosted workshops that 
provided the cohort with education, best practices, and model documents on aggregated large-
scale renewable procurement. Additional information can be found at 
https://www.crcog.net/aggregation_cohort. 


 
 
 
 







Climate Action & Sustainability Committee Agenda 
April 12, 2021 
Page 4 
  


 
7. TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP FOR CAAP IMPLEMENTATION - presented by 


Pam Adams 
 


This agenda item asks the Climate Action & Sustainably Committee to begin considering the need 
for a technical advisory group to assist the Sustainability Planner and CAS Committee with 
the implementation of the CAAP.  
 
The current Climate Action and Adaptation Technical Advisory Group (TAG) is scheduled to 
complete its mandate of creating a Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP) in the 
summer of 2021. Enclosed is the outline for the current TAG that shows the group’s framework 
and an updated timeline. The TAG has met monthly since September 2019 and has been an 
invaluable resource to CRPA staff while developing the CAAP. At its March 15, 2021 meeting, 
the TAG recommended that the CAS Committee form a new technical advisory group to assist 
in the implementation of the CAAP. 


The purpose of the new technical advisory group would be to convene individuals who can 
assist the Sustainability Planner and CAS Committee by providing additional expertise and 
analysis of technical issues that may be required to inform the implementation of the Centre 
Region Climate Action and Adaption Plan. The TAG suggested the CAS Committee consider 
experts in the following areas: 
 


Energy Policy mechanisms to incentivize 
Financial Communications 
State political liaison  


 
The CRPA recommends forming a CAAP Implementation Technical Advisory Group (I-TAG) 
of 7 – 9 members that can start meeting regularly later this summer to advise and assist the 
CAS Committee on the implementation of the CAAP. The I-TAG will be needed for multiple 
years so it will be in our interest to set a defined term and process for its membership. A 
potential timeline could be: 
 


May: CRPA brings back an outline of new I-TAG  
June: CAS Committee forwards recommendation to General Forum for 


I-TAG approval 
July:  Appointment recruiting begins 
Aug: CAS Committee endorses I-TAG recommended members 
Sept: I-TAG holds its first meeting  


 
The committee should provide input on the membership expertise, terms and process, and 
consider what questions they have in regard to the formation of a new technical advisory 
group for the implementation of the CAAP. 
 
 


 







Climate Action & Sustainability Committee Agenda 
April 12, 2021 
Page 5 
  
8. DRAFT MISSION STATEMENT FOR THE COG CLIMATE ACTION AND 


SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE – presented by Jim May 
 
At the March 8, 2021 meeting, committee members reviewed six different sustainability 
committee mission statements from areas around the country and decided to provide 
individual draft mission statements to consider at this meeting. To date, one draft mission 
statement has been submitted for consideration. This mission statement is:  
 


“To develop in the Centre Region a proactive culture of environmental 
sustainability as it intersects with infrastructure resiliency, and social, ecological, 
and fiscal responsibilities. It is our duty to engage all residents, governments, and 
businesses toward this effort through the use of research, education, 
communication, and comprehensive and strategic planning”.  


 
The previously provided example mission statements and COG resolution 2020-8 that 
includes the draft committee responsibilities are enclosed. 


 
9. OTHER BUSINESS 


 
A. Matter of Record – At the May 6, 2021 joint PSE-TLU Committee meeting, CRPA plans 


to provide an overview on various options for solar installations including, utility scale, 
net metering scale, community scale, solar cooperatives, and individual residential scale 
installations. The intent is to then offer an on-site UAJA Solar Tour for interested 
elected officials later in May. 


 
B. Matter of Record – The second Centre Region Sustainability Survey postcard mailer was 


sent to 3,000 random residential addresses on March 29, 2021. The online survey 
launched March 3, 2021 at centresustains.com/survey. The survey will help local 
government gauge community knowledge of, and interest in sustainable practices for 
developing a regional Climate Action and Adaptation Plan.  


 
C. Matter of Record – Enclosed is an article regarding the survey and forum that was in the 


April edition of the State College Magazine. 
 


D. Matter of Record – Enclosed are two Op-Ed articles by the TAG chair and vice chair that 
appeared in the Centre Daily Times. Three more Op-Eds by the remaining members are 
planned to appear in future Wednesday editions.  


 
E. Matter of Record – Enclosed is the March 15, 2021 meeting summary of the Climate 


Action and Adaptation Technical Advisory Group (TAG). The TAG’s next meeting is 
April 19 at 8:30 a.m. virtually through Zoom.  


 
 
 


 







Climate Action & Sustainability Committee Agenda 
April 12, 2021 
Page 6 
  


F. Matter of Record – Images to the right and below reflect the 
social media activity for the last month. CRPA kicked off its 
Instagram page early March and currently has 94 followers. 
PSU Communication class COMM 473 created a social 
media toolkit for CRPA to promote the forum and survey for 
the month of April.  Follow us on @centreregionalplanning. 


 


10. ADJOURNMENT 







CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS (COG)
CLIMATE ACTION & SUSTAINABILITY (CAS) COMMITTEE


Minutes
March 8, 2021


(please refer to the COG audio/video meeting files website when referencing the timestamps)


Members Present: 


Others Present:


PUBLIC COMMENTS (00:09:00)


MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 8, 2021 MEETING (00:09:05)


Motion was made by Mr. Barlow and seconded by Ms. DelCorso to approve the February 8, 2021 
meeting minutes as presented. The motion carried 5-0 (Mr. Mitra was not in attendance).


COMMITTEE REPRESENTATION (00:09:34)


COMMUNITY FORUM ON CLIMATE PLANNING (00:10:40)







DRAFT MISSION STATEMENT FOR THE COG CLIMATE ACTION AND 
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE (00:53:28)


OTHER BUSINESS (01:02:54)


ADJOURNMENT (01:07:38)







Overview: 


You are invited to participate in a public forum focused on understanding and managing 
climate-related impacts facing the Centre Region.  The purpose of this forum is to bring people 
together to identify shared values, think about what the future might look like for the Central 
Region, and explore potential solutions.  The forum will help set the stage for additional work 
in 2021 and beyond on a regional Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP) for State College 
Borough and the Townships of College, Ferguson, Halfmoon, Harris and Patton. 


This forum will be facilitated by Professor Lara Fowler and students enrolled in her environmental 
mediation course at Penn State Law. They will be conducting a series of interviews in addition 
to the forum; if you would like to talk with them, please contact Lara Fowler at lbf10@psu.edu. 


JOIN
US!


Open Public Forum: 
Addressing Climate Impacts in the Centre Region


• Tuesday,  April 13, 2021, 6:30-8:30 PM (virtual meeting, recorded by C-Net)


• Registration required: https://centresustains.com/forum-details 


• Hosted on behalf of the Centre Region Council of Governments.


We want your input – Take the Centre Region Sustainability Survey:  


In addition, there is a community survey open through April 30, 2021 to provide input to 
help local government gauge community knowledge and interest in sustainable practices for 
developing a regional Climate Action and Adaptation Plan. In return for completing the survey, 
respondents can be entered to win a $100 gift card, a free energy audit or a $1,000 solar 
electric voucher. To take the survey, visit: https://centresustains.com/survey . 


All welcome; forum free and open to the public


Pennsylvania


Township ofTownship of







Hosted on behalf of Centre Region
Council of Governments


Registration required:  https://centresustains.com/forum-details


(VIRTUAL MEETING, RECORDED BY C-NET)


W E  W A N T  Y O U R  I N P U T  –  T A K E  T H E  C E N T R E
R E G I O N  S U S T A I N A B I L I T Y  S U R V E Y :


In return for completing the survey, respondents can be entered to win
a $100 gift card, a free energy audit or a $1,000 solar electric voucher. 


To take the survey, visit: https://centresustains.com/survey







CENTRE REGION CLIMATE ACTION & ADAPTATION PLAN 1/20/21 
 


Climate Action and Adaptation Technical Advisory Group (TAG) 
 


Mandate: Provide technical assistance to the Sustainability Planner and the corresponding COG 
Committees during preparation of the Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP). Using best available 
science and knowledge, make recommendations on best practices for CRPA staff to compile the CAAP.  


Oversight: The PSE Committee will have oversight, while other COG Committees will be involved as 
needed and will review the recommendations in order to make policy decisions regarding the regional 
CAAP. The General Forum will receive quarterly updates. 


Timeline: Kick off meeting 9/16/19. Meet on a monthly basis through 2020. 


Process: CRPA staff will reach out to potential recruits and form a core group of overall climate change / 
sustainability experts. The core members will meet regularly to organize the Climate Action and 
Adaptation Plan (CAAP) process and create the CAAP. During research into the identified sectors shown 
below the core members will reach out to subject matter experts to learn about best practices. The 
advisor, Adam Brumbaugh, will serve as a sounding board to ensure municipal integration, both 
operationally and fiscally. TAG was endorsed by the PSE Committee at its 9/5/19 meeting. 


Public Input: The meetings of the TAG will be open to the public and noticed on the COG web page and 
through social media. Once a sector has several best management practices identified, focus groups will 
be held with the public to garner interest, assure applicability and define the best actions for our 
community. 


Deliverable from CRPA: Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory and Regional Climate Action and 
Adaptation Plan (CAAP) 
 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


TAG:  Brandi Robinson, PSU Energy and Sustainability Policy instructor, Geography 
Peter Buckland, PSU Sustainability Institute Academic Program Manager 
Alan Sam, SCB Environmental Coordinator/Arborist 


 Franklin Eagan, PASA Director of Education 
 Jason Wert, Rettew Energy and Environmental Project Engineer  
 Pam Adams, CRPA Sustainability Planner 


Advisor: Adam Brumbaugh, College Township Manager 


Technical 
Advisory 


Group 


Educational and outreach programming 


Funding Possibilities 


Policy barriers and synergies 


Human Health 


Forestry 


Energy consumption Agriculture 


Transportation 


Water resources management 


Energy production 


Waste management 


Open space, recreation, and eco-tourism 
Building and facility design 


Land use and community 







CENTRE REGION CLIMATE ACTION & ADAPTATION PLAN 1/20/21 
 


 


Climate Action and Adaptation Technical Advisory Group 
TAG  


 


Members: 
attend a monthly 1-1.5 hr meeting  
provide guidance on the overall structure of CAAP, best management practices and public 
outreach program 
assist with connecting CRPA staff with subject matter experts 
offer additional expertise on sector(s) of interest 
review and provide feedback on CAAP document 
attend some stake holder meeting to elicit public interest 


 
CRPA staff: 


1. complete primary work load - documenting best practices and providing additional research 
2. collaborate with municipal staff, regional organizations and elected officials 
3. update municipal elected officials and staff through respective attending COG Committees, 


quarterly updates to the General Forum and attending municipal meetings 
4. create the Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP) 
5. develop a public outreach program 
6. coordinate stakeholder meetings to elicit public interest 


 


 







((6) Examples of Sustainability Committee Mission Statements  
 
MONOMA, WISCONSIN - located in the Madison metropolitan area (metro population of 654,000, 


population of Monoma is 8,000 
 


The Sustainability Committee is dedicated to guiding and assisting Monona's residents, 
businesses, and government in becoming a community that meets the needs of the present 
without compromising the resources available for future generations. Its vision is that 
Monona will share a culture that is vested in and embraces best use practices for 
sustainable living, business, and development.  


 


DUNWOODY, GEORGIA – located about 20 minutes north of downtown Atlanta (metro population 
6,000,000, Dunwoody population is about 50,000) 


 
Enable smart choices for our community and its residents by promoting, through education, 
outreach, and awareness efforts, the conservation of energy, water, and fuel; investment in 
renewable energy; reduction of waste; and protecting and restoring the community’s 
natural resources. To advise and assist the City of Dunwoody to develop sustainable 
measures, practices, buildings, and fleets that are environmentally, economically, and 
socially responsible.  


 
RAPID CITY, NORTH DAKOTA – population of about 149,000 


 
The purpose of the Sustainability Committee is to encourage education, stewardship, and 
policy leadership that will make our community a leader in economic, social, and 
environmental sustainability.  


 
LITTLETON, MASSACHUSETTS – rural community located about 45 minutes west of Boston, population of 


about 10,000 
 


To help develop a culture of sustainability in our community through a partnership with all 
residents, government and businesses utilizing innovation, education, communication, and 
comprehensive and strategic planning.  


 
 
 
 







BENICIA, CALIFORNIA – small coastal town located about 45 minutes northeast of San Francisco, near the 
Vallejo metro area, with a metro population of 451,000, population of Benicia is 
about 28,000 


 
The purpose of the Community Sustainability Commission is to educate, advocate and 
provide oversight for integrated solutions that seek a sustainable equilibrium for economic, 
ecological, and social health and well-being, both now and in the future.”  


 
EUGENE, OREGON – population of about 168,000 


 
The Sustainability Commission works to create a healthy community now and in the future 
by proposing measurable solutions to pressing environmental, social, and economic 
concerns to the City of Eugene, its partners, and its people.  
 
The commission acts as a policy advisory body to the council and city manager in the 
initiation or development of programs that will create or enhance sustainable practices 
within the community. The commission advises on policy matters related to:  


Sustainable practices 
Businesses that produce sustainable products and services 
City building design and infrastructure 
Related issues that directly affect sustainability efforts considered by the city 
council  


 
 



















4B ..................................................................................CENTRE DAILY TIMES WEDNESDAY MARCH 24 2021


KEVIN SIERS Charlotte Observer


There is a clear next
step in changing the Sen-
ate filibuster: Vice Presi-
dent Kamala Harris, as
presiding officer of the
Senate, can — and should
— declare the current
Senate filibuster rule un-
constitutional. This would
open the door for dis-
cussions on a new rule
that would respect the
minority without giving it
an unconstitutional veto.


In 1957, Vice President
Richard Nixon, sitting as
presiding officer of the
Senate, issued two ad-
visory opinions holding
that a crucial provision of
the Senate’s filibuster rule
— requiring two-thirds
vote to amend it — was


unconstitutional. Nixon’s
constitutional determina-
tion was reaffirmed by
subsequent vice presidents
Hubert Humphrey and
Nelson Rockefeller. It was
this ruling that allowed
the Democratic-controlled
Senate in 2013 and the
Republican-controlled
Senate in 2017 by a simple
majority vote to eliminate
filibusters for all executive
and judicial nominees.


Harris possesses the
same power to rule that the
current version of the Sen-
ate filibuster, which essen-
tially establishes a 60-vote
supermajority rule to enact
legislation in the Senate, is
unconstitutional because it
denies states “equal Suf-
frage in the Senate” in
violation of Article V of the
Constitution.


Wyoming with 580,000


inhabitants, elects the
same number of senators
as California, with its 40
million residents. A person
in Wyoming thus has 65
times more voting power
in the Senate than a per-
son living in California.
The current 60-vote fil-
ibuster rule makes this
imbalance even worse.


Under the 60-vote rule,
41 senators representing
about a third of the pop-
ulation can outweigh 59
senators representing two-
thirds. This situation surely
violates the principle of
equal representation in
voting — for example, the
“one person, one vote” rule
that the Supreme Court
long ago applied to state
legislative and congression-
al districts.


Everyone agrees that
the text of the Constitu-


tion does not allow for
simply giving California
more senators than
Wyoming. Nor can the
Senate’s lack of repre-
sentative fairness be cured
by adopting internal Sen-
ate voting rules. But that
does not mean the Senate
has authority to create
even more unfairness than
already exists.


In fact, Article I of the
Constitution does not ap-
pear to permit a broad
60-vote supermajority rule.
That article sets forth su-
permajority votes in the
Senate only in narrowly
defined cases like ratifying
treaties, overturning presi-
dential vetoes and convict-
ing impeached officials.
The strong implication is
that, unless the action falls
into these narrow excep-
tions, the Senate should


operate by majority rule.
Article I says nothing about
a general supermajority
requirement for the enact-
ment of all legislation in
the Senate.


And while the 17th
Amendment revolution-
ized the Senate by shifting
the election of senators
from state legislators to
the voters, it preserved the
founders’ decision to give
each state two senators
with equal voting rights.
But a 60-vote supermajor-
ity rule destroys the math-
ematical equality of each
senator’s vote.


We believe that the best
way forward is for Harris to
rule that the current ver-
sion of the Senate filibuster
operates in violation of
Article V, the 17th Amend-
ment and the constitutional
presumption of majority
rule. Such a ruling would
trigger two events.


The Senate could seek to
overrule Harris by majority
vote. In that case, the sen-
ators would no longer be
debating the filibuster as
mere political policy, but
about a profound constitu-


tional question.
At the same time, dis-


cussions could begin
about what a constitu-
tional rule protecting the
Senate minority might
look like. Perhaps the
Senate would choose to
abandon the filibuster. Or
it might adopt a rule re-
quiring strenuous effort —
like demanding that a
senator get on the floor
and actually talk to pre-
vent a bill from proceed-
ing to a vote. Or it might
require successively lower
votes to end the filibuster,
initially 60, then 55, and
then just a majority.


Eliminating the filibuster
now would benefit the
Democrats, but it would
help the Republicans the
next time they control the
Senate. Harris can move
this forward by ruling that
the current filibuster rule
needs to be changed.


Erwin Chemerinsky is dean
of the UC Berkeley School
of Law. Burt Neuborne is
the Norman Dorsen
Professor of Civil Liberties
at NYU School of Law.


How Harris can move ahead
with reforming the filibuster
BY ERWIN CHEMERINSKY


AND BURT NEUBORNE


Los Angeles Times


CVIM’S VACCINATION
EFFORTS DESERVE
PRAISE, SUPPORT


As a volunteer for Cen-
tre Volunteers in Med-
icine, I observe firsthand
the critical work this or-
ganization is doing to
provide health care to the
under-served that live and
work in Centre County.
Especially during these
pandemic times, the front-
line workers, the behind-
the-scenes staff, and
countless volunteers are to
be commended for their
exceptional dedication to
our community.


We are all hoping that
vaccination is the magic
bullet that will allow us to
return to a normal life. As
I write this in the middle
of March, 12,000 individ-
uals in Centre County are
partially vaccinated in a
population of over
160,000. So, we have a
long way to go before we
reach “herd immunity.”


CVIM is one of the local
agencies that is making
this happen. By organizing
and funding weekly clinics
(CVIM is not eligible for
government assistance),
CVIM is vaccinating thou-
sands of us each week.
While medical services at


CVIM are only free to
those that can show fi-
nancial need, all Centre
County residents are eligi-
ble for COVID vaccination
at no cost, made possible
by local donations.


We can all do our part
by getting vaccinated and
by supporting CVIM!


James Ultman, 
State College


REPUBLICANS’ 
TRUE INTENTIONS 
ARE CLEAR


I am amazed at the
lengths the Republicans
will go to follow the lead
of Trump and to appeal to
his base. They are now
willing to take Pennsylva-
nia back into the Jim Crow
era with the legislation
they are supporting.


Their efforts are nothing
more than pure voter
suppression. They will say
their efforts are to ensure
voter security. However, I
have not heard any of our
local representatives utter
one word about Putin’s
efforts to support Trump
in the recent election. If
they really cared about
voter security the GOP
would take a strong and
leading position against


such efforts.
We know the Repub-


licans are unable to ex-
pand their voter base with
the exception of adding
the Oath Keepers, the
Proud Boys, white su-
premacists’ and QAnon
conspiracy theorists. The
GOP positions are simply
those of opposition and
are aimed at appealing to
their white rural voter
base. They make no ef-
forts to develop a set of
beliefs that would appeal
to the more diverse pop-
ulation that now exists in
the U.S. Therefore, their
efforts are only aimed at
suppressing the voting
rights of this more diverse
population. Shame on
them!


John Casey, State College


SCIENCE DOESN’T
SUPPORT ARTS FEST
CANCELLATION


Canceling Arts Fest
2021, and any other festiv-
al or event this summer, is
a mistake. Last summer
the number of cases and
deaths in Pennsylvania
bottomed out at signif-
icantly low numbers. This
year, because of its spread
and the vaccine, those
numbers will be even less.
Even so, as of March 18,
99.98% of Pennsylvanians


who have been diagnosed
with COVID have sur-
vived. Also as of March 18,
77% of Centre County’s
deaths have been in the
long-term care facility
population. For an event
that is largely outside,
cancellation of the festival
is unreasonable. Further-
more, a more significant
public event in Pennsylva-
nia, the Carlisle Auto
Show, will once again be
held this year. It was not
canceled last year. This
event lasts much longer
and draws more people
than our summer events
here in Centre County. In
their case, the state tried
to enforce the 250-person
limit, but was denied by
the court. So, they
schemed a confidential
agreement with the auto
show to allow the event to
be held. The science just
doesn’t support the can-
cellation of the Arts Fest
2021 outdoors event.
Bring our economy back.


Jeremy Krider, 
State College


LETTERS TO THE EDITOR


I’ve lived in Happy
Valley since 2003 when I
came for graduate school
and just never left. As a
graduate student in Penn
State’s department of
geography, I became in-
terested in local scale
solutions to global scale
climate problems and
spent my time working on
a precursor of a climate
action plan for the Uni-
versity Park campus.


In the intervening 18
years, I’ve watched as
we’ve not made much
progress in addressing the
global scale problem of
climate change at bigger
scales and I understand
the value of addressing it
right here at home. Here is
where we feel the impacts
of a changing climate.
Here is where we can cre-
ate meaningful work to
support a transition to a
lower carbon economy.
Here is where we have the
chance to think about how
we can make the Centre
Region an even better
place to call home for all
of us.


In 2017, Ferguson
Township (where I live)
passed a resolution to
become carbon neutral by
2050. This is an ambitious
and almost daunting goal,
however it’s exactly what
the world’s climate scien-
tists tell us is necessary to
avert the more catastroph-
ic impacts of a warmer
world. In that resolution
came the opportunity to
participate in a Climate
Action Committee of
other concerned Ferguson
Township residents as we
tried to understand what
our current emissions are
and how we can start to
bring that number closer
to zero — all while contin-
ually asking ourselves the
question, “What actions
can we take that not only
reduce our climate impact
but also enhance opportu-
nities for our neighbors,
save us money, and make
Ferguson Township a
more resilient and thriving
community?” 


Not soon after we began
having these conversa-
tions in Ferguson Town-
ship and thinking about


our opportunities for re-
ducing emissions, the
Centre Region Planning
Agency invested in similar
efforts at the regional
scale, efforts that will lead
to a regional climate ac-
tion and adaptation plan.
This gives us the opportu-
nity to partner with our
neighboring municipalities
and build on our shared
identity as residents of the
greater State College area
community to think about
how we can not only re-
duce our contribution to
the global problem, but
more importantly how we
can respond to the local
impacts of that problem
with proactive, inclusive
and holistic measures to
improve this place we’re
lucky enough to call
home. 


It’s been almost 20 years
that I’ve been studying and
working on the local solu-
tions to these global prob-
lems and it’s exciting to see
where these efforts have
taken us and to think about
the potential and responsi-
bility we have at this mo-
ment to do even more. But
we can’t do this alone. This
community belongs to all
of us, and we need to work
together to understand how
to prioritize our efforts to
ensure that it functions well
for each of us.


The Centre Region
COG wants your input to
help gauge community
knowledge of, and interest
in sustainable practices for
developing a Climate
Action and Adaptation
Plan. Two community-
wide initiatives are
planned — a survey and
forum. Complete the Sus-
tainability Survey at
centresustains.com/
survey and have a chance
to win a free energy audit,
$1,000 solar electric
voucher or a $100 gift
card. Plan to attend the
virtual Forum on Under-
standing and Preparing for
Climate Impacts in the
Centre Region on April 13
from 6:30-8:30 p.m.


Brandi Robinson is the
chair of the technical
advisory group supporting
the development of the
Centre Region’s Climate
Action and Adaptation
Plan. 


Local solutions
sought for issue
of climate change


BY BRANDI ROBINSON


Letters policy: The Centre Daily Times accepts original letters of


up to 250 words. They must include the writer’s name, address


and telephone number. A writer is limited to one letter a month,


and letters are subject to editing. No "open letters" please. Send


letters to cdtletters@centredaily.com; visit the opinion page at


CentreDaily.com and click on “Send us your letters”; mail them to


Letters to the Editor, P.O. Box 89, State College, PA 16804; or fax


them to 238-1811. Submit editorial ideas Email:


editorialboard@centredaily.com


SINCE 1898
The Centre Daily Times is a


community connector. We


are passionate about our


responsibility as Centre


County’s most compelling


and trustworthy


information source.


Opinion content from syndicated sources may
be trimmed from the original length to fit
available space.


DAILY PRAYER
God, we pray for the
students and teachers who
are back in the classrooms,
that each day from now
through May will bring
breakthroughs of discovery
and mastery. Amen.


Opinion







WEDNESDAY MARCH 31 2021 CENTRE DAILY TIMES .................................................................................. 3A


Letters policy: The Centre Daily Times accepts original letters of


up to 250 words. They must include the writer’s name, address


and telephone number. A writer is limited to one letter a month,


and letters are subject to editing. No "open letters" please. Send


letters to cdtletters@centredaily.com; visit the opinion page at


CentreDaily.com and click on “Send us your letters”; mail them to


Letters to the Editor, P.O. Box 89, State College, PA 16804; or fax


them to 814-238-1811. Submit editorial ideas Email:


editorialboard@centredaily.com


SINCE 1898
The Centre Daily Times is a


community connector. We


are passionate about our


responsibility as Centre


County’s most compelling


and trustworthy


information source.


Opinion content from syndicated sources may
be trimmed from the original length to fit
available space.


DAILY PRAYER
God, thank you for the
blessing of medicine, and
for physicians' skill in
diagnosing and treating
the body's ills. Help them
be humble and caring as
well as wise. Amen.


Opinion


JEFF DANZIGER Washington Post Writers Group


I work on climate action
in central Pennsylvania
because I believe that
hope lives in action. And
the more action we take
together, the more we will
accomplish. 


Many people are con-
fused. Some worry that
they don’t know enough
about climate change. It’s
complicated. Others won-
der if doing anything will
matter. “I’m just one per-
son.” And many — too
many — are afraid to talk
with family or neighbors
for fear that they’ll lash
out, dump a bucket of
disinformation on us, or —
worst of all — accuse us of
being part of an anti-


American political con-
spiracy. 


Those three reactions —
confusion, helplessness
and fear — make some
sense in a rational world.
But the degree of confu-
sion, the learned help-
lessness, and the ugly
nature of the politics
around this have been
manufactured. Fossil-fuel-
funded “inactivists,” spe-
cial interests, merchants
of doubt, dishonest media
outlets, and corrupted
politicians have polluted
the political environment
as much as they have
polluted our air and water. 


We can’t solve any of
this by ignoring it. We
have to talk about it hon-
estly, from a place of com-
mon values, and focused


on what we can do togeth-
er.


For over 200 years,
people have been burning
fossil fuels. We’ve devel-
oped incredible industrial
technologies and expand-
ed across most of the
planet, deforesting and
transforming the land-
scape. By doing all of that,
we’ve wrapped the Earth
in a thicker blanket of
greenhouse gases and
heated the planet about 2
degrees Fahrenheit.


According to the Na-
tional Oceanographic and
Atmospheric Adminis-
tration, every year that
I’ve been alive the global
land and ocean temper-
ature has been above the
20th century average. I
was born in 1976.


But I don’t experience
global average temper-
ature. I live day-to-day
right here in central Penn-
sylvania. My home is
changing. In my lifetime
alone, record high temper-
atures have come to out-
number record lows. Few-
er colds snaps mean more
ticks and Lyme Disease
and more deaths of my
favorite tree, the Eastern
Hemlock, from the tiny
wooly adelgid. Peak thun-
derstorms increase flood
damage, cause more pow-
er outages and property
damage, and threatens
some of our exceptional
fishing. And mold — al-
ways an issue — nearly
shut down the Corl Street
Elementary School in
2018, a record wet year


made more likely because
a hot atmosphere can hold
more water vapor. 


There is plenty to worry
about. But don’t get stuck
there. 


I am cautiously optimis-
tic that we — emphasis on
WE — can and will rise to
the occasion. The tech-
nical and behavioral solu-
tions are already here.
They exist in renewable
energy production, effi-
ciency, smarter grids, and
battery storage, in an
electrified, hydrogen-
powered, and people-
pedaling transit system, in
regenerative and sustain-
able agriculture, forests,
and land management
right in our neighbor-
hoods. It is up to us to take
action — together — that
will make the difference. 


At the end of the day, I
think about the world my
son and his friends are
inheriting. I hear his and
their calls for action. I
want him to see that his
father hears him, has
stood up for his future,
and worked to get other
people to come together to


do what’s right. 
I can’t wait to learn


from you. 
The Centre Region


COG wants your input to
help gauge community
knowledge of, and interest
in sustainable practices for
developing a Climate
Action and Adaptation
Plan. Two community
wide initiatives are
planned — a survey and
forum. Complete the Sus-
tainability Survey and
have a chance to win a
free energy audit, $1,000
solar electric voucher or a
$100 gift card. Plan to
attend a virtual Forum on
Understanding and Pre-
paring for Climate Im-
pacts in the Centre Region
on April 13, 2021 from
6:30-8:30 p.m. For in-
formation on both visit
centresustains.com


Peter Buck is the vice chair
of the Climate Action and
Adaptation Planning
Technical Advisory Group
and Chair of the
intergovernmental Solar
Power Purchase Agreement
Working Group.


Taking action together will make
a difference on climate change


BY PETER BUCK


GUEST EDITORIAL


I pay moderate atten-
tion to my carbon foot-
print. You probably do,
too. It just seems like the
right thing to do.


I recycle. I drive a Prius.
My house has solar panels.
My yard is xeriscaped. I
support green energy. I
never vote for politicians
who, head in the sand,
contend that climate
change is a hoax.


And I never bothered to
have children, avoiding
the projection of my car-
bon footprint into the
future in an exponentially
increasing size.


You may be doing all of
this or even more. Good
for both of us. But have
you noticed that whatever
we’re doing doesn’t seem
to be working?


The failure can be de-
scribed in a number of
ways: The persistent in-
crease of carbon dioxide
in the atmosphere. The
disappearing glaciers. The
increasing global temper-
ature. The extreme weath-
er. The drowning polar
bears. And so on.


In fact, the proposition
that all of us working
together can save the
environment by making
small changes in our life-
styles has probably always
been doubtful. The forces
that nudge the globe’s
weather in one direction
or another are massive.
They’re unlikely to be
much affected by a minor-
ity of eco-friendly individ-
uals, no matter how well-
intentioned.


Unfortunately, national
and international attempts
at climate remediation
have been halting and
half-hearted, and at present
they appear to be less effec-
tive than individual efforts.
The Biden administration is
rejoining the Paris Agree-
ment on climate, but at
best that accord is modest
and nonbinding. And our
nation’s commitment to
the agreement is so weak
that only a few thousand
votes separate us from an
administration — former
President Donald Trump’s
— that essentially rejected
the idea that climate
change is real.


Does this mean that the
climate change battle is
lost? I suspect that it does.


Our capacity to address
climate change effectively
is undermined by human-
kind’s essential myth: the
notion that the earth’s
resources are unlimited
and that, therefore, any
amount of growth and
consumption can be sus-
tained.


Until recently this mis-
conception has worked
reasonably well. The ele-
mental story of human
civilization is the deple-
tion of local resources and
then migration to new
ones. This was fine when
mankind consisted of a
few nomads roaming the
planet. When Europe was
full we crossed the Atlan-
tic to a New World. As our
east coast began to overfill
and wear out, we kept
moving west. Eventually,
we dabbled in colonialism,
absorbing Hawaii, Puerto
Rico, the Philippines. Now
we’re fantasizing about
colonizing Mars.


As we push up against
the world’s geographical
limits, we’ve extended our
ability to extract Earth’s
resources more efficiently,
which has allowed us to
maintain a corollary myth,
the idea that all of our
energy problems can be
solved by better tech-
nology.


But one dangerous re-
sult of all this myth-mak-
ing is complacency, and
there’s not much middle
ground between compla-
cency and resignation.


Eventually we will have
to accept the reality that
growth cannot be unlimit-
ed as long as our resources
are finite. This would
require a sea change in
human psychology. Are
we willing to accept a life
with less of the comfort,
pleasure and self-indul-
gence that are provided by
burning fossil fuels?


The break-even point
between our ever-growing
consumption and the
earth’s capacity to support
it is closer than we think
because, for the most part,
we avoid thinking about it,
at all. And, paraphrasing
Albert Einstein, because
we can’t change the way
we think “we drift toward
unparalleled catastrophe.”


Have we lost 
the battle on
climate change?


BY JOHN M. CRISP


Tribune News Service


BUDGET PRIORITIES
ADDRESS URGENT
NEEDS


Tony Romm’s story in
Monday’s CDT about the
budget priorities of the
new administration in
Washington is exactly the
kind of partisan blather
veiled as “news” that
perpetuates the divide in
this country. Nationwide
infrastructure overhaul
and addressing climate
change have been needed
for decades. Past presi-
dents and congresses have
not delivered on these
urgent needs for America
because they were tied up
in knots by their own
snake oil fantasy that we
can cut taxes again and
again and spend trillions
on war and — cross our
fingers — it will all mag-
ically work out. Likewise,
decisively helping small
businesses to survive and
the unemployed to get
back on their feet rather
than being thrown into the
street due to the pandemic
are key actions to build a
robust economy and work-
ing nation for everyone,
not just the privileged.
Reasoning people know all
of this. The CDT should
choose its stories more
carefully to reflect reality.
These are positive and
courageous and vital ac-
tions and should be recog-
nized as such.


Michael Casper, 
State College


CREVECOEUR WILL
WORK FOR STATE
COLLEGE STUDENTS


In the primary election
on May 18, I strongly
encourage you to vote for
Carline Crevecoeur, MD,
for the State College Area
School Board of Direc-
tors.


Carline cares deeply
about education. As a
Haitian-American grow-
ing up in New York, she
knew education was crit-
ical, and she dedicated
herself to her studies in
order to become a physi-
cian. She had a successful
career as an OB/GYN
before sacrificing that
career to raise and help
educate her children.


Now, Carline is running
for a seat on the school
board to help all SCASD
kids receive a high-qual-
ity, supportive and in-
clusive education. If you
have had the pleasure of
meeting her, you know
that Carline has a passion
for diversity and educa-
tion, a formidable ability
to “get things done,” and
a desire to give back to
this community. Her
ability to collaborate with
others would serve her
well, and her empathy for
students, parents, teach-
ers, and staff would drive
her to work tirelessly on
their behalf. As a school
board member, Carline
would help build schools
that work for everyone
while exercising respon-


sible stewardship of com-
munity resources.


How do I know this?
Well, I am one of five
proud State High gradu-
ates lucky enough to be
Carline’s kids. My sib-
lings and I enjoyed a
fantastic education
thanks to my mom’s hard
work and the support of
SCASD schools. I know
she would be a wonderful
addition to the State Col-
lege Area School Board.


I hope you vote for Dr.
Carline Crevecoeur this
May.


Danielle Feffer,
Philadelphia


LEOUS CAN BRING
STATE COLLEGE
TOGETHER


Although often called
largely symbolic, the
State College mayor’s
powers allow behind the
scenes effective lead-
ership, and Jim Leous is
the best candidate. Origi-
nally elected to a highly
polarized SCASD Board,
he has brought diverse
folks together to make
genuine progress. Moder-
ate Republicans in the
mold of Steve Dershem
should prefer his good
government approach,
but more importantly, for
the majority of progres-
sive Democratic voters,
Leous is THE choice to
actually achieve progres-
sive results: achieving
greater inclusion of stu-


dents and renters in a
diverse city. For years,
the Borough Council has
been dominated by offi-
cials who are nationally
liberal but, at home, gov-
ern for the primary bene-
fit of various neighbor-
hood homeowners’ asso-
ciations, dominated of
course by affluent white
owners. Jim is a long-time
homeowner in the
Holmes-Foster neigh-
borhood, but he under-
stands how to develop
practical solutions to
promote greater afforda-
bility and accommodate
the needs of students as
renters while still allow-
ing homeowners to raise
their families and enjoy
retirement in peace and
security.


I supported Leous op-
ponent, Ezra Nanes, in
his State Senate campaign
and would back him
again for posts in Harris-
burg or Washington to
which he aspires. He is an
articulate progressive. If
you are satisfied with
allowing the council and
professional managers to
run the borough, and
want a mayor who will
make you feel good by
articulating your own
views on major national
issues, perhaps he is your
choice. For real progres-
sive results at home, vote
Leous.


Steve Ross, State College


LETTERS TO THE EDITOR







Centre Regional Planning Agency 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite #4  State College, PA  16801  Phone (814) 231-3050     www.crcog.net 


CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP


1. MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE


2. PUBLIC COMMENTS


3. COMMITTEE ITEMS


4. TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP FOR CAAP IMPLEMENTATION


5. DISCUSSION ON THE CAAP PREPARATION







6. OTHER BUSINESS








 


 


REPORT OF THE CENTRE COUNTY 


TASK FORCE ON MENTAL HEALTH 


CRISIS SERVICES 


 


 


NOVEMBER 2020 


 


 


  







Table of Contents 
 


Executive Summary ...................................................................................................... 1 


The Task Force .............................................................................................................. 2 


A. History and Formation ............................................................................................ 7 


B. Task Force Roster .......................................................................................................................................... 7 


C. Charge ................................................................................................................................................................... 7 


Work Process ................................................................................................................ 1 


Section I: Current State of the System ........................................................................ 4 


A. Usage of the System .................................................................................................................................... 7 


   Crisis Intervention (Mobile) and Delegate Services ............................................ 4 


   Law Enforcement ................................................................................................ 4 


   Emergency Department ...................................................................................... 4 


B. Process Mapping ............................................................................................................................................ 7 


C. Strengths Within the System ................................................................................................................... 7 


D. Gaps and Opportunities Within the System .................................................................................... 8 


E. Barriers Within the System ....................................................................................................................... 8 


Section II: Recommendations for the Future System .............................................. 10 


A. Systemwide Key Recommendations ..................................................................... 7 


B. Separate Key Recommendations .......................................................................... 7 


   Crisis Intervention (Mobile) and Delegate Services ............................................ 4 


   Law Enforcement ................................................................................................ 4 


   Emergency Department ...................................................................................... 4 


C. Implementation Plan..................................................................................................................................... 7 


Conclusion ..................................................................................................................... 1 


References ..................................................................................................................... 1 


Appendix A: FSS Consultant Report ........................................................................... 1 


Appendix B: Considerations for Future Reference  .................................................. 1 







Appendix C: Public Meeting Summary ........................................................................ 1 


Appendix D: Work Sheets for Gaps and Opportunities ............................................. 1 


Appendix E: Definitions ................................................................................................ 1 


 







EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


 


The status of the nation’s mental health system is under welcome, much needed, 


and long-overdue scrutiny along the entire continuum of prevention, crisis 


intervention, treatment and recovery services to improve accessibility, treatment 


effectiveness, and cultural responsiveness. Sobering statistics bear witness to the 


need for action. 


• 1 in 5 US adults experience mental illness each year. 


• 1 in 25 US adults experience serious mental illness each year. 


• 19% of US adults with mental illness also have a substance use disorder.  


• 1 in 6 US youth aged 6-17 experience a mental health disorder each year. 


• High school students with depression are more than twice as likely to drop out 


of school. 


• 8.4 million Americans provide care to an adult with an emotional or mental 


illness. 


National Alliance on Mental Illness (https://www.nami.org/mhstats) 


 


It is important to state that improving preventive care and services is by far an 


essential and preferred step in reducing the potential use of crisis intervention 


services for those in need. When intervention is needed, a coordinated and effective 


crisis care system is crucial. 


However, when intervention is needed, a coordinated and effective crisis care 


system is crucial.   


According to the National Guidelines for Crisis Care, published by the federal 


Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA, 2020), 


“Effective crisis care that saves lives…requires a systemic approach.” It provides a 


“line of defense in preventing tragedies of public and patient safety, civil rights, 


extraordinary and unacceptable loss of lives, and the waste of resources.” The 


Treatment Advocacy Center estimates that at least one in four fatal encounters with 


police involved a person with an untreated severe mental illness, according to The 


Philadelphia Inquirer (November 1, 2020). The risks are compounded when race, 


both Black and Latino, is a factor. 



https://www.nami.org/mhstats





Bringing about change is a challenging undertaking requiring coordinated leadership 


at national, state, and local levels, involving government, health care, law 


enforcement, mental health and social services, education, community 


organizations, and those most impacted, consumers and their families.  


In Centre County, the increasing need for mental health services is no exception, as 


is the pressure on the crisis intervention service system to meet growing and diverse 


needs. From January through September, 2020, 870 mental health calls were 


responded to by police officers from three municipalities, Penn State, and 


Pennsylvania State Police. The Center for Community Resources received 7,646 


calls on its Helpline, 238 walk-ins to the Center, and made 134 mobile visits to home, 


schools, or other sites to meet with individuals. Mount Nittany Medical Center had 


1200 mental health Emergency Department visits.   


Following the tragic shooting death of Osaze Osagie on March 20, 2019, during a 


law enforcement response to a mental health 302 Warrant service and the 


subsequent concerned community response during a well attended public meeting in 


June seeking action to address concerns, the Centre County Commissioners and the 


Borough of State College appointed the Task Force on Mental Health Crisis 


Services. 


The charge to the Task Force focuses on that one critical component of the overall 


mental health system in Centre County. This report and its recommendations 


address the continuum of services when crisis intervention is needed, both its 


strengths and potential enhancements to the system. The charge specified 


examining four areas:  Crisis Intervention Services (Mobile), Delegate Services, 


Police Officers’ Role in Responding, and Mount Nittany Medical Center Emergency 


Department. 


Section I of the report describes the system and the work process: 


Centre County residents are served by a crisis intervention system including a 24/7 


walk-in center, a telephone crisis line, and a mobile response unit at the Center for 


Community Resources and Delegate services through Service Access & 


Management, Inc., when an involuntary commitment warrant service is indicated.  


More than six municipal police departments, Centre County Sheriff, the Pennsylvania 


State Police, Penn State, and the Centre County Correctional Facility are directly 


involved in responding to mental health calls, warrant services or needs. The 


Emergency Department responds to those in need of mental health care. A 


descriptive data picture of the usage of these services is included in the report. 


The system was mapped from point of entry to exit to describe how the system’s 


component services interact, as well as their functions, overlaps, and transitions. It is 


a document to aid elected officials, decision makers, and stakeholders as the 


recommendations are studied and implemented. 







The Task Force conducted a concentrated work process that included the 


perspectives, expertise, knowledge, and skills of its members. Members analyzed a 


consultant’s report of structured interviews with 60 representatives of identified key 


populations. They were educated on the processes of the four areas, and considered 


data, best practices, research, regulations and diverse resources during the many 


months of work. Using a Strengths, Gaps, Opportunities, and Barriers organizing 


format, the draft recommendations were produced.   


Two updates were provided to the Centre County Commissioners and State College 


Borough Council in public meetings. In addition, two virtual public meetings attended 


by more than 100 people were held to solicit input on the draft of the Key 


Recommendations. The final report with the Key Recommendations is being 


presented in a joint virtual public meeting of the Commissioners and the Council. 


Section II of the report contains the Systemwide Key Recommendations.  


Six inter-related themes clearly emerged and are central to the recommendations.  


They are not hierarchical, but are firmly embedded in the content of the 


enhancements. They are care, cultural responsiveness, communication, 


collaboration, coordination, and consistency.  


There are 11 systemwide recommendations, organized by Enhancements Through 


Coordination of Care; Through Training, Education, and Data; and, Through 


Advocacy. Separate Key Recommendations, of which there are eight, address 


enhancements for Crisis and Delegate Services, Law Enforcement, and the 


Emergency Department. Finally, there are two Key Recommendations for 


Implementation. The chart lists each recommendation, provides brief 


explanatory/descriptive information, and supporting examples and resources. 


The Task Force was guided by its charge and its commitment to a report that is 


accurate, forthright, thorough, evidence-based, where possible, culturally responsive 


and, most of all, actionable. These recommendations are a start. They represent 


steps built on the basic crisis system foundation that exists in Centre County. Some 


are more easily implemented, require current or redirected resources, and simple 


accountability measures. Others are more complex, require study for adaptation to 


Centre County, resource sharing and acquisition, and challenging data management 


for future assessment of effectiveness. Also, some involve regulatory and funding 


issues that exceed direct local control, but involve active advocacy in the hope of 


influencing positive change.   


Finally, the Task Force findings, on behalf of those individuals and families living with 


the wrenching, life limiting and life threatening impact of serious mental illness, as 


well as the confounding damage caused by implicit bias and racial inequity, provide 


a significant opportunity for Centre County to answer the question posed by Martin 







Luther King, Jr. “Life’s most persistent and urgent question is ‘what are you doing for 


others?’” 


To this end, the Task Force included two implementation recommendations. Upon 


acceptance of the report and taking the first steps of identifying and assigning 


responsible parties, agencies or committees to pursue implementation by the 


Commissioners and the Council, the Task Force offers to convene a sub-group to 


follow up through quarterly meetings and offer additional assistance that may be 


needed in reviewing progress. The members of the Task Force appreciate the 


opportunity provided by the Centre County Commissioners and the State College 


Borough Council to contribute to this effort to enhance the crisis services system in 


Centre County. 


 


 


“It’s not differences that divide us. It’s our judgments about each other that do.”   


Margaret Wheatley    


 


 


 


  







TASK FORCE 


 


A. History and Formation 


The formation of the Mental Health Crisis Services Task Force was born out of the 


tragic shooting death of Osaze Osagie on March 20, 2019, during a law enforcement 


response to a mental health 302 Warrant service and the subsequent community 


questions, concerns, and response. The County held a Mental Health public meeting 


on June 27, 2019, which was widely attended with many residents sharing personal, 


family, and professional experiences, concerns, and challenges with aspects of the 


mental health system. As a result, the Centre County Commissioners and the State 


College Borough Council jointly proposed involving the community in examining and 


enhancing the provision of mental health crisis services to prevent a violent outcome 


as a response to a person in need of help. Additional community response was 


sought to identify recommendations for enhancement and changes that would 


positively impact any individual seeking mental health crisis services. 


The Task Force on Mental Health Crisis Services began its work in September, 


2019, with the leadership of Dr. Billie Willits as chair. The 30 members represent a 


broad base of experience, knowledge, and expertise. They include those with 


personal lived experience with using the system, those whose professions provide 


direct mental health services and support, those in law enforcement, and those who 


educate, volunteer and advocate for mental health support from across the county.  


The full roster of Task Force members is below.  


In January, 2020, Dr. Patricia Best was appointed to chair the Task Force, due to the 


untimely passing of Dr. Willits. A work plan was developed to analyze each of the 


four areas specified in the charge using small work groups and a Strengths, Gaps, 


Opportunities, Barriers organizing system, with a projected completion date of July, 


2020.  With the advent of Covid19 restrictions, meetings were postponed until the 


work plan was revised, moved to a virtual platform, and resumed in May.  


 


B. Task Force Roster 


(The full Task Force roster will be placed here) 


 


C. Charge 







The charge to the Task Force is to recommend enhancements to, and identify 


strengths of, the mental health crisis delivery system in Centre County. The Task 


Force will examine the continuum of mental health crisis services, including: 


a. Crisis intervention services (Mobile)  


b. Delegate crisis services 


c. Involuntary commitment warrant procedures 


d. Police officers’ role in responding to mental health calls and 302 warrant 


procedures 


e. Emergency Department procedures 


f. Post-Emergency Department services 


 


WORK PROCESS 


Consultant, James Fouts, LSW, of Forensic Systems Solutions, Family Training and 


Advocacy Center, was hired in October to assist in conducting a comprehensive 


review of mental health crisis services across the county and to produce a System 


Process Mapping. Task Force members assisted in identifying agencies and 


individuals to be interviewed and reviewed the question protocols. 


Interviews were conducted from mid-December, 2019 through mid-February. 2020.  


Sixty interviews were conducted with stakeholders, individuals and family members, 


provider agency representatives, police departments, Pennsylvania State Police, 911 


dispatchers, Centre County Correctional Facility, Mount Nittany Emergency 


Department, and Centre County MH/ID/EI/D&A. These results were summarized and 


provided to the Task Force in March, 2020 and used in its deliberations. The final 


report is found in Appendix A. 


In June through August, the Task Force organized into a Core Group of ten 


members with two to three representatives from each of four small teams, i.e., Crisis 


Interventions Services,(Mobile) Delegate Services, Law Enforcement, and 


Emergency Department. Each Task Force member was part of a small team. From 


June through August, meeting bi-weekly, each Core Group session focused on one 


of the four areas of the charge and a summary session. Small team members 


participated in their respective sessions; thereby, engaging the full Task Force.  


Informational presentations by service providers introduced each work session.  


Presenters included Shannon Quick, the Director of the new Center for Community 


Resources, (Crisis Intervention Services - Mobile) and Dan Tice, Director of Service 


Access & Management, Inc. (Delegate Services); task force members, Chief Tyler 







Jolley, Patton Township Police Department, District Attorney Bernie Cantorna (Law 


Enforcement); and, Dr. Tiffany Cabbibo and Dr. Brian Newcomb (Mount Nittany 


Emergency Department). Task Force members provided input via the SGOB 


worksheet. Resources also included the consultant’s report, relevant research, 


professional standards, effective models/best practices, as well as pertinent laws 


and regulations, and the considerable experience and expertise of the Task Force 


members. 


In September and October, deliberation focused on developing and fine tuning the 


recommendations. The Task Force affirmed its commitment to cultural 


responsiveness in its decision-making process. Task Force member Dr. Seria 


Chatters, facilitated the discussion of racial equity, cultural sensitivity and implicit 


bias, including the intersectionality of racial, ethnic, gender, sexual identity, socio-


economic, and the full range of serious mental illnesses, as they impact access to 


and provision of mental health crisis services. 


The Key Recommendations draft was presented during two virtual public meetings in 


October with over 100 participants. The Task Force received comments, and some 


were incorporated in Appendix C to finalize this report. This final report will be 


presented to the Centre County Commissioners and the State College Borough 


Council at a joint public meeting on November 10, 2020.    


 


 


 


  







SECTION I: CURRENT STATE OF THE SYSTEM 


 


A. Usage of the System 


The following information provides an overview of the degree of use of the system in 


Centre County provided through Crisis Intervention (Mobile), Delegate Services, Law 


Enforcement, including CIT-trained responses, and the Emergency Department.  


 
1.  Crisis Intervention (Mobile) 


This table shows monthly mental health contacts to Centre for Community 


Resources from January 2020 to September 2020.  


 1-20 2-20 3-20 4-20 5-20 6-20 7-20 8-20 9-20 Avg 


Initial 
Phone 


917 953 776 816 919 939 161 1010 1155 938 


Mobile 26 31 10 10 5 13 9 10 20 14 


Walk-In 35 37 24 10 10 24 22 41 35 25 


 


2.  Delegate Services: Applications for 302 Warrants for Involuntary 


Emergency Examination and Treatment 


This table shows quarterly applications for and dispositions of 302 Warrants from 


January 2020 to September 2020.  


 1-20 ~ 3-20 4-20 ~ 6-20 7-20 ~ 9-20 Total 


302 Applications 
Submitted 


94 73 86 253 


Total Number of 
Individuals  


93 70 84 252 


Approved 302s 52 43 44 139 


Denied 302s (voluntary, 
outpatient, denied) 


41 30 42 113 


 


3.  Law Enforcement 


In the period from January to September 2020, the Police Departments of State 


College Borough, Ferguson Township, Patton Township, PSP-Rockview, and Penn 


State received the following mental health calls, which also involved 302 Warrant 


service.  







 


 


Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) 


This chart shows CIT referrals reported by CIT-trained officers from January 2020 to 


September 2020.  


 


 







This chart shows outcomes of the CIT referrals from January 2020 to September 


2020.  


 


 


Centre County Correctional Facility 


People with mental health needs are part of prison populations. This table shows 


monthly mental health patients housed in the Centre County Correctional Facility 


from September 2019 to September 2020.  


Month-
Year 


9-
19 


10-
19 


11-
19 


12-
19 


1-
20 


2-
20 


3-
20 


4-
20 


5-
20 


6-
20 


7-
20 


8-
20 


9-
20 


Avg 


ADPa 
(Total) 


252 251 247 246 244 223 224 184 141 128 157 159 179 203 


Psych 
Medsb 


126 119 132 140 142 147 184 152 114 85 100 99 107 127 


Active 
TRTc 


96 139 122 128 112 119 118 91 83 79 88 101 135 109 


SMId 20 27 34 34 33 33 27 23 17 13 20 16 20 24 


Note. a= Average Daily Population  
b= Number of patients on psychiatric medications. 
c= Patient is currently active in treatment with the mental health department (e.g., undergoing 
counseling, utilizing medication management services, and/or a having a history of suicide attempts 
or psychiatric hospitalizations in the past 2 years).  
d= Patient has been diagnosed with a Serious Mental Illness (SMI) and/or exhibits significant 
adjustment/behavioral concerns.  


 


 







Emergency Department 


This table shows the monthly mental health visits to the ED from January 2020 to 


August 2020.  


Month-
Year 


1-20 2-20 3-20 4-20 5-20 6-20 7-20 8-20 Avg 


Monthly 
Cases 


157 187 132 82 103 120 143 124 146 


Note. Reflects the impact of COVID-19.  


 


This graphic shows the disposition of mental health clients visiting the ED from 


September 2019 to August 2020.  


 


 


B. Process Mapping 


The Task Force charge included examining the continuum of mental health crisis 


services, including Crisis Intervention Services (Mobile), Delegate Crisis Services 


and 302 Warrant Procedures, Police Officers’ Role in responding to mental health 


calls and 302 Warrant Procedures, and Emergency Department procedures and 


Post-Emergency Department Services.   


The following process map is a graphic depiction from a point of entry to point of exit 


from the crisis system. This map was developed as a guide for the Task Force in 


describing and studying how the crisis system works and as a document to aid the 


elected officials, decision makers, service providers, and stakeholders illustrating the 


respective components of the system, functions, overlaps, and transitions.  


33%


21%
14%


14%


5%


13%


Sept 2019 - August 2020 Mental Health ED Visits


Discharge


3 South MN admit


Meadows admit


Other Facilities admit


Med Consult


Med Admit







The map is color-coded for the four services. The arrows indicate interactions. It is a 


complex system, with each part governed by regulations, policies, and procedures. It 


presents opportunities for increased communication, coordination, collaboration, and 


consistency to address the needs of those seeking care.     


 


 


  







C. Strengths within the System 


The Task Force identified existing strengths within the crisis response system. A 


significant strength of the current system is the dedication and client focus of the 


many individuals providing the wide variety of services within each part of the 


system. Anecdotal accounts described positive, supportive, caring interactions within 


all of the four areas. Centre County benefits from broad local expertise in many of 


the areas related to effective mental health crisis services, within the community and 


from Penn State.  


Another strength is a good foundation for communication within the involved 


partners. Crisis intervention (Mobile), delegate services, law enforcement, and the 


emergency department have organized methods of communicating that can be 


enhanced significantly. These partners have also indicated their strong willingness to 


improve the system through expanding channels of communication and collaboration 


and formalizing structures to facilitate coordination.  


Since 2011, police officers in Centre County are provided yearly Crisis Intervention 


Team (CIT) training. CIT is designed to promote collaboration between law 


enforcement personnel, the community mental health system, consumer and family 


advocates, and other stakeholders to improve safety. Centre County has the highest 


percentage of CIT trained police officers in Pennsylvania at 95-97%. The system has 


also benefitted from regular training and education for personnel in each agency. 


Crisis services and delegates receive annual trainings in intervention, de-escalation, 


and crisis resolution. Law enforcement training includes crisis intervention, de-


escalation, implicit bias, and special populations. Emergency department staffs are 


trained with non-violent crisis intervention and resolution.  


The 2013 renovation of the Emergency Department at MNMC has provided 


improvements in space, privacy, security, and separation for caring for mental health 


patients. Case Managers are a part of the 24/7 staffing in the Emergency 


Department; they are currently cross-trained to provide care and support to mental 


health patients and facilitate follow up. In January, 2020, the Center for Community 


Resources (CCR) opened a new mental health walk-in center welcoming any 


resident/family/friend with mental health concerns to visit, talk with a provider, and 


use and access materials and resources. It is free and open to all. Services include a 


telephone Helpline and mobile services to visit a home, school, or other site at need.  


Additional information can be found at https://ccrinfo.org.    


 


D. Gaps and Opportunities within the System 


As part of the study, the Task Force reviewed the continuum and identified Gaps 


within the system. The consultant James Fouts’ report was utilized, including the 







interview summaries. Information was provided by representatives of each of the 


four service areas in dedicated meetings with the Task Force. In addition, members 


provided their broad-based experience, knowledge, and expertise, as well as 


resource materials. A working chart was produced.  


Flowing from the Gaps, but also extending possibilities, the Task Force, as a next 


step, identified Opportunities for enhancements to the system. From these two 


working documents, further study and discussion provided the basis for the formation 


of the Key Recommendations (See Appendix D for charts). 


 


E. Barriers within the System 


As part of this work, Barriers were also identified. These areas included lack of 


funding for mental health programming, recruitment and retention of licensed mental 


health professionals, lack of cultural diversity among service providers, data 


collecting and sharing, shortage of intensive outpatient services, shortage of 


inpatient beds, outdated mental health law (MHPA, 1976), and complications, 


restrictions, and unintended consequences of HIPAA compliance in coordinating 


individual care.  


 


 


  







SECTION II: RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE FUTURE SYSTEM 


 


The Task Force worked to produce recommendations that are thorough, accurate, 


forthright, evidence-based, where possible, culturally responsive, and actionable.  


As we discussed, processed and analyzed the crisis services system, six inter-


related themes clearly emerged. They are care, cultural responsiveness, 


communication, collaboration, coordination, and consistency. These themes 


are embedded throughout these recommendations. They are not in a hierarchy; they 


are integral to the effective implementation of the Key Recommendations.  


The Key Recommendations from the Task Force are divided into three sections:  


A. Systemwide Key Recommendations 1-11 


B. Separate Key Recommendations for Crisis Services (Mobile) and Delegate 


Services 1-3; Law Enforcement 1-4; and, Emergency Department 1  


C. Implementation 1-2  


Within these sections, the recommendations are grouped by Coordination of 


Care; Coordination of Training, Education, and Data; and, Coordination of 


Advocacy.  


 


A. Systemwide Key Recommendations 


Recommendation Explanation Supporting Information 


Enhancements to Service Systems Through Coordination of Care 


1. Create a countywide 
co-responder model, 
involving a combination 
of law enforcement and 
mental health 
professionals OR a fully 
civilian mental health 
response unit for crisis 
engagement. 
 


Mental health crisis co-
responder programs have 
developed in communities to 
partner a mental health crisis 
professional with law 
enforcement in responding to 
calls involving a mental health 
concern. There are many 
variations on the programs 
adapted to community needs. 
              OR 
 
Some communities have 
developed co-responder 
programs that pair mental 
health professionals and crisis 
workers to provide a first 
response through the 911 


CAHOOTS is one of the most 


well-known co-responder 


models across the nation. 


The Crisis Assistance 


Helping Out On The Streets 


program provides a unique 


response to non-violent 


situations. The (911) 


dispatcher is trained to route 


non-violent calls with a 


mental health crisis 


component to a team of a 


medic and a crisis worker to 


respond, assess, stabilize 


and transport to the next step 


in treatment. 







dispatch system, when it is 
deemed a police presence is 
not required. 
 


https://whitebirdclinic.org/wha


t-is-cahoots/ 


Albuquerque and Bernalillo 


County partner in a co-


responder mobile crisis team 


(MCT) model.  A trained law 


enforcement officer and a 


trained master’s level 


behavioral health clinician 


respond to calls in the 911 


system.  An officer in the 


field can call and request an 


MCT team. 


https://www.bernco.gov 


The Franklin County PA 


Mental Health Co-responder 


program provides for a 


mental health professional to 


accompany police officers on 


mental health crisis situations 


and was recognized for a 


Justice Public Safety 


Achievement Award in 2018 


by the National Association of 


Counties. 


https://franklincountypa.gov/i


ndex.php?section=mental-


health_coresponder 


2. Form a Crisis Services 
Coordinating Committee 
(CSCC), with 
membership sufficiently 
inclusive that consumers 
and family members are 
represented in 
meaningful numbers to 
have a voice and 
meeting often enough to 
build trust, knowledge, 
and organizational 
effectiveness. 


a. Encouraging community 
partnerships to strengthen the 
continuum of care for mental 
health and substance abuse 
services. 
b. Making recommendations 
related to data sharing to 
identify who, when, and where 
people in crisis are served and 
the results of those services, 
while protecting individual 
privacy. 
c. Creating a repository of 
evidence-based practices, 
providing technical assistance 
to providers and law 
enforcement on crisis 
response strategies. 
d. Promoting education and 
awareness of alternative 


Recommendation from 


James Fouts, LSW, Forensic 


Systems Solutions, 


Consultant to the Task Force, 


as part of the final report 


2020. (Appendix A) 


“The CSCC can periodically 


assess and make 


recommendations to the 


overall crisis system. The 


Committee would focus on 


identifying and implementing 


best known strategies for 


crisis care while reducing 


avoidable visits to emergency 


departments and involvement 



https://whitebirdclinic.org/what-is-cahoots/

https://whitebirdclinic.org/what-is-cahoots/

https://www.bernco.gov/

https://nam01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffranklincountypa.gov%2Findex.php%3Fsection%3Dmental-health_coresponder&data=04%7C01%7Cizk22%40psu.edu%7C5e8cfad3381540d9bb0e08d87d368e35%7C7cf48d453ddb4389a9c1c115526eb52e%7C0%7C0%7C637397020571647564%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=2%2B0jXernXUBrveyCgHy%2BFjECAD8GGaO5rIX5lGheIJ8%3D&reserved=0

https://nam01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffranklincountypa.gov%2Findex.php%3Fsection%3Dmental-health_coresponder&data=04%7C01%7Cizk22%40psu.edu%7C5e8cfad3381540d9bb0e08d87d368e35%7C7cf48d453ddb4389a9c1c115526eb52e%7C0%7C0%7C637397020571647564%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=2%2B0jXernXUBrveyCgHy%2BFjECAD8GGaO5rIX5lGheIJ8%3D&reserved=0

https://nam01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffranklincountypa.gov%2Findex.php%3Fsection%3Dmental-health_coresponder&data=04%7C01%7Cizk22%40psu.edu%7C5e8cfad3381540d9bb0e08d87d368e35%7C7cf48d453ddb4389a9c1c115526eb52e%7C0%7C0%7C637397020571647564%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=2%2B0jXernXUBrveyCgHy%2BFjECAD8GGaO5rIX5lGheIJ8%3D&reserved=0





community crisis resources to 
the use of the emergency 
department. 
e. Advocating for policy and 
funding changes to help break 
down barriers associated with 
accessing care. 
 


with the criminal justice 


system.” J. Fouts, Part 2.  


3. Enhance 
communication with 
families in need during 
crisis, including 
connecting with groups 
that specifically serve 
marginalized populations 
to integrate research-
based practices and 
processes that improve 
communication to and 
among marginalized 
groups and increasing 
accessibility to mental 
health crisis resources 
for families/supporters of 
those in crisis. 
 


Using data and best practices, 
assess the effectiveness of 
current methods of 
communicating with families in 
crisis across all groups and 
develop strategies that employ 
cultural responsiveness in 
differentiating approaches 
where indicated to increase 
accessibility for vulnerable and 
underrepresented groups. 


Examining our 


communication approaches 


with families in a culturally 


responsive way increases 


understanding of beliefs, 


values, perceptions, and 


attitudes that impact seeking 


and responding to treatment, 


especially mental health 


treatment. 


4. Enhance current 
communication/collabora
tion among these four 
internal entities in the 
mental health crisis 
response system by 
establishing a formal, 
quarterly meeting of 
Centre County Mental 
Health/Intellectual 
Disabilities/Early 
Intervention/Drug & 
Alcohol 
(MH/ID/EI/D&A), Crisis 
Intervention (Center for 
Community Resources), 
Delegate services 
(Service Access 
Management, Inc.), Law 
Enforcement, and 
Mount Nittany Medical 
Center Emergency 
Department (ED case 
manager and Behavioral 
Health inpatient case 
manager). 
 


a. Coordinating services where 
possible. 
b. Capitalizing on resource 
allocations, grants, funding 
opportunities. 
c. Sharing data on effective 
practices/processes/intake 
tools and forms. 
d. Standardizing forms where 
appropriate to improve intake 
processes by more 
consistency of information to 
providers, less repetition for 
client/families, and shared 
records by involved providers, 
where appropriate and 
permitted. 
 


Elevate the purpose of this 


ongoing committee to include 


primary responsibility for the 


tasks described in this 


recommendation by the task 


force and other related areas 


as assigned with a goal of 


strengthening working 


relationships across the 


system.    







5. Create standardized 
protocols, Best Practices 
in Mental Health Crisis 
Intervention, across the 
larger system, including 
911 dispatch, Crisis 
Intervention (CCR), 
Delegate services (SAM, 
Inc.), mental health 
transport provider(s), 
Centre County 
MH/ID/EI/D&A, Law 
Enforcement, MNMC 
Emergency Department, 
and the Meadows. 
 


Expand the cooperative work 
to include those involved in 
parts of the larger crisis 
system to explore 
standardized protocols to 
increase effective practices 
and efficient procedures for the 
consumer. 


Review best practice 


professional standards for 


opportunities to standardize 


and coordinate protocols. 


Substance Abuse and Mental 


Health Services 


Administration (SAMHSA), 


US Dept. of Health and 


Human Services.  National 


Guidelines for Behavioral 


Health Crisis Care Best 


Practice Toolkit. 2020 


https://www.samhsa.gov  


6. Develop and 
implement a countywide 
transportation plan for 
those in mental health 
crisis to assist with 
transportation to receive 
crisis services. 
 


There is a significant gap in 
the availability of transportation 
to treatment centers unless a 
medical situation requires an 
ambulance, or police are 
involved, or the mobile crisis 
unit from CCR. This is 
compounded for those in 
poverty or isolated rural areas. 
 


The geographic size of the 


county, the location of mental 


health crisis services, and 


lack of a transportation 


system restrict accessibility to 


individuals and families.  


7. Identify and develop 
additional community 
resources available for 
those not held for mental 
health treatment, 
including those who 
refuse inpatient services. 
 


Centre County has a basic 
network of community 
resources.  As mental health 
needs have grown, resources 
and outpatient providers have 
diminished causing delays in 
access to services.   
In addition, the following areas 
could be explored: 
Stabilization and Assessment 
Centers, Recovery Response 
Centers, LEAP training, Early 
Psychosis Programming  


Mental Health Services in 


Centre County: A Guide to 


Mental Health Services and 


Support (Purple Book), 2020 


Recommendations from the 


consultant’s report, 


2020.( Appendix A) 


SAMHSA: National 


Guidelines for Behavioral 


Health Crisis Care: Best 


Practice Toolkit, 2020 


https://www.LEAPInstitute.or


g 


Enhancements to Service Systems Through Training, Education, and Data 
Collection 


8. Create and implement 
a plan for 
common/shared 
trainings, where 
appropriate, across 
agencies/departments 
involved in the crisis 
response system. 


a. Develop a common 
language and definitions for 
communication. 
b. Include cultural sensitivity, 
mental health manifestations, 
regulatory and procedural 
knowledge, intersectionality, 


Shared trainings enhance 


communication, 


understanding, and 


opportunities for collaboration 


across agencies charged with 


varying responsibilities in the 


crisis system. 







 de-escalation, and intervention 
strategies. 
 


9. Build a data collection, 
repository, and sharing 
system to be used for 
evaluating the 
effectiveness of the 
current system, while 
observing required and 
ethical privacy practices. 
 


a. Census data 
b. Sociodemographic 
characteristics 
c. Triggers of crisis patterns 
d. Pre-existing mental health 
conditions and episodes 
e. Advanced directives 
f. Arrest records 
g. Mortality 
h. ED visits/duration 
i. Distance to inpatient beds 
 


The Health Insurance 


Portability and Accountability 


Act (HIPAA) of 1976, the 


Privacy Rule (2000), is “to 


assure an individual’s health 


information is properly 


protected, while allowing the 


flow of health information 


needed to provide and 


promote high quality health 


care and to protect the 


public’s health and well-


being.”   It does permit 


certain important uses of the 


information that could assist 


in this recommendation. (See 


Summary of the HIPAA 


Privacy Rule, US Dept. of 


Health and Human Services.) 


http://www.hhs.gov 


Enhancements to Service Systems Through Advocacy 


10. Identify limitations or 
barriers and advocate for 
updating of the PA 
Mental Health 
Procedures Act (MHPA, 
1976). 
 


Examine trusted professional 
reports for analyses and 
recommendations, e.g., 
Grading the States: An 
Analysis of U.S. Psychiatric 
Treatment Laws by the 
Treatment Advocacy Center, 
which includes Pennsylvania 
recommendations re: extended 
timelines for involuntary 
commitments; changing 
language and clearer guidance 
for practitioners, law 
enforcement, and families; 
expand criteria for danger to 
self and danger to others, 
grave disability and psychiatric 
deterioration. 
 


Grading the States: An 


Analysis of U.S. Psychiatric 


Treatment Laws, Treatment 


Advocacy Center, 2020. 


https://www.treatmentadvoca


cycenter.org 


 


 


11. Advocate for 
increased state/local 
funding for additional 
adult and adolescent 
inpatient hospital beds, 
including co-occurring 
substance abuse and 


MNMC has 12 inpatient beds 
for patients 18 and over; the 
Meadows has 119 total beds 
serving patients 4 and over in 
various units. There are 7 beds 
reserved for Centre County in 
the state hospital in Danville. 


When there is no availability 
locally, a bed search is 
conducted across the state to 
find a space, requiring 
distance transportation for 
patients, restricted family 
support, and out-of-county 



https://www.treatmentadvocacycenter.org/

https://www.treatmentadvocacycenter.org/





serious mental illness 
(SMI). 


 


1200 patients made mental 
health visits to MNMC ED in 
2020; approximately 2/3 were 
admitted. 14% of those 
admissions were out of the 
area. 
The population of Centre 
County is 162,000. 
 


providers less familiar with 
local follow-up supports. 
 


 


B. Separate Key Recommendations 


Recommendation Explanation Supporting Information 


Crisis Intervention (Mobile) and Delegate Services 
Enhancement Through Coordination of Care and Training 


1. Develop and 
implement practices 
assuring all relevant 
individual information is 
consistently identified, 
gathered, organized, and 
communicated to 
involved Law 
Enforcement and 
Emergency Department 
personnel. 
 


Both providers are new to the 
Centre County crisis system in 
2020. To increase 
communication and 
collaboration, these 
recommendations address 
reviewing these three areas 
after this first year of serving 
Centre County for adjustments 
and enhancements. While 
these are addressed to these 
two services, they are 
essential building blocks for 
the overall systemwide effort. 
 


Centre County MH/ID/EI/D&A 


will work with current contracted 


providers of crisis intervention 


and delegate services, Center 


for Community Resources and 


Services Access Management, 


Inc. on these three 


recommendations. 


2. Review and assure 
that all assessment tools, 
interview protocols, and 
practices reflect cultural 
responsiveness and are 
evidence-based. 
 


CCR relies on a set of 
standardized screening 
measures: Columbia Scales, 
NSPL, ACEs, PHQ9 
assessments (depression), 
GAD 7, CANS and 
ANSA. These are used to 
assist in providing information 
relevant to achieving the 
prevention and support goals 
of programs accessed or 
delivered through CCR.  
 


The assessment tools currently 
in use appear to have an 
empirical basis and are 
evidence based for screening 
purposes. The degree to which 
these published assessment 
materials meet the requirements 
for cultural responsiveness is 
still to be determined.  Further 
study is needed regarding the 
validity and cultural 
responsiveness of the interview 
protocols and practices in use. 
 


3. Enhance required 
implicit bias training and 
periodic follow up for all 
Crisis Intervention and 
Delegate Services 
personnel. 
 


Training should include 
components related to 
diversity and cultural 
competence. Training should 
acknowledge the need for 
different norms that can 
correct for under diagnosis or 


The assessment systems also 
need to incorporate recognition 
of background information or 
insights from those who know 
the individual well, helping to 
explain deviation from normal or 
typical coping behavior." 







under recognition of problems 
or disability among certain 
individuals, such as people of 
color. 
 


 


Law Enforcement 
Enhancement Through Coordination of Care and Training 


1. Enhance the newly 
implemented jail 
diversion program and 
services, including 
supporting the creation 
of a mental health court 
in Centre County. 


The goal of the Behavioral and 
Mental Health Diversionary 
program is to identify persons 
with serious mental illnesses 
who are involved with the 
criminal justice system and 
redirect them from traditional 
criminal justice pathways to 
mental health treatment 
systems; thereby, reducing 
police contact and recidivism.  
By successfully completing the 
program, individuals avoid the 
negative consequences that 
criminal records can have 
when they reenter society and 
the workplace. 
 
Mental health courts provide a 
team of court staff and mental 
health professionals to 
screen/assess defendants, 
develop treatment plans and 
supervise offenders. Tracking 
results will assess its 
effectiveness over time.  
 


Centre County Behavioral and 


Mental Health Diversionary 


Program (BMHD). 2020 


Developed by the Centre 


County District Attorney’s Office 


through feedback and input by 


the Centre County Court, Centre 


County Probation and Parole, 


and Centre County Defense 


Bar. 


Twenty-three counties have 


mental health courts in PA that 


partner key justice system 


officials with mental health 


system leaders to divert 


offenders with severe mental 


illness into a judicially 


supervised program that 


includes community-based 


treatment.  


 https://www.pacourts.us 


2. Enhance law 
enforcement training in 
mental health. 
 


a. Continuing Crisis 
Intervention Training (CIT) 
b. Mental health law (302s) 
c. Cultural competency 
d. Implicit bias 
e. Response to special 
populations 
f. Available mental health 
resources 
g. De-escalation and crisis 
intervention 


97% of Centre County police are 


trained in CIT. This is the largest 


percentage of any county in PA.  


(Consultant’s report) It provides 


40 hours of training in crisis 


techniques, de-escalation and 


special populations. CIT 


includes an annual 


reinforcement component. 


Trainings in the mentioned 


areas are included in current 


programs; the recommendation 


is to continue and to build upon 


this strong base.  



https://www.pacourts.us/





3. Support the full 
adoption of the Mental 
Health Crisis Best 
Practices Guide for Law 
Enforcement developed 
through the District 
Attorney’s Office in July 
2020. 
 


The guideline aids Centre 
County law enforcement and 
mental health services in 
recognition and response to 
persons undergoing and 
dealing with mental illness 
and/or an emotional or 
behavioral crisis. In these 
situations, individuals are often 
in a fearful state and have 
difficulty processing 
information during contacts 
with police officers. 
 


Behavioral & Mental Health 


Crises Response Best Practices 


Guidelines, SAMHSA 2020 


Developed by the Centre 


County District Attorney’s Office 


through cooperation with Centre 


County Mental Health Services, 


Centre County Law 


Enforcement and First 


Responder Agencies. 


4. Develop a procedure, 
based on the creation of 
a mental health checklist, 
to aid 911 dispatchers to 
divert appropriate calls 
from police to mental 
health services for first 
response. 
 


Crisis responses often begin 
with a call to 911. Having the 
right service response to the 
right location with the right 
resources and information is a 
goal of the dispatch center. 
When dispatching services, it 
is the policy to dispatch police 
along with any other service. 
 


There are programs that have 


specially trained their 


dispatchers to determine if a call 


is a safety issue or a support 


issue, e.g., Binghamton, NY, 


Broome County, NY Emergency 


Dispatch/911 Center.  


MNMC Emergency Department 
Enhancements Through Coordination of Care 


1. Enhance MNMC 
Emergency Department 
and other hospital 
services care, 
management and 
processes for mental 
health crisis patient 
response and overall 
care by creating the 
Behavioral Health 
Interdisciplinary 
Committee. The internal 
committee will consist of 
the ED lead physician, 
the Behavioral Health 
(BH) psychiatrist, the ED 
manager, the BH 
manager, and lead BH 
case manager. An 
internal or external 
consulting liaison 
member will provide 
resources on inclusivity 
and cultural 
responsiveness. The 
charge to the committee 
includes: 


a. Identifying and adopting 
inclusive and evidence-based 
practices to enhance positive 
patient outcomes. 
b. Enhancing two-way 
communication with families. 
c. Conducting internal clinical 
case reviews and data 
collection, relative to diagnosis 
and determination, to seek 
opportunities to improve 
practice. 
d. Exploring evidence-based 
processes, technologies (i.e. 
telemedicine), and protocols 
e. Identifying and reviewing 
data to assess the 
effectiveness of the ED’s 
mental health crisis response 
system. 
f. Assessing ongoing 
education and professional 
development needs to include, 
but not limited to, mental 
health crisis diagnosis and 
response, crisis intervention 
and de-escalation, cultural 


Joint State Government 


Commission, PA General 


Assembly, July, 2020 “Report 


Summary in Response to House 


Resolution 268 of 2019 


Behavioral Health Care System 


Capacity in Pennsylvania and Its 


Impact on Hospital Emergency 


Departments and Patient 


Health.” 


http://jsg.legis.state.pa.us/ 


This committee will bring 


together in a formalized process 


those responsible for 


interactions with patients and 


families entering the mental 


health crisis system through the 


Emergency Department and will 


focus on further development, 


coordination, and consultation in 


those areas identified. In 


addition, outreach to law 


enforcement for standardizing 



http://jsg.legis.state.pa.us/





sensitivity, implicit bias, 
inclusivity, special populations, 
substance abuse, serious 
mental illness (SMI), HIPAA 
applications, 302 
regulations/decisions. 
g. Reviewing policies and 
procedures, e.g. develop a 
consistent intake process and 
HIPAA compliant feedback 
loop for police bringing a 
person in crisis to the ED, as 
well as family/others. 
h. Reviewing and 
implementing applicable 
recommendations in the PA 
General Assembly’s Joint 
State Government 
Commission Report, released 
in July 2020. 
 


protocols for Emergency 


Department visits with mental 


health related situations. 


 


C. Implementation Plan 


Recommendation Explanation Supporting Information 


1. Create an 
implementation plan by 
operationalizing the Task 
Force recommendations. 


a. Identifying and assigning 
responsibility for action 
b. Meeting with partners to 
hand off recommendations 
c. Developing action plans 
and timelines for 
implementation. 
d. Estimating resources 
needed (staff, equipment, 
space) and possible sources. 
e. Monitoring progress 
through data and metrics. 
f. Establishing a strategy for 
reporting progress and 
effective results of 
implementation. 
 


To expedite the beginning of 


examination and action on 


the Task Force 


recommendations, the Centre 


County Commissioners and 


the State College Borough 


Council, upon reception of the 


report can design plans 


around the organizing steps.   


2. Form a core subgroup 
of the Mental Health 
Crisis System Task 
Force that will meet 
quarterly, beginning in 
January 2021, to review 
progress made and data 
on the recommendations 


a. Define membership 
b. Develop charge 
c. Review reporting 
mechanisms from responsible 
entities 
d. Provide background to 
implementation teams as 
needed.  


The Task Force can provide 


another voice of support for 


the implementation of the 


enhancements to the Centre 


County Mental Health Crisis 


System. 







provided by the various 
responsible entities. 
 


 


  







CONCLUSION 


 


“Ask what’s possible. Not what’s wrong. Keep asking.” Margaret Wheatley 


 


If implementation is successful, the Task Force believes the recommendations 


submitted in this document will serve to enhance and expand services provided 


through the mental health crisis delivery system in Centre County. It is our belief that 


these key recommendations build on the strong, basic foundation of the many 


services provided to Centre County residents and will provide the next urgent steps 


in enhancing the prevention, intervention, recovery continuum of the overall mental 


health system. 


The urgency lies in the current state of mental health needs, which is outpacing the 


availability and accessibility of those services that we do have. Recruiting and 


retaining workers at all levels of the system is challenging. Funding for programming 


is limited, leading to closing or loss of outpatient service providers. Local inpatient 


beds are limited. Wait times for appointments for psychiatrists and psychologists can 


be weeks. Training must keep pace with emerging understanding of the many facets 


of serious mental illness, implicit bias, and racial inequity as they differentially impact 


effective treatment and interactions with law enforcement and the court system. 


Laws governing aspects of treatment (MHPA and HIPAA) must be re-examined and 


updated to address unintended consequences.  


If we truly desire more positive outcomes for those in need, we will continue asking 


the assigned responsible parties, agencies and committees to answer the following 


questions as part of their continuous quality improvements; what are we doing for all 


those who seek assistance through our systemwide crisis intervention resources 


during their most vulnerable times? How are we assisting their families and 


supporting those who love, care and entrust them to our crisis service providers? In 


what ways are our services inclusive and representative of the diversity of 


consumers accessing our services? How are we proactively and creatively adapting 


to the diversity of needs on behalf of those who cannot effectively advocate for 


themselves? What are we doing through training and education to support those 


providing direct crisis service care to meet their responsibilities?  


Together, we believe our community and our service providers can work effectively 


to both advocate and deliver excellent care during a myriad of challenges in the 


upcoming year. It will be one important step at a time. 


 


“Real change. Enduring change happens one step at a time.” Ruth Bader 


Ginsburg 







 


 


“With non-existent or inadequate crisis care, costs escalate due to an 


overdependence on restrictive, longer-term hospital stays, hospital readmissions, 


overuse of law enforcement and human tragedies that result from a lack of access 


to care. Extremely valuable psychiatric inpatient assets are over-burdened with 


referrals that might be best-supported with less intrusive, less expensive services 


and supports. In too many communities, the “crisis system” has been unofficially 


handed over to law enforcement; sometimes with devastating outcomes. The 


current approach to crisis care is patchwork and delivers minimal treatment for 


some people while others, often those who have not been engaged in care, fall 


through the cracks: resulting in multiple hospitals readmissions, life in the criminal 


justice system, homelessness, early death and even suicide.” 


National Guidelines for Crisis Care, SAMHSA, US DHH, 2020 


 


 


  







REFERENCES 


 


(More references in this report will be included at the final step) 


National Alliance on Mental Illness (2020). https://www.nami.org/mhstats 


 


  



https://www.nami.org/mhstats





APPENDIX A: FSS Consultant Report 


 


Part 1. Centre County Crisis System Reformation Recommendations 


 


Centre County Crisis System Reformation Recommendations 


In 2019 Centre County created a Task Force on Mental Health Crisis Services to: 
“conduct a comprehensive review of mental health crisis services across the County 
and to produce a detailed description of this crisis system along with 
recommendations to enhance and strengthen crisis services in Centre County for 
individuals with mental illness.”                                               


Centre County contracted with Forensic System Solutions (FSS) to work with the 
Task Force to develop a System Process Mapping. That report was submitted in 
April of 2020. Due to the COVID-19 further meetings were hampered. As part of that 
Report FSS staff has created the following list of recommendations to be explored by 
the Task Force. These recommendations are based on several factors including the 
rural nature of Centre County, the presence of Pennsylvania State University, 
already existing services and resources, and the unique Crisis Intervention Team 
model.   


In February of 2020 the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration (SAMHSA) released the National Guidelines for Behavioral Health 
Crisis Care Best Practice Toolkit. We’ve attempted to follow the Toolkit 
recommendations as much as possible given the unique setup of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s process of requiring only minimal standards of 
services and counties deciding individually to add additional services.    


Essential Principles 


A. The effectiveness of a comprehensive crisis system is dependent on the 
outpatient system of treatment. An easily accessible, all-inclusive system that 
meets the needs of those in recovery affects the inflow and the outflow from 
the crisis system. A strong outpatient system of care will assist in preventing 
crises, provide a source of diversion from more restrictive settings and be a 
reliable source of aftercare treatment. Without a strong system of case 
management and treatment services you can expect to have a higher level of 
need for crisis services, higher contact with law enforcement and the criminal 
justice system, and longer inpatient stays.  


There must be a meaningful effort to promote these services in the 
community, especially to Consumers, Families, Police, other Criminal Justice 
Agencies, Crisis Intervention, and Emergency Rooms.   


B. Peer and family member input is essential. The model of “Nothing About Us 
Without Us” is an effective force in creating an all-inclusive recovery oriented 
system.  It can lead to a powerful force in the fight against stigma and 







advocacy for adequate funding and resources. The recovery model has 2 
primary premises. 


a. Recovery from a Mental illness is possible. 


b. That recovery becomes most effective when directed by the person in 
recovery. 


C. Trauma is a huge factor in the lives of those in recovery. A system that 
understands and takes into account the effects of trauma in the lives of those 
it serves will see much better outcomes.   


D. Crisis services must be more than an assessment for hospitalization. The 
S.A.L.T.S. model has been very helpful in strengthening that recovery model 
in Crisis Services. Stabilizing and deescalating the heightened emotions of 
the situation allows for more a deliberate and strategic approach to dealing 
with the crisis. Assessing the strengths and needs of the person in crisis then 
allows for the development of a plan for the resolution. Linking the person up 
with an appropriate level of service to assist them in their recovery is the next 
step. Teaching the person in crisis coping skills, resource procurement and 
self-advocacy skills allows them to maintain their progress towards recovery.  
Leaving individuals with a Safety plan helps prepare them for dealing with the 
next crisis.   


Centre County should develop a Crisis Services Coordinating Committee that can 
periodically assess and make recommendations to the Crisis system. The 
Committee would focus on identifying and implementing best known strategies for 
crisis care while reducing avoidable visits to emergency departments and 
involvement with the criminal justice system. This includes: 


• Recommending and establishing community partnerships to strengthen the 
continuum of care for mental health and substance abuse services. 


• Promoting education and awareness of alternative community resources to 
the use of emergency departments. 


• Making recommendations related to data sharing to help identify who, when 
and where people in crisis are served, and what the results of those services 
are. 


• Creating a repository of evidence-based practices and providing technical 
assistance to Local Management Entities-Managed Care Organizations 
(LME/MCOs), law enforcement and providers on how to respond to crisis 
scenarios. 


• Recommending legislative, policy and funding changes to help break down 
barriers associated with accessing care. 


• Membership on this Crisis Service Coordinating Committee must be 
sufficiently inclusive to assure Consumers and Family Members are 
represented in meaningful numbers so as not to be overwhelmed by those 
“professionals” who might have pre-ordained ideas of how the system should 
be organized and managed.   


• Meetings should be frequent at the outset to build trust and mutual 
understanding of the issues at hand, with the potential of reducing frequency 
as the group gels and the initial needs are reasonably addressed.    







 
Service Components of a best or promising model of Crisis Intervention 


 


911 Emergency Dispatch - Most crisis responses begin with a call to either 911 or 
the Crisis Hotline. Having the right service respond to the right location with the right 
resources is a goal of the 911 Dispatch Center. When dispatching services it’s the 
policy of the 911 center to dispatch Police along with any other service. For most 
calls related to a mental health crisis Police are not really required.   


In most cases a telephone conversation with a crisis worker can resolve or at least 
stabilize the crisis until other resources can get there. If the dispatcher believes the 
call is more appropriate for a referral to crisis they give the caller the crisis number, 
tell them to call and end the call.   


There are programs around the country that have specially trained their Dispatchers 
to determine if a call is a safety issue or a support issue. They have the ability to 
directly transfer a call to Crisis and hold on to the call until Crisis triages and 
determines the situation as not needing Police dispatch. 


“When a call goes into the Emergency Communication Center—911 
dispatch—operators can be trained to triage those calls and identify 
whether the person in crisis is a danger to her or himself or an immediate 
threat to someone else. If not, then the person can be passed along to 
appropriate care in the mental health crisis system through a warm 
handoff to the crisis line. At that point, says Bruno, the crisis line can also 
do a secondary triage and determine whether it’s still a safe situation. If 
they decide that it’s unsafe, Bruno says they can do a warm handoff back 
to law enforcement, and law enforcement can send out Crisis 
Intervention Team (CIT) trained officers to go out and respond to those 
situations. “ (CIT P. 114) 


(Broome County, New York Emergency Dispatch/911 Center, 153 Lt Vanwinkle Dr, 
Binghamton, NY 13905, Phone: (607) 778-2170) 


Warmline – Warmlines are a telephone line that People can call to talk to someone 
with lived experience with behavioral health issues. They are support lines operated 
by trained Peer specialists that are volunteers or paid staff. The Warmline is strength 
based, recovery oriented and trauma informed. Warmlines assist people in achieving 
their recovery goals. They are not suicide hotlines but can be part of the Crisis 
Hotline structure. The Warmline should be able to provide and receive warm 
handoffs to and from the crisis hotline and can collaborate with crisis hotline staff.  
Typically they have limited hours.   


Warmlines can assist the crisis system in dealing with those callers needing basic 
support and to talk through things rather than be in a major crisis. Some consumers 
are afraid to call Crisis due to the fear of being 302’d or are looking for support and 
not assessment for hospitalization.  See So You Want to Start a Peer-Run 
WarmlinE? In the resource list. 


 



https://www.google.com/search?rlz=1C1GCEU_enUS889US889&sxsrf=ALeKk00foQakmoBT8N9EWSYZz7TDdVDiGw:1594915918102&q=broome+county+emergency+services+phone&ludocid=5641581818635344565&sa=X&ved=2ahUKEwify_rllNLqAhVFoHIEHV8FAfgQ6BMwE3oECBMQAg

https://www.google.com/search?q=Broome+County%2C+NY+911+center&rlz=1C1GCEU_enUS889US889&oq=Broome+County%2C+NY+911+center&aqs=chrome..69i57j0.12627j1j8&sourceid=chrome&ie=UTF-8





Mobile – Mobile Crisis Intervention Teams describe a variety of services that provide 
crisis services wherever they are needed. There are several variants differing in 
team makeup or focus. Typically there are two members on the team. One is a 
member trained in mental health and crisis intervention. Additionally, there can be a 
peer specialist, an emergency medical service professional, law enforcement officer 
or registered nurse with the backup of a virtually connected psychiatrist as a member 
of the team.    


Team Variations –  


CIT - Centre County has a very active and large mandatory attendance CIT trained 
Police Force. Although this is a positive in most cases, especially since the 911 
dispatch system automatically sends Police to all calls for service, not all CIT trained 
officers have the prerequisite compassion, empathy, communication skills, and 
patience required for crisis intervention.   


Most consumers and citizens are anxious around Police Officers. This can escalate 
the anxiety and crisis situation the person is in. I believe everyone in the crisis 
situation would like to limit Police involvement as much as possible.   


Police involvement is required to serve a legally valid 302 warrant, to deal with 
situations that are potentially violent or have other safety risks involved. Other than 
these situations most crisis situations can be dealt with by a supportive telephone 
call or crisis team visit. Specialty training is needed for both 911 Dispatch operators 
equipped with warm handoff capabilities as described above Crisis Hotline workers.  
This training will allow both to assess for safety risks and can allow for referrals to 
the Mobile Teams to deal with the Crises more effectively without the aid of Police.   
Due to the rural nature of Centre County and the potential longer response times for 
Mobile Crisis Services, hotline workers must be able to provide telephone de-
escalation and support services. If it’s felt that the additional wait time will escalate 
the situation a CIT officer can be called to respond. 


24/7 Mobile Team hybrids to explore:   


Virtual Mobile Crisis Intervention: This is a Police response used when mobile crisis 
units are not readily available or after a crisis is de-escalated. Police are equipped 
with iPads that can connect the person in crisis to a trained crisis intervention worker 
located at the hotline. The crisis worker can communicate with the Police Officer and 
the person in crisis providing de-escalation, assessment and disposition plans.   


(New Perspectives Crisis Services, Snydersville, Pa. (570) 992-0879.) 
https://www.rhd.org/program/new-perspectives-crisis-residence/ 
(Jim Thorpe, Pa Police Department (570) 325-9111) 


CAHOOTS (Crisis Assistance Helping Out On The Streets): A Crisis Intervention 
program out of Eugene, Oregon. (911) “Dispatchers are trained to recognize non-
violent situations with a behavioral health component and route those calls to 
CAHOOTS. A (mobile crisis) team will respond, assess the situation and provide 
immediate stabilization in case of urgent medical need or psychological crisis, 
assessment, information, referral, advocacy, and, when warranted, transportation to 


the next step in treatment.” https://whitebirdclinic.org/what-is-cahoots/ 



https://www.rhd.org/program/new-perspectives-crisis-residence/

https://whitebirdclinic.org/what-is-cahoots/





Medical Mobile Crisis- This team utilizes the services of a registered nurse and a 
masters prepared crisis worker with the ability for immediate consultation with a 
psychiatrist. The psychiatrist can interview the person in crisis, make 
recommendations and give verbal orders for prescribing medications. The team can 
transport the person to the pharmacy to pick up their medications. The RN could also 
discuss side effects or other minor medical issues with the person rather than 
transporting them to the ER. 


(See PA Crisis Intervention Regulations 5240.104 Subchapter E for Medical Mobile 
Program Description) 


Acute Case Management – Short term wrap around type services provided to a 
person in crisis and their family post crisis incident. The service further assesses the 
needs, links with needed services and provides for support and assistance in 
accessing basic needs. This service can be accessed through an Assertive 
Community Treatment Team (ACT) or a follow up crisis service. (Philadelphia 
Children’s Crisis Response Center https://www.philachildrenscrc.com/ ) 


Stabilization and Assessment Centers (SAC)- The SAC are facilities whose general 
purpose is to stabilize and assess a person in crisis when their needs are of a more 
acute nature than hotline or mobile interventions can provide.  Some are collocated 
with other Crisis Intervention Services and some are collocated with a hospital 
emergency room.   


23 Hour bed - 23‐hour crisis stabilization provides ongoing assessment (beyond the 
initial emergency psychiatric evaluation), intervention, and clinical determination for 
level of care. 23‐hour crisis stabilization is appropriate for individuals requiring further 
intervention before a level of care determination can be made, particularly those who 
present as suicidal or psychotic secondary to substance use, as well as those whose 
initial clinical presentation suggests that medical necessity for another level of care 
will emerge via brief treatment. 23‐hour crisis stabilization aims to provide one or 
more of the following:  


• Amelioration of condition    
• Resolution of acute intoxication  
• Further diagnostic testing such as a urine drug screen, lab tests, and monitoring for 
the emergence of withdrawal symptoms 
• Collateral information gathering to clarify history, assess level of support, determine 
access to safe housing, corroborate the individual’s report regarding precipitating 
events and to help engage in treatment   
 • Provision of medication or other clinical intervention and monitoring of response   
 • Level of care determination 
CBH 23 hour Program Description (https://dbhids.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/12/23-Hour-Crisis-Stabilization-_23-Hour-Bed_.pdf) 
 
Crisis Residence - The crisis residential service provides residential 
accommodations and continuous supervision for individuals in crisis. It is a bundled 
service that includes crisis stabilization and intervention, assessment, psychiatric 
evaluation and medication, short term treatment, linkage to needed services, safety 
planning and acute case management service. The service provides a temporary 



https://www.philachildrenscrc.com/

https://dbhids.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/23-Hour-Crisis-Stabilization-_23-Hour-Bed_.pdf

https://dbhids.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/23-Hour-Crisis-Stabilization-_23-Hour-Bed_.pdf





place to stay for consumers who need to be removed from a stressful environment.   
(See PA Crisis Intervention Regulations 5240.104 Subchapter F for Crisis 
Residential Program Description) 


Fusion Model – Crisis Retreat/Living Room. Programs that welcome anyone from 2 
to 23 hours at a time. These programs are highly Recovery oriented. They use a 
high number of Peer Specialists (from 25 to 35% of staff) and act as a welcoming 
center for those in crisis. People are fed, clothed and left to sleep in a safe place.  
Then they are assessed and linked up with services. Often the person is followed  
up for 30 to 45 days. The only exclusion for services are safety issues such as need 
for detox or violence. Police and Mobile Teams are trained to assess for 
appropriateness of referral.    


(Recovery Response Center 659 E. Chestnut Hill Road, Newark, DE 19713 Tel: 
(302) 318-6070) Recovery Innovations https://riinternational.com/crisis-services/ 


 Emergency Department Telepsychiatry Consultation Service: The telepsychiatry 
consultation service provides availability to psychiatric consultation from 18 to 24 
hours a day. This provides video consult between ED doctors and psychiatrists and 
psychiatric evaluations and assessments. Doctors would review patient records prior 
to video interview. This type of service has consistently lowered inpatient 
admissions, resulted in shorter ED stays and higher rates of follow up to aftercare 
services. The program allows for ED doctors more time to work on ED physical 
medicine issues. 


Resources: 


Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA): 
NATIONAL GUIDELINES FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH CRISIS CARE: Best 
Practice Toolkit, 2020 


SAMHSA: PRACTICE GUIDELINES: Core Elements for Responding to Mental 
Health Crises, 2009 


Pennsylvania Office of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services (OMHSAS): 
CRISIS INTERVENTION WORKGROUP: Crisis Intervention Services 
Transformation Recommendations, 2011 


CIT, International: CRISIS INTERVENTION TEAM (CIT) PROGRAMS: A Best 
Practice Guide for Transforming Community Responses to Mental Health Crises, 
2019 


The Nationa1 Empowerment Center and The Nationa1 Menta1 Hea1th Consumers' 
Se1f-He1p C1earinghouse:  
SO YOU WANT TO START A PEER-RUN WARMLINE?: A Guide to Developing and 
Maintaining a Sustainable Warmlinehttps://power2u.org/wp-
content/uploads/2018/03/Warmline-Guide.pdf 
 
 
Submitted 7/23/2020  


James Fouts, LSW 



https://riinternational.com/crisis-services/

https://power2u.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Warmline-Guide.pdf

https://power2u.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Warmline-Guide.pdf





 


 
FSS     Forensic Systems Solutions  


A Core Program of FTAC  


 


  


 


The Mission of the Centre County, 


Pennsylvania Task Force on Mental 


Health Crisis Services is to: “conduct a 


comprehensive review of mental health 


crisis services across the County and to 


produce a detailed description of this 


crisis system along with 


recommendations to enhance and 


strengthen crisis services in Centre 


County for individuals with mental 


illness.” 


Mental Health Task Force 


Descriptive Report on the 


Centre County Crisis 


Intervention System 
      


 


FSS     Forensic Systems Solutions 
 


A Core Program of Family Training and Advocacy 


Center 


520 Christopher Columbus Blvd. 


Philadelphia, Pa 19123 


www.forensicsystemssolutions.org 


 



http://www.forensicsystemssolutions.org/





 


Centre County, Pennsylvania Mental Health Task Force Descriptive 


Report on the Crisis Intervention System 


In 2019 Centre County created a Task Force on Mental Health Crisis Services to: “conduct a comprehensive 


review of mental health crisis services across the County and to produce a detailed description of this crisis 


system along with recommendations to enhance and strengthen crisis services in Centre County for individuals 


with mental illness.”                                               


Centre County contracted with Forensic System Solutions (FSS) to work with the Task Force to develop a 


System Process Mapping.  A visual flow chart was completed showing each of the steps a person in crisis 


could go through.  The flow chart outlined five stages: 


   


1. First contact with Crisis/Police/Emergency Department (ED) to the resolution of the crisis or the 


decision for voluntary assessment at ED or 302 petitions, 


2. ED evaluation to decision of discharge from ED, voluntary inpatient admission, or 302 commitment and 


hospitalization, 


3. Hospital admission to discharge, voluntary admission or decision for 303 petitions, 


4. 303 petitions to Mental Health Review Officer (MHRO) decision, and 


5. Discharge, voluntary admission, outpatient commitment or continued hospitalization to hospital 


discharge. 


 


Initially the plan was to map all 5 stages of the process.  Due to time constraints, the nature of Centre County 


activity mirroring the Penn State University Calendar, and the untimely death of Billie Willits, the original 


Chairperson of the Task Force, a decision was made to limit the scope of the mapping to the first two stages.  


Emphasis was to be placed on first contact with Crisis/Police/Emergency Department (ED) to the resolution of 


the crisis or voluntary inpatient admission or 302 commitment and hospitalization. 


The Process Mapping creates a picture of the existing system.  The mapping is not be a critique nor a 


satisfaction survey, but instead describes how the system is seen and experienced by members of the 


community and those working within the system.   


Members of the Task Force participated in the work of creating templates to be used in interviewing those 


involved in the crisis system.  Sub committees were created based on subject matter knowledge, experience 


with the specific stages or interest in working with that group.  Boiler plate templates were supplied by FSS 


and the sub committees enhanced them by making them more specific to the Centre County System.   


The sub committees were then tasked with identifying the agencies or individuals to be interviewed within their 


assigned stages.  Subcommittee members were assigned the responsibility of completing interviews using the 


questionnaires.  Due to the complications listed above subcommittee members were not able to start the 


interviews and a decision by the Task Force leadership was for FSS personnel to complete the interviews.   


Interviews were held between mid-December 2019 and mid-February 2020.   


All interviews were considered confidential and individual identifying information was not gathered.  A total 


of 62 interviews were completed.  Family members and consumers were self-identified and voluntary.   Staff 







 


from involved agencies were assigned by their administration.  Interview times ranged from 20 minutes to 1 


hour. 


Interviewees Makeup: 


SURVEY RESPONDENTS 


Category Interview 


Participants 


Additional Information 


Family Members 14 These families had 37 separate crisis contacts 


Consumers 6 These consumers had 26 separate crisis contacts 


Provider Agency Representatives 4 These provider agencies had 14 crisis contacts 


CanHelp staff 5 CanHelp is 


CCR Administration 3 CCR is 


Service Access Management (SAM)  SAM is 


Nittany Health Psychiatric Emergency 


Department 


5 Interviews involved Physicians, Nurses, Case  


Managers 


 


Police Departments 14 PSP, Patton, Ferguson and State College Departments 


Centre County 911 4  


Centre County MH/ID/EI and Substance Abuse 2  


Centre County Correctional Facility 3 Interviews involved Warden, Psychiatrist and Registered 


Nurse 


 


See Appendix 1.  Flow Chart – Stages 0ne and Two 


A preliminary report on the findings of the interviews was presented to the Task Force at the February 20, 2020 


meeting.  The following information is a summary of the findings.   


See Appendix 2.  Flow Chart – Person in Crisis to Social Support Resolution  


Social Support Resolution 


Involvement in a mental health “Crisis Intervention System” begins with the recognition by a person, or by 


those around that person, that they are experiencing “an immediate stress producing situation which causes 


acute problems of disturbed thought, behavior, mood or social relationships requiring immediate intervention.” 


(PA Title 55, Chapter 5240).  


In Centre County the person experiencing a crisis has several options for working towards resolution of that 


crisis.  Those individuals who recognize the need for assistance can call upon their own social support systems 


(Family, Friends, and Peers) for assistance.  Gaining the support and objective viewpoints of others can be 







 


helpful in dealing with a crisis.  These supports can also point the way to professional therapeutic supports 


including outpatient or inpatient treatment services.   


See Appendix 3.  Flow Chart – Person in Crisis through Outpatient Services  


Mental Health Services 


There are a range of services available to assist in resolving a mental health situation.  A Manual developed by 


the Centre County MH/ID/EI and Drug and Alcohol Services lists the services available in Centre County 


(https://centrecountypa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2100/Resource-Book-2019-revised?bidId=).  The Manual 


includes services paid for by the individual, by private insurance, and by public insurance such as Medicaid.   


In Centre County, the Medicaid behavioral health managed care entity is Community Care Behavioral Health 


Organization (CCBH). CCBH is responsible for managing the behavioral health needs of individuals who are 


eligible for Medicaid Services.  For individuals that have no insurance or are underinsured MH/ID/EI and 


Drug and Alcohol Services can manage services through contracted agencies.   


Outpatient  


The primary service to address behavioral health challenges is Outpatient Treatment Services which includes 


individual and group counseling as well as medication management.  It was reported that new referrals to the 


Outpatient system in Centre County can expect to wait about 2 weeks to see an outpatient therapist and between 


2 and 6 weeks to see a psychiatrist.   


There is a Mobile Medication Management Team, which serves adults “who experience difficulties 


progressing toward wellness due to the inconsistent adherence to a prescribed medication regimen.” It is a 


recovery focused service that enables individuals to be educated about their medications and trained to develop 


skills to manage their medication effectively in order to control symptoms and increase community tenure.” 


Another service is Psychiatric Rehabilitation which helps individuals to “develop, enhance or retain 


psychiatric stability, social competencies, personal adjustment, and/or independent living competencies.” This 


service is primarily for those adults with Serious Mental Illnesses.   


Case Management Services are also provided to individuals with behavioral health problems in Centre 


County.  Case Managers “work directly with individuals to ensure people receive services and are linked with 


community resources that facilitate their path to wellness.” Administrative Case Management, which provides 


“initial access to services requested and on an as needed basis,” is available to those individuals age 3 and up.  


Blended Case Management is a more intensive service where staff “meets with individuals anywhere from once 


a week to once a month depending on assessed need” and is also available to those 3 or older. 


“Peer Support Services (PSS) are specialized therapeutic interactions provided by a Certified Peer Specialist 


(CPS) who is a self-identified individual who is or has accessed mental and/or behavioral health services. CPS’s 


are trained and certified to offer support and assistance to individuals who are working on their overall wellness. 


The service is designed to “…promote empowerment, self-determination, understanding, coping skills, and 


resiliency through mentoring and service coordination supports that allow individuals age 14 years and older to 


achieve their goals.” 



https://centrecountypa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2100/Resource-Book-2019-revised?bidId=





 


There are two specialty Children’s Services: 


Behavioral Health Rehabilitative Services (BHRS) are treatment and therapeutic interventions prescribed by 


a psychologist or psychiatrist provided on an individual basis in the home, school and community. These 


services include Behavioral Specialist Consultants (BSC), Mobile Therapy (MT), and Therapeutic Support Staff 


(TSS).  A BSC or MT can help develop crisis and safety plans.  It was reported that there is a long waiting 


list for BHRS. 


Family Based Mental Health Services (FBMHS) is an evidence-based service provided in the home by a team 


with at least one master’s level professional. Goals are established by the family and treatment team. To receive 


FBMHS individuals must be diagnosed with serious emotional and/or behavioral disorder; be at-risk of needing 


treatment in a psychiatric hospital, Residential Treatment Facility (RTF), or other out-of-home placement. 


 


See Appendix 4.  Flow Chart – Person in Crisis through Crisis Services  


Crisis Intervention Services 


CCMH contracts with service provider agencies for Crisis Intervention Services.  Until January of 2020 


CCMH contracted with CanHelp, a part of Universal Community Behavioral Health Corporation.  CanHelp 


provided Telephone Crisis, Mobile Crisis and Delegate Services. * Delegate Services are an administrative 


review of the petitions for psychiatric evaluation 


 Starting on January 2, 2020 Crisis Services have been provided by Center for Community Resources and 


Service Access Management, Inc. (SAM) has been contracted to provide the Delegate Services.  


Crisis Intervention Services in PA follow the Proposed Crisis Intervention Regulations. Proposed 55 PA Code, 


Section 5240 [Appendix 8] (proposed in 1993, but never formally approved) and the Mental Health Procedures 


Act (Act of Jul. 9, 1976, P.L. 817, No. 143) [Appendix9].  There have been very few changes in the 


Regulations since they were written in 1993 and in the MHPA since 1976.  There is a current initiative in the 


Office of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services to update the Regulations.   


CanHelp Crisis Services included 24/7/365 Phone Crisis Intervention, Mobile Crisis Intervention and Delegate 


Service.   Since CanHelp is no longer part of the County Services this report will report their history of service 


over the past 3 years. 


Services Provided by CanHelp: 


• 4,786 phone calls per year  (last 3 years);   


• 923 mobiles per year (mobiles steadily decreasing last 3 years) 


• 436 Delegate visits  


• Average time on phone 7.26 minutes.   


• Average Mobile Response time (41 minutes)  


• Average mobile visits - 1 hour 6 minutes 


• Approximately 30% of Mobiles resulted in 302  


• Average time for insurance pre-certification and bed search – 4.5 hours 


• Most common calls were for depression, isolation and support with children 


 







 


The primary mission of the CanHelp telephone, mobile and delegate service was to resolve crises using the least 


restrictive resource available.  Comments made during the interview process by crisis workers, family 


members, consumers, and police officers indicated that there occurred a major shift over the last several years 


of an increasing focus by CanHelp on the use of assessment tools and demographic reports.  This focus on 


paperwork was listed as a major barrier for families and consumers.  The universal impression that it gave was 


that the crisis worker was more interested in the paperwork than in resolving the crisis.   


In January of 2020 CCMH contracted with the Center for Community Resources (CCR) for crisis intervention 


services.  The services include Telephone Services, A Walk-in Crisis Assessment Center and Mental Health 


Library and Mobile Crisis Intervention Team.  CCR will be governed by the same Pa State Regulations as 


CanHelp and will be inspected on a regular basis by OMHSAS and CCMH.   


Since the Service is new, statistics are not yet available.  It is assumed that some basic data such as Response 


Time and number of calls will remain relatively the same as what occurred with CanHelp.    


Changes projected by the CCR Administration include a philosophy of Resolving the Crisis.  They plan to 


break the cycle of “call crisis, go to hospital.”  Diversion from hospitalization will be a high priority.   CCR 


would like to leave everyone with something tangible (such as written information) and a plan on what to do 


next.  Collaboration with providers in serving consumers will be another high priority.  Plans include several 


“meet and greets” and traveling to providers to educate them on the new crisis service.   


 


Walk-in Crisis Assessment Center In addition to a different service delivery philosophy, Centre County has 


also established a new service, Walk-in Crisis Assessment Center (CAC), located at 2100 E. College Avenue in 


State College.  The CAC is an open, inviting, and welcoming environment that has resource materials, and 


staff to assist the person in crisis. Staff will help create a crisis plan, seek out resources and resolve the crisis 


and avoid the need to contact Police, ED or Mobile Crisis.  The CAC is serviced by a bus route.  Mobile 


Crisis and Police will be transporting people to the CAC as well.  Walk in services also include frequent and as 


needed follow up phone calls until the crisis is resolved, the person no longer wants crisis services, or the 


person becomes active with treatment services. Follow up will assess the status and effectiveness of referred 


services 


 


Centre County will be encouraging individuals with behavioral health crises to use the least restrictive services 


first.  Services, in order of encouraged use include – Telephone, Walk-In, Mobile, ED Evaluation, and 


Inpatient hospitalization.   


 


Mobile is an option if the individual is unable to get to the Walk-in Center or if the situation is more agitated.  


There will be a recommendation to go directly to the ED if a person calls the phone crisis service and requests 


hospitalization.  There will no longer be a requirement that they be assessed by Mobile if they are seeking 


voluntary hospitalization.    Delegate service is now split off into Service Access Management, a separate 


agency.   


 


The CCR Telephone services will be focused on crisis stabilization before having a conversation regarding 


demographics and assessments.   They will have a mixed priority of provided referral and crisis stabilization 


services.  The major duties of the telephone service will be to give contact information for referral resources, 







 


provide support, crisis resolution, and stabilization.  They will dispatch mobile or delegate as needed for 


further crisis resolution or 302 assessments.    Telephone Crisis workers will contact 911 if Police Services 


are requested.  A new focus will be on providing Police with needed information when their services are called 


on by Crisis.   


   


The focus of Mobile Crisis services is to provide de-escalation and crisis resolution services to individual 


experiencing a crisis in their own home or in the community.  The Mobile Crisis staff will assess for safety and 


appropriateness for hospitalization and perform level of care assessments if needed, compile demographics and 


complete other documentation.  In the past Mobile would not respond without Police presence if there is any 


sense of violence, agitation, etc..  Mobile would also not be part of facilitating involuntary commitments.  


The Mobile staff would not accompany the Police as it was believed that an officer with training in Crisis 


Intervention being dispatched (which in Centre County is a basic expectation) would be enough to deal with the 


situation.     


See Appendix 5.  Flow Chart – Involuntary Commitments through the Delegate Service 


Delegate Service  


CCMH has contracted with Service Access Management, Inc. (SAM) for the involuntary commitment Delegate 


Service. Since they are a new provider as of January 2020 statistics are not available.  The purpose for the 


Delegate is to assess the legality of 302 petitions, arrange serving of the 302 Warrant to the consumer, arrange 


transport to ED, find appropriate inpatient hospitalization for the consumer if 302 was upheld.  The Mental 


Health Procedures Act (Act of Jul. 9, 1976, P.L. 817, No. 143) is the law that governs the 302 procedure.  A 


“302” has several parts.  The first is a “petition” that is signed by a “responsible citizen” that if approved by 


the County Mental Health Administrator or his/her “delegate”, would become a warrant that would require a 


person to be evaluated by a licensed physician.  If that physician believes that the person is “mentally 


disabled” and in need of inpatient hospitalization the person would then be hospitalized up to 120 hours (5 


days).  If the hospital determines more than 5 days are needed to assess or to treat and stabilize the person, a 


303 hearing would be scheduled.  If the court approves, the person could remain in the hospital up to 20 


additional days.   


To be considered legal a 302 petition must meet 5 criteria: 


1. A person is “dangerous to self or others” 


2. The danger is due to a mental illness and not due to an organic issue (i.e., developmental delay, 


substance abuse or dementia) or due to behavioral issues (i.e., domestic issue, personality conflict). 


3. There is a “furtherance” of the threat.  The person would have had to do something that showed they 


were following through with the threat. 


4. The consumer had to show that they were not willing to be evaluated voluntarily. 


5. The 302 must be signed on Block A by a “responsible citizen” or on Block B by a licensed physician or 


sworn “Peace Officer”. 


The SAM Delegates will fully assist in helping people complete 302 petitions.  Many of the family members 


and providers interviewed indicated that in the past this assistance was minimal, and they would have liked 


more instruction on what is needed to be written by the petitioner.   







 


If the petition is denied, the delegates will refer the petitioner to Mobile Crisis for additional services.  They 


will also inform the petitioner of what grounds to look for in the future if involuntary commitment is potentially 


needed. 


If the 302 is approved and the consumer was not in the ED already the Delegate would arrange for the local 


Police Department to serve the 302.  If the Police were already on-site with the individual they would get the 


original 302, explain the process to the consumer, and arrange transport to the ED.  If they were not present the 


302 would be faxed to the Police Department.  In the past a phone call would be made to the Police department 


informing them of the 302 being faxed.  The process of sharing information with the Police regarding the 


consumer was inconsistent and usually insufficient.  Information might be given to the 911 Dispatcher, the 


Officer in Charge at larger Departments or the Dispatcher at PSP.  Police indicate that, in the vast majority of 


calls, they would only have the information that was on the 302 or their own previous knowledge of the 


consumer prior to serving the 302.  CCR and SAM have indicated that they will address these shortcomings. 


 


When a 302 is enacted, the Delegate will go to the ED to give the original 302 to ED personnel as well as any 


information needed to complete the evaluation and the bed search.  In about 60% of the cases the petitioner or 


family member would accompany the consumer to the ED and provide information to ED personnel.   


If the 302 was signed on Block A (responsible citizen) and upheld by the physician, a search for a bed in a 


psychiatric hospital begins. The first choice is for the local Mount Nittany Health Behavioral Health Unit.  If 


admission is approved, the delegate would complete an insurance company pre-certification to assure payment 


was available.  If the local inpatient unit is unable to serve the individual, a “bed search” is conducted to find a 


behavioral health unit that would accept the consumer.  The bed search would begin locally and the go in an 


ever-widening circle of hospitals.  There is a shortage of local inpatient psychiatric beds which affects 


consumers and their significant others in that some must drive to Pittsburgh or Philadelphia to visit the 


consumer or take part in discharge planning or treatment meetings.  It is also difficult since out of the area 


facilities may not know the local resources to make adequate aftercare plans.  


If the 302 was signed on Block B (physician or police officer) the ED will complete the pre-certification and the 


bed search. 


Documentation from the Delegates also includes completing the Act 77 paperwork which sends notice to the 


Pennsylvania State Police Pennsylvania Instant Check System (PICS).  This Notification of Mental Health 


Commitment results in the committed individual being placed on a list that prohibits them from purchasing a 


firearm and possessing firearms.  


Changes in the MHPA have been discussed in the PA Legislature but action has been taken to change the 


involuntary hospitalization criteria.  One Law, (H.B. 1233) took effect on October 24, 2018 addresses non-


hospital care.  The Law amends the MHPA and establishes a new standard for court-ordered assisted 


outpatient treatment in the community with a standard based on a medical determination of whether a seriously 


mentally ill individual needs and can benefit from assisted outpatient treatment to survive safely in the 


community.  It leaves intact the “clear and present danger” criteria needed for involuntary inpatient 


hospitalization.  Part of the law allows for Counties to “opt out” of implementing the new standard, and, in 







 


fact, every County in PA has chosen to opt out of implementing the new standard.  Nonetheless, Centre 


County is currently reviewing the law and assessing its’ potential impact on the community.   


See Appendix 6.  Flow Chart – 911 Dispatch to Police Department  


Centre County 911 Dispatch  


 


The vast majority of Police calls are dispatched via the 911 Center.  Some calls are received directly at the 


police station and an Officer in Charge receives the information and passes it on to the responding officer.  The 


911 Center is governed by Pa Code Title 35 Chapter 53.  


 


Centre County 911 Dispatch Staffing 
Positions Number of Staff 


Full-time Dispatcher Positions 18 


On-call Dispatcher Positions 5 


Shift Supervisors 4 


QA Supervisor 1 


Training Supervisor 1 


 


In 2019 the Centre County 911 Dispatch Center received:  
911 Phone Calls 41,460 


Non-emergency Phone Calls 101,068 


Total Calls 142,528 


Incidents Dispatched (Police, Fire, EMS) 79,755 


 


Training includes classroom time, Act 120C Training, Active listening skills, Learning a basic script,  


APCO (Association of Public Safety Communications Officials) – 40 hours, Emergency Medical, Dispatch – 32 


hours, 4-6 months shadowing, Continuing education classes. in addition to training, there is always a supervisor 


to provide guidance and teaching.  There is a 24-hour supervisor available.  


The 911 Call process with mental health emergencies involves having the dispatcher ask for the callers call 


back number and address in case they are cut off.  Then they request a short description of the issue to send to 


the Police.  They also try to get the following information:  


 


• What’s happening right now to make you call  


• Prior or current violent behavior 


• Weapons or access to weapons 


• Animals in the home 


• Name of your family member in crisis 


• Age of family member in crisis 


• Height and weight of family member in crises 


• Clothing description of family member in crises 


• Current location of family member in crises 


• Diagnosis (Mental Health and/or Medical) 







 


• Current medications (On or Off?) 


• Drug use (current or past) 


• Triggers (what upsets them?) 


• Describe what has helped in previous police contacts 


• Identify other persons in the residence or at the location 


• Does consumer know the Police are on the way? 


• Past relationship with Police 


• Have you called the crisis intervention service? 


 


The Dispatchers pass as much of this information on to the Police as they can, but they are not always able to 


get good information.  This can be frustrating to the callers in that they have to answer the same questions 


repeatedly to 911, Police, Crisis, ED staff.  (911 recommends that families that know they may be calling 911 


have this information written down before hand to help in the midst of a crisis.  The 911 dispatcher would stay 


on the line until the Police arrived and provide support during the wait time. 


 


Police  


Centre County Police Departments range in size from 6 officers to 62 officers.  They include the Pennsylvania 


State Police (Rockview), Penn State University Police, State College Borough Police, Ferguson Township 


Police, Patton Township Police, Bellefonte Borough Police, Spring Township Police and the Centre County 


Sheriffs’ Office.  All Police Departments are made up of sworn Peace Officers and can sign 302 warrants 


without going through the Delegate System.  


Municipal Police Officers' Education and Training Commission (MPOETC) certifies training and certifies a 


cadet as a Police Officer.  Training and certification are mandated by the PA Act 120. 


Requirements to become a Police Officer include a background check, psychological evaluation, physical 


fitness examination, polygraph, Police Academy Training ~ 20 – 25 weeks for municipal departments and 


Pennsylvania State Police Academy – 27-28 weeks. PSP and many departments require an additional 60 college 


credit hours. 


The Academy’s include courses in Law, Vehicle Code, Criminal Procedures, Firearms and Weapons, Human 


Relations, Driving, Use of Force, Handling Prisoners, Dealing with Special Needs.  There is a minimal amount 


of instruction specific to Mental Illness but dealing with people in crisis is a topic spread throughout other 


courses.  14 hours of continued education certifications are required. (mix of required curriculum and 


electives) every year.  In Centre County this includes yearly Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) training refresher 


and/or new topic material.   


97% of Centre County Municipal Police are trained in CIT (which is the highest County percentage in the 


State).  CIT training is a 40-hour training and includes mental illness, suicide assessment and intervention, 


dual diagnosis (co-occurring substance abuse and mental illness), autism, local resources, de-escalation, 


veterans’ issues, family and peer perspectives, suicide by cop, juveniles in crisis, and self-care.  The rate of 


CIT training for the Pennsylvania State Police is lower than the Centre County Municipal Police Departments, 


but they have additional training yearly. 







 


CIT also includes a workgroup that deals with specific issues related to mental health and police.  It is a 


problem-solving group that works through both systemic issues and issues specific to certain individuals served 


by both Police and Mental Health.  


In addition, Police complete a CIT report for each call that is considered a crisis call.  That form is sent to the 


CIT coordinator for either further system follow up and/or data collection.  Some calls may be missed as they 


may not initially be considered a crisis call or may turn in to a criminal call.    


Data from the CIT reports for the past three years show approximately 650 CIT calls per year with 


approximately 250 calls resulting in hospital evaluations.  


Police Officers in Centre County report an average of 3-4 Crisis calls a week and 2 to 3 calls involving a 302 


warrant a month.  This number changes between the smaller departments and larger departments.   


Police are notified of a crisis call by the Centre County 911 Dispatcher. Police report that they typically receive 


basic information regarding the call including address, name of the person calling and sometimes the name of 


the individual, and the nature of the call (usually in 1 to 2 sentences).  Police rarely get a call from Mobile 


Crisis or Delegates directly as the call typically comes through the 911 dispatcher.  Police response time is 


usually less than Mobile due to location of local Police Departments and their knowledge of the area.   


When the situation is a crisis call and the involuntary commitment process is not needed, the Police will provide 


de-escalation and support and refer the family to Crisis Intervention.  Their first priority is for safety and 


stabilizing the person in crisis.   


There were mixed responses from families as to how helpful the Police were.  Some indicated that the Police 


were supportive and knew their family member from frequent visits and some felt that the Police were not 


helpful and would send too many officers to deal with the situation.  This would be intimidating and agitate the 


consumer.  Police protocol dictates that when responding to a situation that was described as being violent or 


dangerous they will respond with high numbers of officers to inhibit violence from an agitated person and 


provide for officer and others’ safety.   


Police typically do not stay on the scene for long, especially if the situation becomes settled quickly and is 


deemed safe.   Another factor is whether there is a need in the community for Police.  There is generally not 


much interaction between Crisis and the Police.  However, if the situation is tense or there is the possibility of 


the need for a 302, the Police will wait for either the Mobile Team or the Delegate to arrive.   


Serving 302’s – When the Police are on scene they wait for the Delegate to complete the 302 unless they see 


the behaviors and can petition themselves.  Sometimes verbal authorization is given by the Delegate which 


allows the Police two (2) hours to transport without the 302 paperwork in hand.  Police have mixed feelings 


about this since they are taking the Delegate’s word that they are approved to transport the person against their 


will with no legal backup.  Police have requested that the Delegate complete page 4 and fax it to the 


Department would suffice to give them the legal backup they need to transport without the 302 in hand.   


If the person was calm and/or willing to go voluntarily the Police will arrange for the person to be transported 


by ambulance to the Emergency Department.  If necessary, for safety reasons, the Police will do the transfer.  







 


Depending on the individual situation, handcuffs may be used when transporting, especially if the person was 


agitated, Police will exercise caution and use cuffs.   


 Police are often asked to implement an approved 302 petition for involuntary evaluation, unless the individual 


was already at the ED.  Police will receive a call from Dispatch that a 302 was faxed to their Department.  


Typically, the information on the 302 is the only information provided to the Police.    Police have stated that 


they need critical information to properly respond to and serve the 302.  They recommend that the Delegate or 


Crisis call them directly with the following information: 


• Prior or current violent behavior 


• Weapons or access to weapons 


• Animals in the home 


• Name of consumer 


• Age of consumer 


• Height and weight of consumer 


• Clothing description of consumer 


• Current location of consumer 


• Diagnosis (Mental Health and/or Medical) 


• Current medications (On or Off?) 


• Drug use (current or past) 


• Triggers (what upsets them?) 


• What has helped in previous police contacts? 


• Identify other persons in the residence or at the location 


• Past relationship with Police 


• Does consumer know the Police are on the way? 


 


There were mixed reports on whether Crisis was present or if Crisis should be present when Police are 


implementing a 302 petition.  Some officers stated that Crisis was present only if the 302 was not done yet.  


If they were just serving the 302, Crisis rarely goes.  Some officers were worried that having inexperienced 


crisis workers or delegates present would put an extra burden on the Police to keep them safe.  However, there 


are many models in Pennsylvania where Crisis co-responds with Police and waits till the Police certify that it is 


safe and appropriate for the Crisis staff to become involved.  If a decision is made to have Crisis co respond, 


training with Police and Crisis would have to be completed. 


There was some inconsistency as to whether the Police had to accompany consumer to wait in ED Waiting 


Room for triage.  Some officers reported that their responsibility was simply to call the Nurse in the ED to 


have the person taken back to the Psychiatric Emergency Department Quiet Rooms.   


Police typically give a verbal report to Mount Nittany Health Security and nursing staff in the ED with what 


(limited) information they had acquired.  It was reported that the usual wait in ED is approximately ½  hour 


unless there is a need to triage first.   


See Appendix 7.  Flow Chart – Mount Nittany Medical Center Emergency Department through 


Decision to Uphold/Deny 302 or Convert to Voluntary 


Mount Nittany Medical Center Emergency Department 







 


In 2013 MNMCED completed renovations to its Emergency Department (ED) which includes a 4-bed private 


room unit specially designed for patients with behavioral health needs.  This unit features safety rooms 


equipped with metal retractable garage doors that can close over equipment and windows.   The rooms are all 


video monitored specially trained nursing staff.   


Staffing at the ED includes support personnel, Licensed Physicians, Registered Nurses, and Emergency 


Behavioral Health Case Managers.  The BHEDU also has access to all hospital staff and equipment as part of 


the Emergency Department.  The staff completes medical, psycho-social and psychiatric evaluations, 302 


evaluations and inpatient admission assessments based on level of care needed.   Crisis intervention, 


medication management, referral services and needed lab work is also provided.   


Staffing – Staffing is available 24 hours/365days a year.  Physicians are licensed in the State of Pennsylvania.  


They have specialized training in Emergency Medicine.  Their initial psychiatry training was through a 


psychiatric rotation during residency.  The doctors are trained in Emergency Medicine but have little on-going 


training in psychiatry.  They receive additional on the job training in the MHPA and 302 evaluations.  All 


staff receive Crisis Prevention Intervention Training, and all have Required Continuing Education Training, 


some of which is in psychiatry.    


Registered Nurses – Licensed as a registered nurse in PA, Crisis Prevention Intervention Training, Specialty 


Mental Health Training, on-the-job training, and Continuing Education requirements.  


Emergency Behavioral Health Case Manager – Meets the requirements for crisis worker under the proposed 55 


PA Code, Section 5240 (proposed in 1993, never approved) and MHPA (Act of Jul. 9, 1976, P.L. 817, No. 


143). Additional training includes crisis intervention training, delegate training, crisis assessment and 


intervention.  The case manager also has knowledge of local resources and hospital inpatient admission 


criteria.  Ongoing training is generally on the job with various available external trainings.   


Upon admission to ED the consumer is placed in Behavioral Health rooms, their belongings are secured, and 


they change into a paper gown.  If they have not been triaged they will then be triaged by an RN.  Voluntary 


and less agitated patients are usually triaged outside the unit first unless prior arrangements are made, even if 


accompanied by Police Officers.  Agitated patients are immediately brought into the BHED Unit.  Hospital 


Security is available if needed. 


Patients are then Medically Cleared -Medical clearance has the aim of identifying potential medical issues 


causing the symptoms (such as infection, encephalopathy, and substance abuse intoxication or withdrawal) and 


medical comorbidities requiring care but not directly related to the current psychiatric complaint (such as 


diabetes or chronic obstructive pulmonary disease). If they are medically cleared the 302 evaluation can begin. 


If they are not medically cleared (the most common reason for not being medically cleared is intoxication) they 


will receive treatment for the medical condition and the 302 evaluation will wait until the person is medically 


cleared.   


The case manager will check the 302 grounds, 302 paperwork or need for delegate to complete a 302.  Case 


Manager will then begin with collecting information on the patient including history and history of current 


crisis.  They will speak with the petitioner and crisis worker/delegate/police if available for background.  This 


information is passed on to the doctor. 







 


The doctor will perform the 302 evaluation, starting with an evaluation of the organic nature of crisis (i.e., is 


there evidence of a mental illness?)  Then they will go on to assessing the level of dangerousness and whether 


a “furtherance of the threat” is present.  If the patient is at the level of need that they need hospitalization they 


will be offered a voluntary admission instead of being committed against their will.  If they do not meet the 


level of care that requires inpatient hospitalization the Case Manager will explore outpatient resources with the 


patient and family.   


When signing a voluntary admission (a 201) the patient agrees that they consent to inpatient hospitalization and 


sign that they will give 72 hours’ notice before discharging from the hospital.   


If hospitalization is agreed upon a bed search is completed.  If the 302 was signed in Block A and is upheld by 


the Doctor the Delegate will complete the Insurance Pre-certification and Bed Search.  If the 302 was 


converted into a 201or the 302 was signed in Block B the ED Behavioral Health Case manager will complete 


the bed search and pre-certification.  The average length of time in it takes to complete a bed search varies as 


to bed availability, medical clearance and disposition plan.  It typically takes between 4 – 5 hours. 


Centre County Correctional Facility (CCCF) 


Many people with mental health issues end up going into jail rather than into treatment.  Whether due to the 


social consequences of having a mental illness or there being no treatment facilities available, the rates of 


people with mental illness in jail is much higher than the rates in the general public.  The average number of 


inmates with mental illness is 4 to 8 times the amount of people in the general population with a mental illness.  


With that in mind, we consider the Centre County Correctional Facility a part of the Crisis Intervention System.   


The Centre County Correctional Facility was completed in 2005.  It has a capacity of approximately 350 with 


2/3 of inmates from Centre County and additional inmates from other counties making up the rest.  These 


other inmates are here due to overcrowding in other county jails that contract with Centre County.   


Once an inmate is booked through Central Booking they undergo several medical, physical and psychiatric 


screenings.  There are 3 different Gender Specific Mental Health and Suicide Screening Assessments 


completed at Booking and at Intake.  All new admissions are also reassessed by mental health staff within 24 


hours of admission.   There is also a psychiatrist on call 24 hours via telepsych for consultation and 


medication management.  Hospitalization upon intake is an option if an emergency arises.  It is very difficult 


to arrange so most emergencies are handled at the jail.  If an inmate goes to the hospital, a Corrections Officer 


will accompany the patient. 


If the inmate is assessed as having suicidal thoughts they are placed within a 4-level suicide watch system.  


The highest level gets a suicide smock (rigid cloth that does not give flexibility for use in choking oneself) and 


they are placed in a padded suicide cell which is video monitored with 15-minute checks.  Once placed on a 


suicide watch the inmate must stay on that level of watch at least 24 hours before being brought to the next 


lower level.   


If the inmate shows signs of, has stated that they have, or it is known that they have a history of mental illness 


or they are in detox from a substance, they see psychiatrist via telepsych immediately.   







 


If an inmate is on a medication upon admission it must be verified.  Once verified they are started within 4 


hours of verification.  All inmates reassessed at least every 90 days.  The medication formulary is compatible 


with common medication usage and available unless it is a medication commonly abused. 


If it is determined that an inmate is in need of medication for their own or others safety a Medications over 


Objection hearing can be done with a court order. 


If the person is already on Medication Assisted Treatment for Substance Abuse Issues they will follow through 


with Medication Assisted Treatment if coming from Department Of Corrections (not often, usually only for 


court) or if community treatment already in place.  Pregnant inmates will be transported to Methadone Clinic 


for treatment.  Additional Substance Abuse Treatment is contracted through Crossroads. 


In House Treatment Programming includes:  


Substance Abuse Treatment including 12 Step, Talk Therapies and Medication Assisted Treatment 


(MAT) 


Mental Health including: Medication Management, Individual and Group Therapies 


GED, Work and Job Skills 


Building Hope Mentoring Program 


Various additional programs run by volunteers including advocacy and parenting  


Spiritual Programs 


 


Torrance Regional Forensic Psychiatric Center is used for Competency Assessments and Restoration as well as 


long term forensic hospitalization.   


Reentry services are provided by a Centre County Mental Health Forensic Case Manager.  The Case Manager 


is ½  time at CCCF and ½  time in Community through MH/ID/EI.  Upon discharge community services are set 


up to get benefits, housing and treatment resources.  CCCF is taking part in a pilot program that ties in State 


Department of Human Services to jail OMS to have Medical Assistance benefits started immediately upon 


release 


Typically, there are 3 days’ worth of medications given upon release with services set up to get new 


prescriptions in the community.  For those with Serious Mental Illnesses up to 2 weeks can be given (in script 


form).   


Barriers 


There were 2 final questions given to all interviewees.   


1. What were the barriers in (for recipients of services) you receiving the best services or (providers) 


providing the best services possible? 


2. What recommendations would you give to the Mental Health Task Force to improve the Crisis 


Intervention Services of Centre County.   


The following is a compilation of those barriers and those recommendations.  The barriers were grouped 


into 5 categories: 


1. Lack of Resources – Inpatient, Outpatient and Diversionary. 







 


There was a general consensus among all parties that there was a lack of resources.   


A. Several families discussed the difficulties they had to deal with when their family 


member was placed in an inpatient facility that was hours away.  This made for fewer 


family visits and less effective discharge and aftercare planning.  The lack of local 


hospital access is a cost issue with increased time that the Delegate or Behavioral Health 


Case Manager has to take in procuring a bed and arranging transportation.  ED doctors 


also indicate that several hospitals require unneeded lab work which also increases the 


time spent in the ED..  The issue of a lack of inpatient psychiatric beds is an issue 


throughout the Commonwealth.   


B. There are insufficient diversionary resources that can be used instead of inpatient 


hospitalization or jail.  The new Center for Community Resources CAC is an example 


of an innovative approach, but it is new, and has already experienced challenges related 


to access for consumers who lack transportation.  Mount Nittany Health ED, Crisis and 


Police all indicate that limited diversionary options lead to more people being 302’d and 


hospitalized.   


C. Outpatient services are an essential part of preventing crises, diverting from more 


restrictive placement, and generally helping consumers in their recovery goals.  The 


consensus of all those interviewed was that there are not enough outpatient treatment and 


support services.  Independent supported living to assist those with mental illness to live 


independently in the community may be at the top of the list.  Needed housing options 


include Community Residential Rehabilitation (CRR) type of placements and some 


section 8 vouchers with little housing supports?  Long waiting lists for Children’s 


BHRS were also discussed by many family members.  Although the Mental Health 


Manual lists many outpatient services available there was a belief between most 


interviewees that the waiting list to see a psychiatrist was much longer than stated by 


Mental Health officials.   One common theme is that reimbursement rates for outpatient 


services and supports are so low that services need to be limited in order for provider 


agencies to survive.    


 


2. Lack of Information/Training 


A.  Interviewees gave many different descriptions of the same service suggesting that the 


knowledge of available services is not widespread.  Understanding the available services 


is essential in referral services, crisis intervention and diversion from more restrictive 


resources.  More outreach to providers and family members is needed to “get the word 


out” about available services.   


B. There were several concerns that the level of priority given to crisis stabilization needed 


to increase.  Some believe that this is a training issue, and some believe that this may be 


an issue of shifting philosophies of crisis services.  Several Police Officers indicated that 


they had better training in CIT than crisis personnel.  911 dispatchers also believe that 


family members and providers need to learn additional skills in crisis stabilization and 


“not lean on the Police for services.”  This may be changing with the CCR Crisis 


Service change in philosophy.   







 


C. Providers representatives indicated that they do not have sufficient knowledge to 


adequately manage the involuntary commitment process.  Although most agreed that 


they had enough training in suicide assessment and intervention, they want more training 


in crisis stabilization and de-escalation.   


D. Family members who used the crisis services indicated that they had few resources to 


stabilize their family member and were often in a state of crisis themselves which made 


for communication with 911, Police and Crisis difficult.   Many requested training in 


dealing with a crisis and getting the proper information to Police.  


3. Police Response 


A. Many consumers and family members were afraid of Police intervention.  Fears ranged 


from too many Police showing up, Police presence upsetting the person in crisis, fear of 


being arrested, and previous Police interventions turned bad, and general mistrust of 


Police.  Although Police are trained in de-escalation techniques it is difficult to de-


escalate when a trusting relationship cannot be developed.  There is a belief among 


family members and Police themselves that Mental Health is not the primary job of the 


Police.  However, there are Commonwealth mandates that the Police serve 302’s in the 


community and Police are dispatched to any call that is seen as being potentially 


dangerous.   


B. Another problem with Police intervention is the use of handcuffs.  Interviewees 


expressed concern with the inconsistent practice with the use of handcuffs when 


transporting a person to the ED. 


C. Police Officers consistently indicated that they did not get enough information from 911 


or from Crisis when directed to serve a 302 or to respond to a crisis situation.  Unless 


they are at the scene prior to a 302 being completed they are usually only sent the copy of 


the 302.  Additional information regarding weapons, safety issues, etc. is typically not 


relayed to them.   


D. Other Police related issues relate to the inconsistent use of Verbal Authorizations by the 


Delegates to transport individuals without the 302 paperwork in hand.  While the use of 


Verbal Authorization can expedite the process to the benefit of the individual in crisis, 


Police are in need documentation of the legal reason to take someone to the hospital 


against their will.   


E. An additional barrier is that Police protocols for dealing with crisis situations varies 


between departments and especially between municipal departments and the State Police. 


4. ED Response 


A. There were several issues raised as barriers, primarily by Police.  Although most Police 


felt they had a good relationship with the ED staff there was a sense of not understanding 


the criteria used to reject a 302.  There was a sense that the decisions were inconsistent, 


and they do not receive a good explanation of why a person was released.   


B. Police also indicated that they are not notified if a person was being released from the 


ED.  Officers signed 302’s believing that dangerous behavior was potentially committed 


due to a mental illness.  If the person was released stating that they were not mentally 


disabled then the Police need to know the person was being released to the community to 


determine whether to investigate the issue as a potential crime.   







 


C. There is inconsistency in the expectation of Police staying in the ED Waiting Room with 


patients brought for evaluations.  Some officers always brought the person back to the 


BHEDU and some were told to wait in the waiting room.  Interviewees pointed out that 


being in the waiting room with a police officer can be embarrassing and upsetting to the 


patient as well as to others waiting in the Waiting Room. 


5. Crisis/Delegate Response 


A. There is concern that the response times from the Mobile Crisis Team and the delegates 


can take up to several hours.  Although people understood the nature of a large rural 


county and the possibility of the teams being busy elsewhere in the county, they were 


concerned about the wait.   


B. Often the wait would be with a slightly agitated or very depressed person with little or no 


support.   The Police would be called which sometimes can be agitating to the person in 


crisis.  It could also be an unnecessary use of the resources of smaller community with 


limited Police coverage.   


C. Interviewees indicated that the telephone crisis response was sometimes supportive and 


sometimes not.  There is a universal belief that the telephone crisis workers held 


completing paperwork a higher priority than crisis stabilization and giving support to 


family members.   


D. Interviewees also indicated that Delegates are not considered helpful in completing the 


302 petition.  Some petitioners felt they were being judged on how they completed the 


302 rather given assistance in completing the form.   


Recommendations: 


These recommendations have been listed for your review and will be discussed at a later date in a separate 


report after discussion with the Mental Health Task Force.  Recommendations come in 3 forms.   


1. Corrections to the current system.  Changes that need to be made in order to repair faulty protocols or 


policies or changes that bring the system in compliance with the law or mission of the agency.   


a. For Crisis Services - Staff training and supervision should be more clinically based. 


b. For Crisis Services - Supervisors should be trained to do more clinical supervision. 


c. For Crisis Services - More time should be spent on stabilizing crisis (various respondents 


suggested this). 


d. For Crisis Services - More focus on gathering safety issues rather than a hospital analysis. 


 


2. Improvements to the system.  Improvements make the system better without adding new resources.  


Improvements can include changes to the current system such as increasing access to services, 


furthering training, skill building or information sharing, etc. 


a. For Providers - More training should be given to providers on crisis intervention and MHPA. 


b. For Emergency Department - There is a need for more consistent psychiatric evaluations in the 


ED. 


c. For Emergency Department - ED Doctors should receive additional training in recovery 


principles, communication skills, and MHPA (various respondents suggested this). 


d. For Police = Training for all police should include MHPA and verbal authorizations..   







 


e. For Family Members and Consumers - Callers to 911, Police or Crisis should be prepared with 


needed information. 


f. For Police and Delegates – there should be more consistent and liberal use of verbal 


authorizations with legal backup.   


g. For Emergency Department - Disposition notice should be given to Police if the person is 


leaving the ED.   


h. For Police - List of psychiatric medications and uses would be helpful 


i. For Emergency Department – Consistent policies should be developed for working with Police. 


j. For Crisis Services - Consistent policies should be developed for working with Police. 


k. For 911, Crisis and Delegates - More information on the consumer and the situation should be 


provided to Police prior to going to serve 302 


l. For Crisis Services - Provide officers with more justifiable reasons when requested to check the 


welfare of a person. 


m. For Emergency Department - Do not have Police and accompanied patients wait in waiting area. 


n. For Crisis Services – Provide more phone support rather than sending Mobile or while awaiting 


Mobile 


o. For all Services – There should be more direct communication with families and significant 


others.   


p. For All Involved– Set up Meet and Greets between Police, Providers, Consumers and Family 


Members, especially when folks are healthy and working their recovery. 


q. For Crisis and Emergency Department - Keep records of previous contacts or share current 


documentation between services and just inquire as to changes. 


r. For Delegates and Emergency Department – There should be more offers of and allowances for 


voluntary admissions. 


s. For Providers and Emergency Department - Lower the cost for services and inpatient treatment.. 


  


 


3. System Enhancements are additions to the system including new services or expanding current 


services.   


a. For CC MH/ID.EI and D&A – Create additional forensic reentry service coordination, especially 


housing and quicker entry into ongoing services. 


b. For CC MH/ID.EI and D&A – Create a forensic peer specialist program.   


c. For all Providers - Improve salaries. 


d. For CC MH/ID.EI and D&A – Create more follow up services, especially independent living 


supports. 


e. For County Commissioners - Increase veterans’ services and jail diversion services. 


f. For CC MH/ID.EI and D&A, NAMI or Peer Specialists – Create a Warmline.  


g. For the Commonwealth - Increase State Hospital bed availability. 


h. For Crisis Services and Police - Train Crisis to respond with Police. 


i. For Crisis Services and Police – Create a Police Co-Responder position. 


j. For CCR and CC MH/ID/EI and D&A – Create additional hospital diversion programs (Crisis 


Residence, ACT team, Intensive Outpatient Treatment, Acute Case management Programs)..   


k. For Emergency Department – Provide psychiatrist consults in ED for difficult cases.  


l. For all Involved – Create a Database Switchboard that provides access to treatment history 


CCBH and CC MH/ID.EI and D&A.   


m. For Emergency Department – Make bed search availability 24 hours 


n. For CC MH/ID.EI and D&A - Create more local outpatient support resources. 


o. For CC MH/ID.EI and D&A - Create more local outpatient treatment resources. 







 


p. For CC MH/ID.EI and D&A – Create more Proactive and Preventative services. 


q. For CC MH/ID.EI and D&A – Provide more children’s services, more training in children’s 


issues. 


r. For CC MH/ID.EI and D&A – Create additional supportive housing and independent living 


support services.   


s. For Mount Nittany Health Center – Increase the beds in the inpatient hospital unit.  


t. For Crisis Services – There should be a Quicker response from Crisis.  


 


Additional recommendations will be discussed at the next Task Force Meeting. 


 


 







  


Person 


in Crisis 


Seeks help 


on their own 


Social 


Support 


System 


Treatment  


Support 


System 


Inpatient 


Treatment  


201 In Need 


of 


Treatment 


Resolved 


Outpatient  


Treatment  


Inpatient 


Treatment  


302 


Refuses to 


seek help 


Physician or 


Police 


Recognizes 


Need 


Completes Part 


B Warrant for 


Emergency 


Commitment 


Responsible 


Citizen 


Recognizes 


Need 


Calls Treatment 


Provider, Police, 


E.D. 


Crisis 


Assessment 


Center 


CCR 


Mobile 


Crisis 


Completes  


302 


Petition 


Delegate 


Approves 


Petition 


Delegate 


Denies 


Petition 


Civil Commitment Process 


Mapping 


Stage 1 


Other 


Supports 


ED 


Police 


SAM 


Delegate 


Appendix 1 







 


  


Already at 


ED 


Accompany to  or 


Assist With 


Transport to 


Emergency 


Department for 


Evaluation 


Warrant Served 


by Police  


With Family 


or Petitioner 
Evaluated by 


Mount 


Nittany 


Health 


Psychiatric 


Emergency 


Team 
Police Alone 


With Crisis 


With EMS 


Not Medically 


Cleared Held in ED 


till Sober 


Admitted 


Medically  


In need of 


inpatient 


Treatment 


Signs 


voluntary 


Not in need of 


involuntary 


Inpatient 


Treatment 


Discharged 


from ED 


Civil Commitment Process 


Mapping 


Stage 2 


With Peer, 


Provider 







 


 


  


Person 


in Crisis 


Seeks help 


on their 


own 


Social 


Support 


System 


Treatment  


Support 


System 


Inpatient 


Treatment  


201 
In Need of 


Treatment 


Resolved 


Outpatient  


Treatment  


Inpatient 


Treatment  


302 


Refuses to 


seek help 
Physician or 


Police 


Recognizes 


Need 


Completes Part B 


Warrant for 


Emergency 


Commitment 


Responsible 


Citizen 


Recognizes 


Need 


Calls Treatment 


Provider, Police, 


E.D. 


Crisis 


Assessment 


Center 


CCR 


Mobile Crisis 


Completes  


302 


Petition 


Delegate 


Approves 


Petition 


Delegate 


Denies 


Petition 


Civil Commitment Process 


Mapping 


Stage 1 


Other 


Supports 


ED 


Police 


SAM 


Delegate 


Appendix 2 







 


  


Person 


in Crisis 


Seeks help 


on their own 


 


Social 


Support 


System 


Treatment  


Support 


System 


Inpatient 


Treatment  


201 
In Need of 


Treatment 


Resolved 


Outpatient  


Treatment  


Inpatient 


Treatment  


302 


Refuses to 


seek help 
Physician or 


Police 


Recognizes 


Need 


Completes Part B 


Warrant for 


Emergency 


Commitment 


Responsible 


Citizen 


Recognizes 


Need 


Calls Treatment 


Provider, Police, 


E.D. 


Crisis 


Assessment 


Center 


CCR 


Mobile Crisis 


Completes  


302 


Petition 


Delegate 


Approves 


Petition 


Delegate 


Denies 


Petition 


Civil Commitment Process 


Mapping 


Stage 1 


Other 


Supports 


ED 


Police 


SAM 


Delegate 


Appendix 3 







 


 


 


  


Person 


in Crisis 


Seeks help 


on their own 


 


Social 


Support 


System 


Treatment  


Support 


System 


Inpatient 


Treatment  


201 
In Need of 


Treatment 


Resolved 


Outpatient  


Treatment  


Inpatient 


Treatment  


302 


Refuses to 


seek help 
Physician or 


Police 


Recognizes 


Need 


Completes Part B 


Warrant for 


Emergency 


Commitment 


Responsible 


Citizen 


Recognizes 


Need 


Calls Treatment 


Provider, Police, 


E.D. 


Crisis 


Assessment 


Center 


CCR 


Mobile Crisis 


Completes  


302 


Petition 


Delegate 


Approves 


Petition 


Delegate 


Denies 


Petition 


Civil Commitment Process 


Mapping 


Stage 1 


Other 


Supports 


ED 


Police 


SAM 


Delegate 


Appendix 4 







 


  


Person 


in Crisis 


Seeks help 


on their 


own 


Social 


Support 


System 


Treatment  


Support 


System 


Inpatient 


Treatment  


201 
In Need of 


Treatment 


 


Resolved 


Outpatient  


Treatment  


Inpatient 


Treatment  


302 


Refuses to 


seek help 
Physician or 


Police 


Recognizes 


Need 


Completes Part B 


Warrant for 


Emergency 


Commitment 


Responsible 


Citizen 


Recognizes 


Need 


Calls Treatment 


Provider, Police, 


E.D. 


Crisis 


Assessment 


Center 


CCR 


Mobile 


Crisis 


Completes  


302 


Petition 


Delegate 


Approves 


Petition 


Delegate 


Denies 


Petition 


Civil Commitment Process 


Mapping 


Stage 1 


Other 


Supports 


ED 


Police 


SAM 


Delegate 


Appendix 5 







 


 


  


Already at 


ED 


Accompany to  


or Assist With 


Transport to 


Emergency 


Department 


for Evaluation 


Warrant Served 


by Police  


With Family 


or Petitioner 
Evaluated by 


Mount 


Nittany 


Health 


Psychiatric 


Emergency 


Team Police Alone 


With Crisis 


With EMS 


Not 


Medically 


Cleared 


Held in ED 


till Sober 


Admitted 


Medically  


In need of 


inpatient 


Treatment 


Signs 


voluntary 


Not in 


need of 


involuntary 


Inpatient 


Treatment 


Discharged 


from ED 


Civil Commitment Process 


Mapping 


Stage 2 


With Peer, 


Provider 


911 


Dispatchers 


Appendix 6 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Already at 


ED 


Accompany to or 


Assist With 


Transport to 


Emergency 


Department for 


Evaluation 


Warrant Served by 


Police  


With Family or 


Petitioner 
Evaluated by 


Mount Nittany 


Health 


Psychiatric 


Emergency 


Team Police Alone 


With Crisis 


With EMS 


Not Medically 


Cleared 
Held in ED 


till Sober 


Admitted 


Medically  


In need of 


inpatient 


Treatment 


Signs 


voluntary 


Not in need of 


involuntary 


Inpatient 


Treatment 


Discharged 


from ED 


Civil Commitment Process 


Mapping 


Stage 2 


With Peer, 


Provider 


Appendix 7 







 


APPENDIX B: Considerations for Future Reference 


 


Here is a list of items from the Task Force discussions that were not included in the 


Key Recommendations; they are listed here as points of information from the work of 


the Task Force. Some of these may emerge from the work carried out in the various 


Key Recommendations. We kept them as part of the record of discussions for 


possible future reference. 


1. Build a network of mental health professionals. 


2. Create a warmline (early intervention hotline or drop-in service with emotional 


support free, confidential peer-support services). 


3. Identify a list of local forensic peer specialists and their programs. 


4. Promote community trainings to increase understanding of issues and existing 


resources. 


5. Additional funding for mental health crisis services that could allow for 


improved salaries for staff. 


6. Expect delegates to meet personally with each client, not rely on second-hand 


report. 


7. Create additional hospital diversion programs (Crisis Residence, ACT team, 


Intensive Outpatient Treatment, Acute Case Management Programs), and 


create more follow up outpatient services, especially independent living 


supports. 


8. Find alternatives to reliance on Emergency Department sites for evaluations. 


9. More training should be given to CI and Delegate providers on crisis 


intervention and MHPA. 


10. Provide more structured supervision and support, preparation, and training for 


delegates beyond initial group training; more clinical staff supervision for CI 


staff. 


11. Develop an interactive, user-friendly map of services for consumers. 


 


 


  







 


APPENDIX C: Public Meeting Summary (Not listed in any specific order) 


 


• Consistent positive comments about the draft Task Force recommendations 
being a very good first step to enhancing the mental health crisis system in 
Centre County  


• Executive Director of American Mental Wellness Association offered any 
assistance the MHWA can provide to the work of the Task Force  


• Interest in divesting guns from the service of involuntary commitment (302) 
warrants  


• Advocacy should be broadened to include housing, food insecurity, medical 
care, and employment  


• Cultural bias exists about persons suffering from serious mental illness  
• Support for a co-responder or civilian crisis response team with CAHOOTS 


and STAR being two examples mentioned  
• Need for more beds locally  
• Importance of de-escalation as a focus in mental health crisis responses  
• Additional training is necessary including in the following areas: Treating 


physician and psychiatrist, de-escalation, implicit bias, power and control 
dynamics, intersectionality, critical race theory, cultural capacity training,   


• Need to address the outdated Pennsylvania law, including HIPAA restrictions  
• Lack of access or inability for family members to be involved if the consumer 


does not approve  
• Need for more persons of color as part of the mental health services provided  
• Importance of securing funding to implement the Task Force 


recommendations  
• Concern that jails have become mass incarceration housing units for those 


suffering from mental illness  
• Pleased the Task Force included a focus on the impact of race in the mental 


health crisis system  
• Importance of investing in psychiatric rehabilitation programs, transitional and 


permanent housing programs, a general "housing-first" approach in our 
community, and intensive assisted outpatient programs   


• Other ideas suggested included: different types of peer support for 
consumers, mental health consumers weighing in on all new programs, 
accountability for providers, educating community and caseworkers on history 
of ableism in general but especially within mental health communities   


 


  







 


APPENDIX D: Work Sheets for Gaps and Opportunities 


 


 Gaps Opportunities 


Crisis 
Interve
ntions 


(CCR) 


• Lack of evidence-based modeling 
- MCO’s (Managed Care 
Organizations) have minimal 
standards for crisis intervention that 
do not require evidence-based 
services. 


• Tracking Concerns 
- CCR reports it limits track first 
visit/contact and subsequent 
visits/contacts (No limitations in the 
numbers of times a person can 
utilize crisis intervention services) 


• Reduced walk-ins after COVID 
Waiver for telehealth allowed for 
service at walk in center to become 
limited.  


- Due to COVID concerns, it created 
shorter encounters. Probably less 
than 1 hour (from 1-1.5 hours) 


• Longer waiting time as service is
 expanded 


- Waiting longer to receive care 
because of the increased number of 
people accessing crisis intervention.   


• Treating children under age 18 
- Adolescents who visit the center for 
a telehealth appointment require 
adult guidance and supervision to 
assure that they are using the 
session effectively 


• Inpatient Assistance Limitations 
- During assessment, if in-patient is 
considered for individual, transferred 
to ED but occur as CCR does not do 
pre-certs or bed searches out of 
area. 


• Certified Peer Specialists 
Incorporate peer services during a crisis 
service to allow for support and 
education.  


• Role of Follow Up  
- Opportunity to assume the role of a 
case manager for individuals who are 
released from the ER and who have 
been found to fail to meet the criteria for 
involuntary admission, and/or who 
refuse voluntary treatment.  
Connecting with those individuals with 
follow up services from crisis provider. 


• Data Tracking 
- CCR has the capacity for development 
of a digital data management and 


tracking system, including a repository 
for client records and tracking 


contact information, that can store and 
provide information for the Delegate to 
access and later share with the ER staff 
and others. 


 


Delega
te  


(SAM 
Inc.) 


• Information sharing on the client 
- While SAM describes a handoff of 
information from CCR to SAM when 
a case is opened it is unclear what 
kind of information is shared and 


• Increasing training and supervision 
- Training and ongoing supervision in 
their role through support by SAM 
leadership 







 


whether that information makes it to 
the ER 


• GAPS to using the 302 criteria 
- Personal care/medical care: the 
ongoing harm of active psychosis to 
the brain may be permanent. 


- Shelter: the inability to maintain 
housing due to the threat to others in 
the home. 


- Risk of harm related to involuntary 
hospitalization and treatment? 


• Staff Retention 
- High stress level that may lead to a 
quick turnover or burnout 


• Additional training and supervisio
n needs 


- Individuals they are hiring as 
delegates don’t have a lot of 
background/academic training 


- Defined ongoing support and 
oversight 


- Implicit Bias Training: Both at the 
beginning and ongoing to assist with 
decision making 


- Defined supervision for the 
preparation and ongoing clinical 
support for individuals who serve as 
delegates 


• Outdated MHPA from 1976  
- Still requires only a licensed MD to 
do emergency exam part of it. 


- Psychiatrists don’t do these 
evaluations rather than just ED 
doctors.  


• No assessment tool to determine 
302 criteria for physicians and d
elegates 


• Delegates are not required to me
et with individual perceives that t
hey are relying on reports/hearsa
y from other people.   


• Transportation issues 


- Educating on the appropriate use of 
302 criteria 


- Making recommendations for 
physician on the ED on the application 
of an involuntary commitment.  


• Communication  
- Explore procedures for CCR or other 
agencies (such as CAPS) to obtain 
client permission and share clinically 
relevant information about the person 
during involuntary commitment process.   


• Licensing  
- What opportunities are available that 
can bring us beyond minimum 
requirements for staffing and service of 
delegate?   


• Continued for expansions – alternati
ves 


- Example peer components to EDs 


- Alternatives to ED sites for evaluations 


- Allow for physician extenders because 
retention and recruitment are 
challenging. 


 







 


- Law enforcement provides 
transport, not a mental health 
provider. 


- Limited Ambulance services for 
people with mental health crisis 


• Standardization issues 
- Prior provider had limited intake 
forms and electronic records.  
Current provider working for further 
documentation and electronic 
records.  


- Interview format: While delegates 
are introduced to the interview 
process to follow with consumers 
during their training, there is no 
evidence that they are provided with 
a structured interview format or other 
tool to apply and follow during their 
field work. 


• When the person does not meet 
“criteria”; 


- Follow up care for individual 


- Follow up supports for family and 
friends 


Law 
Enforc
ement 


• Limited CIT training for Pennsylv
ania State Police (PSP) troopers 


• Unless trained in CIT, PSP troop
ers not recognizing the value of 
and completing the CIT Referral 
form. 


• Limited available transportation s
ervices 


• Limited services and resources fo
r police when the person in crisi
s does not meet the 302 criteria. 


• Limitations or barriers to law enf
orcement serving as the 302 peti
tioner 


 


• Use of the new programs coming fr
om District Attorney’s office 


• Resources for the Mental health wel
l-being of the first responders 


• Additional collaboration on the overa
ll mental health guidelines and prot
ocols with all stakeholders 


• Mental health workers accompanying
 police for warrant process? 


• Emphasis or focus on mental health
 for crisis calls 


• Use of plainclothes and soft uniform
 attired police officers 


• Increased training for law enforceme
nt and all stakeholders, including co
mmunity trainings 


• Expanding documentation including 
expanded data collection 


• Assisted Outpatient Treatment (AOT) 
• Build support from outside groups to


 work with/assist law enforcement 


Emerg
ency 


• Variation in the process of patien
t admission accompanied by LE 


• Inpatient access to beds can be 


• Enhancing communication with withi
n the system, i.e. MH/ID/EI/D&A, m
obile and delegate services, LE and







 


Depart
ment 


delayed due to availability 
• Training for physicians and ED st


aff beyond minimum training, e.
g. add best practices, in-depth m
ental health, implicit bias, 302 re
gulations decisions  


• Follow up for discharged patients
 if not a 302 for them, family, p
olice if involved 


• Transportation locally, within coun
ty, distance in state 


• Systematic standardized process 
of communication with other age
ncies in crisis services 


• Standardizing 302 process for co
nsistency across all involved in 3
02 decisions 
 


 ED 
• Enhancing education for all staff as 


it relates to mental health crisis dia
gnosis and response, intervention, d
e-escalation, cultural sensitivity 


• Establish a community agency colla
borative forum connecting crisis, inp
atient, outpatient, social service, an
d non-profit support organizations 


• Create and communicate a standard
 process for patients arriving by LE 
to ED 


• Enhance data gathering of patients 
served 


• Review recommendations in the Stat
e Government Joint Commission Re
port 2020 


• Increase use of evidence-based ass
essments for risk of harm and of p
sychiatric consultations in ED  


Issues 
within 
the 
Syste
m 


• Disconnect/lack of coordination a
nd sharing between police, 911 
operator, mobile, and delegate p
ersonnel 


• Need for additional cultural comp
etency/implicit bias training and u
nderstanding 


• Cultural considerations and under
standing of implicit bias, racial e
quity 


• Adequate efficient sharing of pert
inent patient information among i
nvolved responders within the sy
stem 


• Bridging the gap between mental
 health treatment inpatient/outpati
ent and incarceration as an outc
ome when police are involved 


• Uneven existence of electronic re
cords for efficient sharing of data 


• Cut-off and no recovery of availa
ble funding 


- 2012 took at 10% cut and haven’t 
recovered. Need to advocate funding 
for mental health just as much as for 
updates to MHPA. 


• Organizing a Crisis Team 
• Standardizing the process for the 30


2 
• Need for greater Data-Collection an


d creation of a Data-Sharing system 
• Evidence-based assessment approac


h or tools (e.g., CAHOOTS, Co-res
ponder Model) 


• Promote and enhance accessibility o
f mental health resources to the co
mmunity 


• Organize a total team approach rela
ted to domestic, wellness checks, a
nd mental health warrants 


• Increase training for cultural conside
rations 


• Explore standardizing the application
 of the 302 decision making proces
s applying the MHPA regulations 


• Create a data-sharing system to tra
ck the system’s effectiveness across
 populations and services using ele
ctronic records 


• Evidence-based assessments for ris
k of harm analysis/decisions 


 


  







 


APPENDIX E: Definitions 


 


302 Warrant – Legal means by which an individual may be involuntarily committed 


to a psychiatric institution for evaluation and treatment. Issued by designated mental 


health professionals upon submission of a petition attesting to the behavior or crisis 


that the individual is undergoing.  


302(b) – provision allowing law enforcement officers or physicians to take an 


individual into custody for transportation to a psychiatric facility for evaluation and 


treatment. Must be based upon personal observations by the officer or physician of 


the individual’s behavior and mental health crisis.  


Center for Community Resources (CCR) – organization offering crisis assessment 


services and diversion from emergency rooms for individual experiencing a crisis yet 


not requiring medical treatment or security. Provides counseling, referrals, and 


specialists for mental health and behavioral health needs.  


Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) – qualified first responders, law enforcement 


officers, and mental health professionals who have been trained in crisis resolution, 


de-escalation training, and knowledge of community-based resources.  


Emergency Department (ED) – department of medical facility to which an individual 


experiencing mental health crisis may be taken for evaluation and services. In 


Centre County, the Mount Nittany Medical Center (MNMC) Emergency Department 


is most frequently utilized.  


Delegate Services – responds to calls for mental health emergency or crises and 


has the ability to coordinate an individual’s mental health needs. Used for petitions 


regarding involuntary hospitalization (302 warrants); contracted through SAM Inc. in 


Centre County 


Mental Health Professionals/Mental Health Workers – licensed and/or certified 


providers of mental health and behavioral health services, such as Centre County 


MH/ID/EI, Center for Community Resources, hospitals and staff.  


Mental Health Care Providers – include those persons designated as an 


individual’s mental health decision maker or caretaker, such as family, nursing staff, 


support persons.  


Serious Mental Illness – SMI is a diagnosable mental, behavioral, or emotional 


disorder than an adult has experienced in the past year that causes serious 


functional impairment that substantially interferes with or limits at least one major like 


activity. Examples include schizophrenia, bipolar disorder, and major depression, as 


well as the disorders that cause serious functional impairment. 







 


Mental Health Procedures Act (MHPA) – Pennsylvania statute providing for mental 


health procedures and provisions within the Commonwealth (codified at 50 P. S. §  


§ 7101 - 7503). Most recently amended (updated) in October 2018 through Act 106.  


MH/ID/EA Base Services Unit – Centre County Mental Health’s early intervention 


program/unit responsible for coordinating mental health crises and services for law 


enforcement and mental health professionals dealing with early intervention or 


emergency crisis situation.  


Mobile Crisis Worker – provides crisis intervention, assessments, and support for 


emergency mental health screenings.  


Service Access & Management, Inc. (SAM) – service provider offering case 


management and human services. Provides coordination services for veterans and 


those experiencing a mental health crisis, also provides emergency services. 


Intersectionality – Exposing [one’s] multiple identities can help clarify the ways in 


which a person can simultaneously experience privilege and oppression.  


Implicit Bias – Also known as unconscious or hidden bias, implicit biases are 


negative associations that people unknowingly hold.  


Marginalized Groups – also known as vulnerable populations, oppressed 


populations, underrepresented populations, or undercounted populations in 


community indicators and recommendations.  








CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3 


State College, PA 16801 
Phone: (814) 231-3077 ● Fax: (814) 231-3083 ● Website: www.crcog.net 


 


PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Video Conference 


Tuesday, April 13, 2021 
12:15 pm 


 
GENERAL MEETING INFORMATION 


 
STEP #1:  Click HERE to REGISTER for the meeting via ZOOM 
        Once registered, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining 
                  the meeting. 
 
STEP #2:  Click HERE to locate the AGENDA and ATTACHMENTS 
        Should you desire to annotate any attachments, you must download them first. 


 
To attend this meeting by phone: +1 929 205 6099|  Meeting ID: 821 9905 0754 


 
Meeting Contact: Tammy Strouse (tes@crcog.net, 814-231-3069) 


 
• This meeting will be recorded, and electronic files of the meeting will be made available on the COG  
    website upon its conclusion. 
 
• We ask that non-voting participants remain muted with their video turned off unless recognized or are  
    actively speaking. To reduce audio interference, please remain off speakerphone during the meeting.  
 
• VOTING PROCEDURES: Members will provide their vote by voice. Clarification will be sought by  
    the Chair if the vote is unclear. Members opposed to a motion should vote "No." For additional  
    information on COG Voting Procedures, please click HERE. 
 
• PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES: Members of the public may comment on any items not  
    already on the agenda (five minutes per person). Comments relating to specific items on the agenda  
    should be deferred until that point in the meeting. For additional information on COG public  
    meeting guidelines, please click HERE. 
 
• To access agendas and minutes of previously held meetings and to learn more about the COG  
    Public Safety Committee on our website, please click HERE. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 







Public Safety Committee Agenda 
April 13, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 
 


During the COVID-19 health emergency, to continue business operations of the COG and ensure 
the safety of municipal officials and staff, and to adhere to health emergency recommendations 
while remaining in compliance with Pennsylvania’s guidelines for public meetings, the Public Safety 
Committee meeting will be held via video conference.  Written public comment or requests to speak 
to the Public Safety Committee for items not on the agenda and requests to comment to specific 
agenda items below, may be submitted in advance by emailing tes@crcog.net 


CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3 


State College, PA 16801 
Phone: (814) 231-3077 ● Fax: (814) 231-3083 ● Website: www.crcog.net 


 


PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Video Conference 


Tuesday, April 13, 2021 
12:15 pm 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


AGENDA   
 
 


1. CALL TO ORDER 
 


Chair Laura Dininni will convene the meeting.  Ms. Strouse takes roll call. 
 


2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 


Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda 
minutes per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the agenda 
should be deferred to that point in the meeting.  Submitted comments will be read into the 
record by the Recording Secretary at the appropriate time in the meeting. 


 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 


 
A copy of the minutes of the February 9, 2021, Public Safety Committee meeting is attached.  
 


4. FIRE DEPARTMENT ORGANIZATION – presented by Steve Bair 
 


Director Bair will give an update on proposed changes to the organizational structure of the 
Regional Fire Protection Program. These changes result from ongoing strategic planning and 
set the stage for hiring decisions for fiscal 2022.  


 
There is strong consensus among the fire department leadership to add additional support 
and command staff as recommended by the ESCI Study of 2020. Hiring in the short term 
supports a "top-down" approach, with proposed positions continuing the current focus on 
volunteer support and sustainment. [Proposed organization chart attached.] While ESCI 
recommended FTE additions, they did not recommend a particular preference concerning 







Public Safety Committee Agenda 
April 13, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 
 


building the organization from the top-down, bottom-up, or a combination thereof. To 
support the immediate and long-term needs of the department, leadership is recommending 
the following organizational changes: 


 
1. Establish the position of Deputy Chief. This position will NOT be filled in 2022; it will be 


delayed to 2023 for appointment by the new Director. In addition to providing direct 
organizational support, this action supports ESCI recommendations on succession 
planning. A proposed job description for this position has been developed and is attached.  


 
2. Establish the position of Assistant Chief, Special Operations. This position will be filled in 


2022. Funding for temporary part-time hours in 2021 was primarily driven by the need to 
sustain the department's technical rescue capabilities. The Special Operations Chief will 
assume responsibility for technical rescue, Rescue Task Force (Active Shooter), Field Force 
Extrication, and HazMat. Leadership believes this will enhance training and equipment 
efficiencies. A proposed job description for this position has been developed and is 
attached.  


 
By adding this position, additional hours are created to invest in volunteer training, and there 
is a reduction in required weekend duty among the career and volunteer staff.  


 
3. Add the title of "Assistant Chief" to the existing EMC position. Since its inception as a 


dedicated program with a full-time coordinator, the COG's Emergency Management 
Program has resided within the fire department. This is a common organizational practice, 
as most municipal EM programs are a component of the municipal fire department or a 
municipal police department. Adding this title formally affirms our current practice and 
organizational structure. Over the near- and long-term, it supports broader fire department 
involvement in EM planning, training, and preparedness activities. Fire department 
leadership believes that as Emergency Management matures, there will likely be more 
opportunities for volunteer and career personnel participation.  


 
The Public Safety Committee is asked to support the organizational structure being proposed. 
This structure will be presented to the HR Committee in May since the 2022 budget request 
will include one or more new hires.  
 


5. FIRE DEPARTMENT STRATEGIC PLANNING– presented by Steve Bair 
 


Fire department leadership continues to refine the Regional Fire Protection Program's 
strategic plan. Director Bair will share updates on the following items of interest: 


 
1. In preparation for the Fire Director's replacement, the Fire Director's job description 


(attached) has been updated to reflect current practices. This will be presented to the HR 
Committee in May for approval.  


  
2. The ESCI Study recommended one additional FTE for administrative support. At this 


time, a part-time position for fire only or a full-time position shared between fire and EM 
is being considered. This will be a 2022 budget item.  







Public Safety Committee Agenda 
April 13, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 
 


 
3. At their March meeting, the Emergency Management Council was asked to consider the 


EM Program's future and its scope. This reflection is important as it may have an impact 
on the selection of a new Fire Director.  


 
Completion of the updated strategic plan for the Regional Fire Protection Program is slated 
for June. It will form the basis of the annual Program Plan for fire.  


 
6. STAFF UPDATES  


 
COG Staff will provide updates on the following topics: 


 Code Administration (Walt Schneider) – The Codes Director will report on current 
items. 


 Fire Protection (Steven Bair) – The Fire Director will report on current items, 
including reviewing the April 1, 2021, Regional Fire Protection program dashboard 
(attached). 


 Emergency Management Program (Shawn Kauffman) – The Emergency Management 
Coordinator will report on current items.   


 
7. OTHER BUSINESS  


 
A. Matter of Record - The February and March 2021 monthly comparison of code statistics, 


permits issued/permits closed reports, and the January and February 2021 Existing 
Structures statistic reports are attached.  


B. Matter of Record - Mr. Scott Good has resigned from the Centre Region Building & 
Housing Code Board of Appeals.  His resignation letter is attached. 


C. Matter of Record – On behalf of the fire department, Mr. Bair will be nominating the 
police and public works people involved at the 801 Crabapple Court fire for award 
consideration by the Central District Volunteer Firemen's Association. 


D. Matter of Record – Centre Region HazMat made its first full-team response to a gasoline 
tanker incident in Harris Township on the evening of March 23.  The six-hour 
operation was very successful. 


E. Matter of Record – The March 23 HazMat incident in Harris Township involved 
significant Centre Region assets, including Boalsburg Fire Company (Tanker, Rescue, 
Fire Police), Alpha Fire (HazMat Team, Foam Trailer, Tanker, Fire Police).  Alpha also 
provided transportation to evacuate the truck driver from the scene.  All assets 
performed admirably. 


 
8. UPCOMING MEETING 


The Public Safety Committee's next meeting, via Zoom, will be Tuesday, May 11, 2021, at 
12:15 pm.  


 
9. ADJOURNMENT 







Public Safety Committee Agenda 
April 13, 2021 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 


ENCLOSURES 
 
Item # Description 
03  Public Safety Committee Meeting Minutes – February 9, 2021 
04a  Proposed Organization Chart 
04b  Fire – Deputy Chief 2021 job description 
04c  Fire – Special Operations Chief 2021 job description 
05  Fire – Fire Director 2021 job description 
06  4.1.21 Regional Fire Protection dashboard 
07A a-d February/March code statistics, permits issued/closed reports 
07A e-f January/February Exist. Structures statical reports 
07B  Good BOA letter 
 


 
 


 
 








 


 
 


 


Proclamation 
 


2021 ASIAN AMERICAN AND PACIFIC ISLANDER HERITAGE MONTH 
 


Whereas, Ferguson Township celebrates the cultural and ethnic diversity that makes up 
the rich fabric of our community; and 
 


Whereas, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors stands in solidarity with the Asian 
American and Pacific Islander (AAPI) community in the Township and around the world 
against the systemic racism, xenophobia, and misogyny that has afflicted our fellow citizens 
for centuries in this country and around the world; and 
 


Whereas, according to United States Census Bureau estimates, the AAPI population in 
Ferguson Township exceeds fifteen percent of our citizenry; and 
 


Whereas, Ferguson Township, by adopting this proclamation, commits to making our 
community a welcoming and inviting place for AAPI residents, business owners, visitors, 
and students. 


 


Now, therefore, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors does hereby designate May 
2021 as Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month and encourages all residents 
of Ferguson Township to celebrate the immeasurable value that our friends, families, and 
neighbors of AAPI heritage add to our quality of life. 


 
Proclaimed this 19th day of April 2021. 
 


 
Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors, 


 
 


_________________________________ 
Laura Dininni, Chair 


 








 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting 


Monday, April 5, 2021 
7:00 PM 


 
ATTENDANCE 


The Board of Supervisors held its first regular meeting of the month on Monday, 
April 5, 2021, via Zoom in a webinar format.  In attendance were: 
 
Board: Laura Dininni, Chair 


Lisa Strickland, Vice Chair 
Steve Miller 
Prasenjit Mitra 
Patty Stephens 
 


Staff: Dave Pribulka, Township Manager 
Dave Modricker, Director of Public Works 
Jenna Wargo, Director, Planning and Zoning 
Lance King, Township Arborist 
 


 
Others in attendance included:  Rhonda Demchak, Recording Secretary; Mr. Kevin Mullen, Ferguson 
and Patton Township owner; Mr. Wes Glebe, Ferguson Township Resident; Mr. John Spychalski, 
CATA Chairman; Ms. Louwana Oliva, Executive Director and CEO of CATA; Mr. David Stone, Nittany 
Valley Environmental Coalition; Mr. Bill Keough, Ferguson Township Resident and Planning 
Commission member; Mr. John Sepp, Penn Terra Engineering; Mr. David Helfrich, Aspen Heights; 
Doug Hill, Senior Engineer, Wooster and Associates; Danielle Bleier, Develop Manager, Aspen Heights 
Partners; Mr. David Helfrich, President, East Division, Aspen Heights Partners 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER  


Ms. Dininni called the Monday, April 5, 2021, regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   
 
Mr. Pribulka noted that the Board of Supervisors meeting had been advertised in accordance to the 
PA Sunshine Act as a virtual meeting via Zoom in a webinar format. There was also an audio 
conference bridge that was accessible by dialing the Ferguson Township’s main line at 814-238-4651 
and then dialing extension 3799.  Persons attending the webinar as members of the public and wanted 
to participate were asked to enter their name, municipality, and topic by utilizing the Q&A bubble at the 
bottom of the screen.  Mr. Pribulka noted that attendees will not be permitted to speak unless 
addressed by the Chair.  Mr. Pribulka will share more information on how attendees can interact with 
the Board at the appropriate time of the meeting.  C-NET is recording as well.  Mr. Pribulka took Roll 
Call and there was a quorum.  
 
Ms. Dininni added that there have been two executive meetings since the last regular Board meeting.  
On March 23rd,  they met regarding personnel and legal matters and on April 5th they met to discuss  
personnel matters.    
 


II. THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 


III. CITIZENS INPUT 
 
Mr. Kevin Mullen, Ferguson and Patton Township owner, expressed frustration with UAJA Wastewater 
for over charging him the last 5 years.   
 


IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  


Mr. Miller moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Regular meeting Minutes of March 15,  
2021.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 


V. SPECIAL REPORTS 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 2 


 
a) COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Response Report  


 
Mr. Pribulka noted that local or regional updates can be found on the Centre Region Ready 
Facebook page or the COG website page.  Also, information can be found on the Township website 
and State College Borough website.   
 
The Governor’s office announced on April 5, 2021 that the Commonwealth has moved to Phase 
1B of the vaccine distribution plan.  Phase 1B eligible Pennsylvanians include: 
 


• People in congregate settings not otherwise specified as long-term care facilities, 
and persons receiving home and community-based services 


• U.S. Postal Service workers 


• Manufacturing workers 


• Clergy and other essential support for houses of worship 


• Public transit workers 


• Education workers 
 


More information can be found at the Pennsylvania Department of Health.   


Governor Wolf’s office announced that on April 4, 2021, restaurants may resume bar service; 


alcohol service will be allowed without the purchase of food; the curfew for removing alcoholic 


drinks from tables will be lifted; and indoor dining capacity will be raised to 75 percent for those 


restaurants pending self-certified at each establishment.   Also, the Governor announced  revised 


maximum occupancy limits for indoor events to allow for 25% of maximum occupancy and outdoor 


events to allow for 50% of maximum occupancy.  Requirements such as mask-wearing, and social 


distancing, including 6 feet between diners, also still apply.  More information can be found on the 


Governor’s website. 


Mr. Pribulka was able to cross reference the new regulations against the Township’s ordinance and 


noted that the ordinance does not need modified.   


Regionally, Eric Barron, President, PSU, and other local leadership held a press conference on 


March 26, 2021 urging caution to residents and students because of the alarming uptick in COVID-


19 cases.  The University’s wastewater monitoring system has identified variances of COVID-19. 


There have been 13,575 confirmed cases county-wide, which is over 1,300 from Mr. Pribulka’s 
report on March 15, 2021.   There have been 65,428 negative cases in the State College.  There 
have been 213 deaths attributed to the virus in Centre County.  There have been 888,747 reported 
cases in Pennsylvania and an additional 156,653 probable cases.  There have been 25,200 deaths. 
 
Mr. Pribulka noted that information is emerging from the American Rescue Plan funding.  The 
Township has not identified the uses of the funding but once the guidelines become available, they 
will begin to develop a strategy.  The Township was allocated $1.92 million.   
 
Mr. Pribulka thanked the residences and business owners in Ferguson Township for their patience 
and understanding as the Township recovers.  
 


b) Centre Area Transportation Authority Report 
 
Mr. John Spychalski, CATA Chairman thanked Ms. Louwana Oliva, Executive Director and CEO of 
CATA for her resilience through the pandemic   Ms. Oliva noted that CATA has been adjusting 
throughout the pandemic and reported that though service was cut back, they kept routes open 
where ridership was needed.  Ridership is only at 15% of what it used to be before the pandemic.  
The pandemic has taken a toll on CATA’s finances because they rely on 40% of the ridership fares 



https://www.facebook.com/centreregionready

https://www.crcog.net/centreregionready

https://www.twp.ferguson.pa.us/

https://www.statecollegepa.us/

https://www.health.pa.gov/Pages/default.aspx

https://www.governor.pa.gov/





Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 3 


and will have to make service adjustments.  Ms. Oliva stated that federal funding has kept them 
open. 
Mr. Spychalski stated that Penn State will be a factor in making adjustments in the fall due to the 
possibility of online classes and employees working from home.  Mr. Spychalski noted that all 
Sunday services have been discontinued, but possibly reinstating HM, N, R, V and the W routes in 
the fall.  A decision will be made to close full-service during Labor Day weekend and the week 
between Christmas and New Year’s.   There will be a reinstatement of the express routes to 40-
minute frequency.  The community routes will continue to be on hold.   
 
Ms. Oliva stated that there will be a virtual community meeting on April 20, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. to 
discuss the proposed changes.   
 
Ms. Stephens asked what is being used to disinfect the busses.  Ms. Oliva state that they use CDC 
approved disinfectants and electrostatic cleaners.         
 


c) Private Streets and Alleys Presentation 
 
Mr. Pribulka presented PowerPoint slides.  Private streets in the Township are described as shared 


driveways with no dedicated right of way and has access to two or more dwellings often on the 


same parcel such as condos.  The most common that cause disputes are private roads and alleys 


because there are no maintenance agreements.  They are not assigned to any specific tax parcel 


or property; there are no agreement for maintenance, repair or access, and all adjoining properties 


assumed to have right to access.  There are private roads and alleys in the Township that do have 


maintenance agreements such as approved subdivision plans since the mid-90’s that include a 


private street and agreements assigned responsibility to all parties for maintenance improvements, 


and access.  Mr. Pribulka gave an example of a shared driveway that included Teaberry Ridge.  


The most common example is a private road with no maintenance agreement such as Reed Alley 


in Pine Grove Mills.   Breezewood Drive in the Township is a private road that does have a 


maintenance agreement.   


Mr. Pribulka stated that they do see disputes arise from property owners that abut private streets.  


Mr. Modricker noted that paper streets can be a private alley plotted in a subdivision plan, but it 


doesn’t exist physically.   Mr. Modricker stated that sometimes there are disputes between property 


owners that might occupy a paper street.  


Mr. Pribulka reviewed possible policy considerations. 


• Township assumes responsibility for all private streets and alleyways. 
o Develop street standards for alleyways in the Subdivision and Land Development 


Ordinance 
o Survey “available” right-of-way, identify encroachments that exist and how they will 


be overcame, prepare cost estimates 
o Acquire deeds of dedication for all private streets and alleyways (excludes shared 


driveways) and plan for capital improvements based on existing conditions and 
priorities. 


• Pros 
o Likely to have the most support from residents along private streets and alleyways 
o “Easiest” option – fee – simple dedication, clear ownership 


• Cons 
o Cost – Will require legal representation and deed preparation ; on-going operational 


and maintenance expenses; equipment costs 
 


Other possible policy considerations include the following: 
 


• Township brokers maintenance agreements with property owners 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 4 


o Develop street standards for private streets and alleyways as policy to guide 
development of maintenance  agreements 


o Work individually with each property owner to draft and execute agreements 


• Pros 
o Least costly to the Township in the long-term 
o Resolves issues for all current and subsequent property owners 


• Cons 
o Large initial effort to broker agreements for each private street and alleyway 
o Reliance on the willingness of property owners to enter into agreement in good faith 
o Additional enforcement opportunities assigned to the Township 


 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed another theory for consideration 
 


• Hybrid approach 
o Develop street standards for private streets and alleyways as an internal guidance 
o Broker private street agreements with each property owner and the Township 


endorses the agreements as a party of interest 
o Survey “available” right-of-way, identify encroachments that exist and how they will 


be overcame, prepare cost estimate 
o Township budgets for repaving and improvements for private streets and alleyways 


based on condition assessments 
o Once improvements are made, on-going maintenance and repairs are assigned  by 


agreement to each property owner 


• Pros 
o Ensures all private streets and alleyways are improved to a common standard 
o Likely to incentivize residents to participate voluntarily in the agreements 


• Cons 
o Costly – Avoids long-term maintenance responsibility but requires investment in 


brokering agreements and improving streets 
 


Mr. Pribulka stated that another alternative is to do nothing as another alternative.  Ferguson 
Township’s approach to private streets and alleys are similar to other municipalities in the Centre 
Region – College Township, Patton Township, and Halfmoon Township.  Staff continues to 
adjudicate disputes as they present themselves to the degree the Township is able.  Other matters 
are commonly civil in nature and referred to the appropriate jurisdiction. 
 
Mr. Pribulka gave his recommendation and noted that this is a problem that staff encounters, but 
not a significant problem that in the Manager’s opinion, justifies the cost of acquiring private roads.  
Problems may be significant for residents, especially when access is impeded, or civil disputes 
arise.  Mr. Pribulka stated that if the Board wishes to proceed, brokering private streets agreements 
is the preferred staff option. 
 
Ms. Dininni shared that she receives complaints regarding private streets and alleyways and gave 
a few examples.  A complaint she received was the level of service of plowing on a road that the 
Township does not plow, and the homeowner expressed concern with the service from the private 
road plowing contractor.  Ms. Dininni also received a complaint regarding trash removal from a 
private road.   Ms. Dininni noted that in Pine Grove Mills it can be confusing which are private 
streets and which are not.   
 
Ms. Strickland stated she too receives the same issues as Ms. Dininni and thanked the Manager 
for the presentation.  The Planning Commission will be looking into the private streets and 
alleyways as part of their workplan.   
 
Public Comment 
 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 5 


Mr. Bill Keough, Ferguson Township Resident and Planning Commission member, thanked Mr. 
Pribulka and Mr. Modricker for the presentation.  Mr. Keough stated that he would suggest putting 
initial effort into developing a strategy to come to a workable solution.   


     
VI. PROCLAMATIONS 


 
a) 2021 Arbor Day Proclamation 
b) 2021 Watershed Cleanup Day Proclamation 
c) 2021 Bike Month Proclamation 
 
Ms. Dininni reviewed the proclamations that were included in the agenda.   
 
Ms. Stephens moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the proclamations.  Mr. Miller seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.   


 
VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 


 
1. Public Hearing – Tree Preservation and Protection Ordinance 
 
Ms. Wargo noted that the Public Works and Planning & Zoning Department has drafted an 


amendment to Chapter 22, Subdivision and Land Development to establish a new part, Tree 


Preservation and Protection. The intent of this chapter is to encourage the protection of trees 


through sound land use and tree management practices.  This chapter will preserve, protect and 


maintain existing trees in Ferguson Township, as well as, increase the overall tree canopy and 


understory with native species. It will aid in improving tree and ecosystem health on both public 


and private lands. The Board authorized staff and the Ferguson Township Tree Commission to 


draft a Tree Preservation Ordinance. The draft ordinance has been received and reviewed by all 


local, regional and county reviewers. The updated amendment, as advertised, is included with  


agenda packet. 


Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance amending Chapter 22, 


Subdivision and Land Development; Part 5, Design and Improvements Standards by establishing 


Section 515, Tree Preservation and Protection and amending Part 202, Definitions.  Mr. Mitra 


seconded the motion.   


Public Hearing 


Mr. David Stone, Nittany Valley Environmental Coalition, noted that the timing is awkward for NVEC 


because they are in final discussions with the Pine Hall lawsuit and expressed concerns with the 


language.  Mr. Stone recommended to postpone the adoption of the ordinance until NVEC has 


completed the settlement agreements.   


Mr. Wes Glebe, Ferguson Township Resident, asked if the quality of soil to plant trees was specified 


within the ordinance.  Ms. Wargo noted that there is nothing included with regards to the quality of 


soil to be used to plant trees.  Mr. Lance King, Township Arborist, noted that he is not aware of 


specifications because the ordinance focuses on existing trees.   


ROLL CALL:  Ms. Dininni – Yes: Mr. Miller – Yes:  Mr. Mitra – Yes: Ms. Stephens – Yes: Ms. 
Strickland – Yes 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 


 


 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 6 


2. Public Hearing – Ordinance Accepting Deeds of Dedication of Public Right-of-Way 
 


Mr. Modricker introduced the ordinance that included (1) additional right-of-way along Whitehall 


Road has been offered for dedication to the Township as part of the approved subdivision plan for 


Harner Farms and is ready for acceptance; (2) As part of an approved subdivision plan along 


Circleville Road, additional land was dedicated to the Township and is ready for acceptance; (3) A 


section of Blue Course Drive from Whitehall Road to the entrance to the future Whitehall Road 


Regional Park was constructed by the developer of The Cottages at State College Planned 


Residential Development and is now in a condition to be accepted by the Township.  Items (4), (5), 


(6) establish the necessary motor vehicle regulations. 


 


Mr. Mitra moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance accepting deeds of dedication 


of public right-of-way as described therein and establishing additional motor vehicle regulations for 


the same.  Ms. Stephens seconded the motion. 


 


Public Hearing 


 


Mr. Wes Glebe, Ferguson Township Resident, noted that The Cottages, Toll Brothers, and The 


Yards all reference the same project and asked why The Cottages was being used.  Mr. Pribulka 


noted that Toll Brothers is the name of the developer, The Yards was a name change that took 


place after the approval of the plan, and The Cottages will be referenced on all documents now.   


 


Mr. Miller asked if there are any other public facilities in The Yards and does it fall under private 


streets.  Mr. Modricker noted that it is the only public street within the development.   


 


ROLL CALL:  Mr. Miller – Yes:  Mr. Mitra – Yes: Ms. Stephens – Yes: Ms. Strickland – Yes: Ms. 
Dininni – Yes 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
3. Public Hearing – Stormwater Fee Non-Profit Organization Exemption Resolution 


 


Mr. Pribulka introduced the ordinance that the Board authorized at their March 1, 2021 meeting to 


advertise a public hearing on a resolution establishing a non-profit exemption policy for the 


Stormwater Management Utility Fee.  Under the policy organization, §501(c)(3); §501(c)(13); or 


§501(c)(19) of the Internal Revenue Code would be exempt.  During the discussion on March 1st, 


a motion carried removing 501(d) organizations from the list of eligible applicants for the exemption.  


Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution establishing an exemption 


policy from the Stormwater Management Utility Fee for eligible non-profit organizations as 


described in Exhibit “A”.  Mr. Mitra seconded the motion. 


Public Hearing 


Mr. Bill Keough, Ferguson Township Resident, asked if there is a definition of what would constitute 


annual revenue.  Mr. Pribulka stated that it is a policy provision that would be interpreted as part of 


the administration of the resolution.   


Mr. Wes Glebe, Ferguson Township Resident, noted that he was on the Stormwater Committee 


Phase II and was not aware of the exemptions and asked for an explanation.  Ms. Dininni noted 


that these are a subset of non-profits and this resolution is hardship policy.  


ROLL CALL:  Mr. Mitra – Yes: Ms. Stephens – Yes: Ms. Strickland – Yes: Ms. Dininni – Yes:  Mr. 
Miller – Yes 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 7 


The motion passed unanimously. 


 
4. Kocher Well Field Improvements – Final Land Development Plan 


 


Ms. Wargo presented the plan and noted that the Final Land Development Plan was submitted by 


Gwin, Dobson & Foreman Engineering, Inc. on behalf of their client, State College Borough Water 


Authority.  The parcel is 47.7 acres and is zoned Rural Agricultural (RA).  The Land Development 


Plan proposes water pumping improvements via two proposed structures to the Kocher well fields 


on Tax parcel 24-006-055E, located at 3961 W. Whitehall Road.  The construction consists of two 


(2) buildings that measure 9 feet 4 inches by 12 feet 4 inches relative to Existing Well No. 71 and 


9 feet 4 inches by 11 feet 4 inches relative to Existing Well No. 78.  There is an existing floodplain 


that traverses the parcel, and no construction is planned in the floodplain.  On June 23, 2020, a 


variance was approved by the Zoning Hearing Board to utilize FEMA Mapping for Floodplain 


Boundary determination instead of independent Hydrologic and Hydraulic (H&H) study as required 


by §27-701.  This is the final review of the land development plan. The Preliminary Plan was 


conditionally approved on October 5, 2020.   


 


Mr. Miller moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Kocher Well Field Water Pumping 


Improvements Final Land Development Plan, dated February 17, 2021, subject to the outstanding 


conditions described in the Community Planner memorandum dated March 26, 2021.  Ms. 


Strickland seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 


 
VIII. NEW BUISNESS 


 
1. Consent Agenda 


 
a. Contract 2018-PWGG-HVAC, Pay App #5: $339,380.36  
b. Contract 2018-PWGG-Plumbing, Pay App #7: $121,918.25  
c. Contract 2020-C4-Suburban Park, Pay App #9: $700.80  
d. Contract 2021-C6- Curb & Ramp Upgrades, Pay App #1 Final: $38,248.05  
e. Board Member Request – Report on Mental Health Taskforce  
f.  Board Member Request – Terraced Streetscape District Amendment  
g. Treasurer’s Report – January 2021 for Acceptance  
h. Voucher Report – January 2021 
i.  Voucher Report – February 2021 
 
Mr. Miller moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Consent Agenda and the 
Treasurer’s Report.   Ms. Stephens seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  
 


2. Resolution – DCED Grant Application for Construction of Park Hills Drainageway 
 
Mr. Pribulka presented the resolution that was included in the agenda.  Staff has identified 
funding sources to offset construction costs associated with the Park Hills Drainageway 
improvements.  Capital Improvement Program budget in the amount of $1,500,000.  The 
Township intends to pursue a grant from the Pennsylvania Department of Community and 
Economic Development for a $250,000 grant which requires a 15 percent local cash match of 
the total project cost.  If approved, grant funding would not exceed the amount of $250,000.  A 
presentation was given on March 3, 2021.    
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution authorizing the 
Township Manager to submit a DCED Greenways, Trails, and Recreation Program Grant 
application for the construction of the Park Hills Drainageway.  Ms. Stephens seconded the 
motion.   



https://www.twp.ferguson.pa.us/sites/g/files/vyhlif576/f/uploads/2018-c20_second_public_meeting_presentation_2021-03-03_final.pdf





Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 8 


ROLL CALL:  Ms. Stephens – Yes: Ms. Strickland – Yes: Ms. Dininni – Yes:  Mr. Miller – Yes: Mr. 
Mitra – Yes 


 
3. Request for Modifications/Waivers 


 
a) West College Student Housing Preliminary Land Development Plan 
 
Ms. Wargo presented the plan. Penn Terra Engineering has submitted an Application for 
Consideration of a Modification/Waiver on behalf of their client, Aspen Heights Partners 
LLC/York Acquisitions. The specific section of the Subdivision and Land Development 
Ordinance request is Section 22.504.2.A.2 – Lot Frontage 1 and Access.  This section of the 
ordinance requires a Private Street Agreement to be signed by all property owners who access 
the private street.  Calder Way is an alley that was created as part of the original subdivision 
plan and exists for the use and enjoyment of those lots created during the subdivision.  The 
alley is in common ownership by all of the lots that created the alley and requiring all properties 
adjacent to Calder Way (Buckhout Street to Corl Street) to sign a Private Street Agreement 
presents an unreasonable hardship on the applicant since the applicant will be maintaining the 
alley in its entirety (from Buckhout Street to Butz Street).  The applicant has included as Note 
18 on the attached plan sheet their maintenance responsibilities for that section of Calder Way. 
Staff and Planning Commission have reviewed the application and recommend approval with 
the condition that the applicant submit a Private Street Agreement, with the Township as a 
party, that will include pre-construction, post-construction, maintenance and indemnity for the 
length of Calder Way between Buckhout Street and Butz Street. 
 
Mr. John Sepp, Penn Terra Engineering stated that the agreement will state that the owners of 
the Aspen project will be solely responsible for the upgrading of the alley, maintenance, and 
keeping the alley open to access for all of the users.  There is no written agreement with any of 
the owners at this time.  The developers will be plowing and maintaining the alley and will be 
asking the property owners across the alley to participate in the upgrade and maintenance of 
the alley.  A property owner attended a recent Planning Commission meeting and confirmed 
they would prefer to have the agreement as it is being proposed.   
 
Ms. Dininni asked for clarification with the other two property owners and why they are not 
included on the agreement.  Mr. Sepp stated that the modification could be amended.  Ms. 
Dininni stated that she is comfortable amending the motion but had concerns with not 
amending.  Mr. Miller noted that potentially a property owner could hold up a project if made to 
sign an agreement.  Ms. Strickland suggested amending the modification to include signatures 
for the portion adjacent to the share of the alley that is being noted in the modification.  Mr. 
Pribulka explained the modification process described in the MPC.  Mr. Pribulka noted that the 
motion that is being recommended was from the Planning Commission and did communicate 
with the applicant the concerns the Board has.  Ms. Dininni inquired if the developer reached 
out to all adjacent property owners.  Mr. Sepp stated that they have but didn’t received a formal 
response from the two property owners.  Mr. David Helfrich, Aspen Heights, stated they spoke 
to their solicitor, the Ferguson Township solicitor, and staff, and they recommended the 
modification that is being presented.   Mr. Helfrich concurred with Mr. Miller regarding a property 
owner not wanting to sign on and could potentially hold up the project.   Mr. Helfrich stated that 
they are agreeing to maintain the alley and it will benefit the property owners and the Township.  
Ms. Dininni felt the modification should have some component of hardship.  Mr. Miller noted 
that the current modification being proposed protects the property owners and does not see a 
problem with the other property owners signing the agreement.  Ms. Stephens concurred with 
Mr. Miller that it protects everyone and gives them access.  Mr. Mitra asked what would happen 
if one of the property owners do not sign the agreement.  Mr. Pribulka stated that the Township 
would be acting on behalf of the adjoining property owners if there were a dispute.   Ms. 
Strickland expressed concerns with setting a precedent and noted that it makes sense to limit 
to the property owners adjoining the property in question.   







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 9 


Public Comment 
 
Mr. Bill Keough, Ferguson Township Resident, noted that in the agreement doesn’t clarify any 
property ownership.  The Planning Commission discussed the importance of having the 
Township be a party to the section of the alleyway because the Township will hold the 
agreement in perpetuity.   
 
Mr. Wes Glebe, Ferguson Township Resident, noted that he lives besides an alley and asked 
what his rights are, and stated that his rights are limited.  Mr. Glebe inquired about how much 
research has been done with regards to the agreement.   
 
Mr. David Helfrich, Aspen Heights, noted that the agreement benefits the Township and the 
residents.   
 
Mr. John Sepp, PennTerra Engineering, stated that the agreement would not restrict anyone’s 
rights to access the alley and the Township solicitor would review and approve any agreement 
to ensure the Township wouldn’t be in jeopardy. 
 
Ms. Dininni asked about the language in the agreement around the standards, what is the 
benefit to the Township, and how would it be applied in this situation.  
 
Mr. Pribulka showed an aerial map of the properties in question and answered several previous 
questions.  The agreement will not give the applicant any exclusive rights or additional 
privileges.  Regarding the standard question, Mr. Pribulka stated that the reason the standards 
are included is because typically agreements are usually the opposite of wanting to provide a 
service.   
 
Ms. Stephens asked if the State College Borough is involved due to the small section that is in 
the Borough.  Mr. Pribulka noted that under the ordinance the State College Borough tax parcel 
will be incorporated. 
 
Mr. Miller moved that the Board of Supervisors grant the modification to §22- 504.2.A.2—
Standards for Traffic Capacity and Access with the condition that the applicant submit a Private 
Street Agreement, with the Township as a party, that will include pre-construction, post-
construction, maintenance and indemnity for the length of Calder Way between Buckhout Street 
and Butz Street.  Ms. Stephens seconded the motion.  The motion passed 3-2 with Ms. Dininni 
and Ms. Strickland opposing. 
 
b) Wright Property – Waiver of Land Development Plan 
 
Ms. Wargo introduced the waiver and noted that property owners, Daniel and Kelly Wright, have 
submitted an Application for Consideration of a Modification/Waiver from §22-104.1.B.(1)—
Establishment of Controls; Applicability for their 44-acre property at 1000 North Nixon Road.  
There is currently one dwelling on the parcel and the applicants are proposing to construct a 
new dwelling on the property.  During construction of the new dwelling, the owners will live in 
the existing dwelling and demolish the existing structure within 6 months of receiving a 
Certificate of Occupancy for the new dwelling.  In accordance with the PA Municipalities 
Planning Code (MPC) and the Township’s Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance 
(SALDO), the addition of the second dwelling requires the applicant to submit a land 
development plan and go through the land development plan process.  The applicants have 
requested a waiver from having to complete a land development plan with the condition that 
the existing dwelling will be demolished within 6 months of receiving a Certificate of Occupancy 
for the new dwelling and that the applicant will comply with all other State Regulations. Staff 
and Planning Commission have reviewed the request and have no additional conditions to 
include with the application.  







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 10 


 
Mr. Miller moved that the Board of Supervisors grant the modification to §22- 104.1.B.(1)—
Establishment of Controls; Applicability with the condition that the existing dwelling be 
demolished within 6 months of receiving Certificate of Occupancy for the new dwelling and that 
the applicant will comply with all other State Regulations.  Mr. Mitra seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed unanimously.   
 
c) Wasson/Ash Avenue Subdivision Plan 
 
Ms. Wargo presented the plan and noted that on behalf of their client, PennTerra Engineering, 
Inc., has requested a modification/waiver from Section 22-306.1.—Minor Subdivision and Minor 
Alteration for the Wasson – Ash Avenue Replot/Subdivision Plan.  The section has a process 
outlined for a Minor Subdivision and the definition of a minor subdivision was omitted during the 
Township’s Comprehensive Update to Chapter 22—Subdivision and Land Development 
Ordinance (SALDO).  The plan submitted is replotting lot lines and no new lots are being 
created. Staff and Planning Commission have reviewed the application and are recommending 
approval.  Ms. Wargo shared images of the plan.   
 
Mr. Miller moved that hat the Board of Supervisors grant the modification to §22- 306.1.—Minor 
Subdivision and Minor Alteration Plan.  Mr. Mitra seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
unanimously.   
 
d) Wasson/Ash Avenue Sidewalks 
 
Ms. Wargo presented the plan and noted that on behalf of their client, PennTerra Engineering, 
Inc., on behalf of their client, has requested a modification/waiver from Section 22-512—
Sidewalks for the Wasson –Ashe Avenue Replot/Subdivision Plan.  The plan is proposing to 
replot three (3) existing lots in an established, built-out neighborhood.  There are no existing 
sidewalks on either side of the street.  The potential for connection to future sidewalks is 
extremely unlikely and no new land development is proposed. Staff and Planning Commission 
have reviewed the application and are recommending approval.   
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors grant the modification to §22- 512—
Sidewalks.  Mr. Miller seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 


4. West College Student Housing Preliminary Land Development Plan 
 
Ms. Wargo presented the plan and noted that Penn Terra Engineering, Inc., submitted a Land 
Development Plan and Lot Consolidation Plan on behalf of their client, Aspen Heights Partners 
LLC/York Acquisitions. The parcels are located at the intersection of West College Ave and 
Buckhout Street. Once consolidated the parcel will be 1.136 acres.  Four parcels are located in 
the Terraced Streetscape District (TSD) in Ferguson Township and Parcel 36-010-006 is 
located partially in the Borough of State College’s Planned Commercial District (CP-2). The 
land development plan proposes a 6-story multi-family residential apartment building with 
commercial/retail space on the first floor. The applicant is utilizing height incentives found in 
§27- 304.3.B.(2) and has provided additional parking in the parking structure to share for use 
by others.  The applicant is eligible for an additional 20 feet to be added to the permitted 
maximum height (55 feet).  The building will consist of three levels of parking and 5 floors of 
multi-family residential apartments. There are 96 residential units (268 beds) and a total of 
8,696 square feet of nonresidential spaces.  The plan calls for 159 parking spaces, 151 of which 
will be located in the parking structure.  A variance was granted by the Ferguson Township 
Zoning Hearing Board on February 25, 2020, to allow parking on first floor of the building. There 
are 14 short-term bicycle parking spaces proposed on site.  Planning Commission reviewed 
this Preliminary Land Development Plan at their February 8, 2021 Regular Meeting and 
recommended approval to the Board of Supervisors. Provided below in the agenda is a Dropbox 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 11 


link to access the land development plan. Provided with the agenda packet is a memorandum 
from Kristina Aneckstein, Community Planner, dated April 1, 2021, summarizing Planning 
Commission’s comments on the plan.  Staff has also included all outstanding staff review 
comments, as well as comments provided by the Borough of State College’s advisory review 
bodies.  Staff reached out to Walt Schneider, Centre Region Code Administration Director, 
about §22-5C01.1.C.(1)(a) for compliance with PA Uniform Construction Code.  The Code is 
silent on drive aisle widths for parking structures and only includes standards for accessibility 
and height.   
 
Ms. Strickland asked if the sinkhole was resolved.  Mr. Sepp noted is was resolved by working 
with CMT Laboratories in identifying them.  Ms. Strickland inquired about the number of extra 
public parking spaces and where they are located.  Ms. Wargo stated that there are two extra 
spaces.  Mr. Sepp noted that one option that is being considered is to work with the other 
adjacent property owner for them to use the spaces and stated that they will most likely be 
within the garage.  Ms. Dininni asked for clarification since the adjacent property owner is 
related to the landowner.  Mr. Sepp indicated that it is a possibility.  Ms. Strickland asked how 
that would meet the terms of the incentive.  Ms. Wargo noted that the incentive states that 
additional parking to share by use of others and stated that the Township Zoning Officer 
interprets others as someone not directly involved with the land development.  Once the lot 
consolidation is complete, the current owner that is on the plans will no longer be associated, 
so that can be a potential option.   Mr. Helfrich, Aspen Heights, stated there will be signage that 
reads public parking and not for non-resident use.  Ms. Wargo noted that commercial tenants, 
patrons, and residents will have parking spaces.   
 
Ms. Strickland inquired about the building height.  Ms. Wargo stated that it is approximately 75 
feet.  Mr. Sepp indicated it is just under 75 feet. There are an additional six parking spaces that 
are not within the building, and Ms. Strickland asked where they were located.  Mr. Sepp 
answered that they are behind the building along the alley.  With regards to bike parking, Ms. 
Strickland inquired about the short-term bike parking and asked if there is any residential bike 
storage.  Ms. Wargo stated that there is no requirement within the ordinance and it only includes 
short-term bike parking.  Mr. Helfrich stated that there isn’t anything included but will look into 
adding.   
 
Ms. Strickland inquired about the contamination and digging of the foundation to ensure it would 
not be disturbed.  Mr. Sepp stated that they will not be going to the depth of were the 
contamination is located.  Ms. Dininni expressed concerns in the event the soil was to be 
disturbed and a potential of gas fumes.  Mr. Sepp stated that DEP has strict requirements for 
removal and disposal of any containment soils.  In the event anything would arise in the future, 
Mr. Sepp stated that DEP and the Township would be notified immediately.  Mr. Helfrich stated 
that they will follow the regulations and directions from the state, consultants, and the Township.  
 
Ms. Strickland inquired about the timeline of construction and Mr. Helfrich stated that 
construction will start in mid to late June and will last 18 months.  In the event there would be a 
delay in construction, Aspen Heights will make every effort to accommodate the students by 
booking hotels and offering per diems.     
 
Ms. Dininni asked if Aspen Heights will be participating in the CATA bus program to provide 
passes for residents.  Danielle Bleier, Develop Manager, Aspen Heights, stated they are 
working with CATA to join the program to provide passes.   
 
Ms. Strickland expressed concerns with the CATA bus stop.  Mr. Sepp noted that CATA is 
looking into relocating east of the Buckhout intersection.  Ms. Strickland and Ms. Dininni both 
expressed concerns with pedestrian safety.   
 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 12 


Ms. Dininni inquired about the voluntary participation with upgrading the intersection when it is 
needed.  Mr. Pribulka stated that the Township’s Engineers opinion is that it is unlikely that the 
intersection will ever meet PennDot’s signal warrant.   
 
Ms. Strickland asked about signage on College Avenue with regards to no stopping.  Mr. Sepp 
stated that the signs have been approved by the Public Works staff and will be approved during 
the final plan approval.  Also, Ms. Strickland asked for rent comparison with other rental 
properties in the area.  Mr. Helfrich stated they are two years out from occupancy and have not 
published the rates.  Ms. Strickland noted at this time she would not approve the preliminary 
plan as it is due to traffic and pedestrian safety issues.  Mr. Helfrich reiterated that they 
incorporated all of PennDot, the consultant, and staff recommendations into the plan.   
 
Ms. Dininni asked about the rooftop terrace and the potential for amplification of noise such as 
music.  Mr. Pribulka noted that the Township’s noise ordinance is somewhat restrictive with 
amplified music.  Mr. Helfrich stated there wouldn’t be music playing on the terrace and would 
comply with the ordinance.    
 
Public Comment 
 
Mr. Bill Keough, Ferguson Township Resident, noted that the Planning Commission spent a lot 
of time reviewing and discussing vehicular and pedestrian traffic around the location.  Mr. 
Keough commented that the location is not idea for either vehicles or pedestrians and it will be 
a challenge.  Mr. Keough thanked the developer for listening to the Planning Commission with 
regards to the loading area that was recommended to be incorporated into the plan.   
 
Mr. Miller moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the West College Student Housing 
Preliminary Land Development Plan pending outstanding staff comments as noted in the 
Community Planner’s memorandum dated April 1, 2021.  Mr. Mitra seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed 4-1 with Ms. Strickland opposing.   
 


5. Wasson/Ash Avenue Replot Preliminary/Final Subdivision Plan 
 
Ms. Wargo presented the plan and noted that PennTerra Engineering, Inc., submitted the 
Wasson – Ash Avenue Replot Plan on behalf of their client. The Wasson – Ash Avenue Replot 
Plan is located at 1451 Ash Avenue, T.P. # 24- 002A,132-,0000. The purpose of this plan is to 
replot Tax Parcel 24-002A,132-,0000-, 24- 002A,134-,0000- and 24-002A,135- ,0000-.  


 
The parcel is located within the Single Family Residential (R1) zoning district.  A request for a 
modification/waiver from Section 22-306.1. – Minor Subdivision and Minor Alteration Plan and 
Section 22-512 – Sidewalks was submitted on behalf of their client.  Ms. Wargo noted that the 
Board reviewed earlier in the evening and was approved.  Provided with the agenda packet is 
a memorandum from Kristina Aneckstein, Community Planner, dated March 26, 2021, that 
includes outstanding staff comments.  Ms. Wargo stated that this will be the only review the 
Board will have with the plan.   
 
Mr.  Miller moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Preliminary/Final Subdivision Plan 
for Wasson/Ash Avenue pending outstanding staff comments outlined in the Community 
Planner’s memorandum dated March 26, 2021.  Mr. Mitra seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 


IX. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 


1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS 


a. Executive Committee – Ms. Dininni noted that the report was included in the agenda packet.  
 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, April 5, 2021 
Page 13 


 
b. Joint PSE, TLU Committees and CRPC – Ms. Strickland noted that the report was included 


in the agenda packet and encouraged everyone to watch on CNET.  The next meeting will 
be held on May 6, 2021.  
 


2. OTHER COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
a. Spring Creek Watershed Commission – Mr. Mitra noted that there was a presentation on 


One Water Report by Paul Takac.  The Board will be seeing this presentation in the future.  
The educational topic was from Dr. Richard Parizek on “The Living Filter Project”.  There 
will be a Groundwater Symposium on May 5, 2021, by Penn State Extension.     
 


b. Solar PPA Working Group – The report was included in the packet.   
 


3. STAFF REPORTS 
 
a. Manager’s Report – Mr. Pribulka noted that the report is in the agenda along with a 


communication from the Centre County Central Booking Center.  Ms. Dininni inquired 
about the funding that is being proposed in the letter from the Booking Center.  Mr. Pribulka 
will obtain more information to share with the Board.    
 


b. Public Works Director - Mr. Pribulka noted that the report is in the agenda. 
 


c. Planning and Zoning Director - Mr. Pribulka noted that the report is in the agenda. 
    


X. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD  
 
There were no communications.   
 


XI. CALENDAR ITEMS – APRIL 
 


a.  Coffee and Conversation, Saturday, April 17, 2021, 8:00 a.m. 
b.  Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan Advisory Committee, Thursday, April 22, 4:00 p.m. 
 


XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, Ms. Stephens motioned to adjourn 
the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 11:23 p.m. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 


 
 
 
 
 
David Pribulka, Township Manager 
For the Board of Supervisors 








 


  
 


Manager’s Report 
April 15, 2021 


 
1. Provided with my report is a letter from Wayne Laubscher of the Centre County 


Office of Planning & Community Development providing information on the 
upcoming 2021 Centre County West Nile Virus Surveillance and Control Program. 
No action is required by the Township, but we typically assist in disseminating 
information to Township residents through print and electronic media on how to 
control the mosquito population and reduce the transmission of the virus. 
 


2. Provided with my report is a letter from Matthew Cox, President of Centre Bike, 
thanking the Board for your assistance in helping the Centre Region achieve a 
Silver Bicycle Friendly Community designation by the League of American 
Bicyclists. Staff has received two street signs with the designation and will install 
them along bike corridors in the Township. 
 


3. Staff has received communication from PennDOT that the Department will not be 
installing pedestrian accommodations at the traffic signal on PA Route 26 and 45. 
This is contrary to the feedback from the Board of Supervisors and the public 
through the PennDOT Connects process that strongly supported crosswalks and 
pedestrian “push-buttons” at the intersection. Staff will be reaching out to the 
District Executive to encourage the Department to reconsider. If that is not 
successful, the Board will be asked to consider alternatives. 
 


4. The Ferguson Township Parks and Recreation Committee met on Thursday, April 
15th. The primary topic for discussion was a review of the draft Request for 
Proposals for consulting services to update to the Recreation, Parks, and Open 
Space Plan, which has been budgeted for 2021. The Board can expect to see an 
award recommendation in July. Other topics discussed included 2021 Ferguson 
Township Bike Month and a review of the 2021 Parks and Recreation Committee 
goals. 




















ORDINANCE NO. _______ 


AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 
FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA CHAPTER 10 HEALTH AND SAFETY, 
ADDING PART VII SECTION 10-701 APPLICATION; 10-702 DEFINITIONS; 10-703 
RECREATIONAL FIRES; 10-704 BURNING LEAVES AND LEAF WASTE; 10-705 BURNING 
REFUSE AND TRADE WASTE PROHIBITED; 10-706 OPEN BURN PERMITS; 10-707 SAFETY 
ZONES FOR OPEN BURNS, SMOKERS AND RECREATIONAL FIRES; 10-708 SPECIAL 
PROHIBITIONS. 


The Board of Supervisors of the Township of Ferguson hereby ordains: 


Chapter 10 Health and Safety - Part VII 


10-701 Application.


In addition to the Centre Region Building Safety and Property Maintenance Code adopted by the 
Centre Region Council of Governments and Ferguson Township, the Township has adopted the 
following amendments and alterations. 


10- 702 Definitions.


Leaf Waste - Leaves, garden residues, shrubbery, tree trimmings and similar material including 
grass clippings. 


Open Burn – The burning of materials wherein the products of combustion are emitted directly 
into the ambient air without passing through a stack or chimney from an enclosed chamber.  Open 
burning does not include road flares, smudge pots and similar devices associated with safety or 
occupational uses typically considered open flames, recreational fires or use of a portable outdoor 
fireplace.  For the purpose of this definition, a chamber shall be regarded as enclosed when, 
during the time combustion occurs, only apertures, ducts, stacks, flues or chimneys necessary to 
provide combustion air and permit the escape of exhaust gas are open. 


Refuse - All perishable animal and vegetable matter resulting from the handling, preparation, 
cooking, and consumption of food; any solid or liquid material which, when ignited, creates toxic 
or noxious fumes, including but not limited to plastics, rubber, petrochemicals, furniture, carpets, 
rags, and old clothing; any waste not herein defined as leaf waste or trade waste. 


Trade Waste - All solid or liquid waste material resulting from construction, building operations, 
or the performance of any business, trade, or industry including, but not limited to, asphalt 
shingles, electric wiring, plastic products, cartons, paint, grease, oil and other petroleum products, 
chemicals, cinders, processed wood, shrubs, plants, and vegetation as part of a commercial 
landscape business, and other forms of solid or liquid waste materials; provided, however, that 
trade waste shall not include any coal refuse associated with the mining or preparation of coal. 


Recreational Fire – An outdoor fire burning materials other than rubbish, leaf or leaf waste where 
the fuel being burned is not contained in an incinerator, outdoor fireplace, portable outdoor 
fireplace, barbeque grill or barbeque pit and has a total fuel area 3 feet (914mm) or less in 
diameter and 2 feet (610mm) or less in height for pleasure, religious, ceremonial, cooking, warmth 
or similar purposes. 


D R
A F


T







 


Red Flag Warning – A warning issued by the National Weather Service indicating critical fire 
weather conditions are expected due to a combination of warm temperatures, low humidity, and 
strong wind conditions. 
 
10-703 Recreational Fires. 


Recreational fires shall only use dried wood not painted, stained or treated lumber. 
 
10-704 Burning of leaves and leaf waste. 


No person shall burn leaves or leaf waste for any reason within Ferguson Township. 
 
10-705 Burning refuse and trade waste prohibited. 


It is unlawful for any person to burn refuse or trade waste. 
 
10-706 Open Burn Permits. 


Open burning shall be prohibited in all zoning districts within the regional growth boundary and in 
all residential districts (R1, R2, R3 and R4) across the Township. 
 
10-707 Safety zone for open burns, smokers and recreational fires. 


All open burns and smokers shall be at least 50 feet from adjacent property lines and recreational 
fires shall have a minimum of 20 feet from adjacent property lines.  Additionally, open burn permits 
shall require the applicant to maintain a 30-foot clearing around the fire. 
 
Additionally, recreational fires must be more than 25 feet away from a structure or combustible 
material or conditions which could cause the fire to spread. 
 
10-708 Special Prohibitions. 


Open Burning and recreational fires and (fireworks) shall be prohibited for the duration of any Red 
Flag Warning, or any drought watch, drought warning or emergency declaration. 
 
ORDAINED AND ENACTED this 19th day of April 2021. 
 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
 
 
 


By:    
         Laura Dininni, Chair 
         Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 


 
[ S E A L ] 
 


ATTEST: 
 


 
By: 


   David G. Pribulka, Secretary 


D R A F 
T












 


 


- A Home Rule Municipality - 


 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 


Telephone: 814-238-4651 •  Fax: 814-238-3454 


www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 


 


  
`


 


Public Works Director’s Report to the Board of Supervisors (BOS) 


for the regular meeting on April 19, 2021 


 


1. Public Works Road Crew Activities –. Work activities the week of April 19th include brush 
collection, street sweeping, and construction of a walking path as shown on the land 
development plan for the new public works garage. Work for the week of April 26th includes 
crack sealing, street sweeping, and topsoil and seed repairs and backup for contracted ADA 
curb repairs. Vehicle maintenance and miscellaneous work orders are ongoing. 


2. Arborist and Tree Commission Activities- The FTTC meets next on April 19th. Topics of 
discussion include the tree canopy survey, outreach and education, consideration of pussy 
willow on the official plant list, and setting the agenda for the May meeting with invited guests 
to speak on greening the community initiatives. 55 bare root trees are being planted starting 
April 14th in Haymarket Park, Stonebridge, Hillside Farms and other locatins. Landscaping 
around the Township buildings is planned for the week of 26th. 


3. New Public Works Facility: Punchlist items were reviewed on April 13th. Efforts are still 
needed to make the Gasboy fuel system and Westmatic wash bay system functional. Site 
restoration including landscaping is planned for April. 


4. Stormwater Fee – Staff meets bi-weekly to review progress on efforts needed to ensure a 
smooth and effective implementation of a stormwater fee. Activities include quality control and 
updates/revisions to the GIS impervious layer assignment, finalizing the master account file, 
coordination with our third party billing agency, public communication and continued education 
outreach, creating fillable application forms using Laserfishe that can be accessed on line by 
property owners to apply for credits, partial agriculture exemption, financial/economic hardship 
exemption, and non-profit exemption. 


5. Contract 2016-C11 Traffic Signal Performance Metrics – Design work on this project 
continues. 


6. Contract 2018-C20 Park Hills Drainageway –Design work continues. Completion of design, 
permitting, easement acquisition, utility relocation this year are needed to progress the project 
toward construction in 2022. 


7. Contract 2019-C21 Pine Grove Mills Street Light Conversion: Design work continues. 
Entered into a phase 2 design agreement with Barton Associates for electrical design. 







 


 


 


8. Contract 2020-C18 Science Park and Sandy Drive Signal Design – Design of the traffic 
signal will be completed in-house for bidding and construction in 2021.  Signal design is 
progressing with the next step being utility coordination and subsurface utility engineering.  


9. Contract 2020-C20 Pine Grove Mills Mobility Study – A contract for this study has been 
awarded to McCormick Taylor, but a notice to proceed has not been issued due to the 
coronavirus pandemic which has affected traffic volumes.  Staff and consultant are monitoring 
traffic volumes and activities to determine an appropriate time to begin the project.  This 
project is currently on hold. 


10. Contract 2020-C21 Pine Grove Road & Water Street/Nixon Road Signal Warrant Study – 
A contract for this study has been awarded to McCormick Taylor, but a notice to proceed has 
not been issued due to coronavirus pandemic which has affected traffic volumes.  This project 
is on hold. 


11. Contract 2021-C1 Harold Drive and Gatesburg Road – The scope of work has been 
reduced due to staffing shortfalls. The work planned to be done in house is postponed. No 
capital improvement work will be done on Harold Drive. No roadside drainage improvements 
nor significant base repair will be done in house on Gatesburg Road. Engineering staff is 
evaluating the scope of work to be done by contract. 


12. Contract 2021-C2 Devonshire Drive Inlet Box – This work was awarded. 


13. Contract 2021-C3 Cured in Place Pipe Lining – This project includes lining old corrugated 
metal storm pipes predominately in the Brackenridge neighborhood based on a completed 
video assessment of the pipes. 


14. Contract 2021-C5 Storm Sewer Cleaning and Video Assessment – This project includes 
cleaning existing storm pipes and televising the system to document the condition of pipes. 


15. Contract 2021-C7 a Fuel – Annually the Township bids gasoline and diesel fuel. Bids were 
opened on April 13th. See separate award recommendation memo. 


16. Contract 2021-C7b Street signs and supplies – Annually the Township receives quotes for 
street signs and supplies. 


17. Contract 2021-C7c Asphalt and Aggregate – Annually the Township bids asphalt and 
aggregate. Bids were opened on April 13th. See separate award recommendation memo. 


18. Contract 2021-C 8 Pavement Markings – This work was awarded. 


19. Contract 2021-C9 Microsurfacing – This work is bid each year and typically performed in late 
July when school is out of session and temperatures are favorable for this type of work. Work 
includes the placement of two layers of a slurry of fine aggregate, minerals, asphalt emulsion 
and water on the pavement surface as a preventative maintenance measure to cost effectively 
extend the life of the pavement. Bids were opened March 9th. See separate award 
recommendation memo. 


20. Contract 2021-C10 Sealcoat bikepaths – Certain bikepaths and multi-use paths are 
sealcoated to extend the life of the asphalt path. In advance of work, FTPW will edge and 







 


 


 


sweep the paths, seal any cracks, and repair the asphalt as needed. Work is performed in the 
summer months. This project is out to bid for an opening on May 11th. 


21. Contract 2021-C11 Sidewalk Repairs – FTPW Engineering Section will inspect a portion of 
the public sidewalks, typically in May of each year. Property owners are sent notices to fix 
deficient sidewalk sections and given an opportunity to fix it themselves or have the Township 
perform the work by contract and bill the property owner. 


22. Contract 2021-C12 Traffic Signal Cabinet Installation – Work includes upgrading the 
cabinet at the intersection of Science Park Road and West College Avenue  


23. Contract 2021-C13 Traffic Signal LED Replacements – Signal LEDs are replaced 
approximately every 7 years. 


24. Contract 2021-C14 Traffic Signal UPS Batteries – Batteries are needed in the event of 
power outages and are replaced at the end of their useful life. 


25. Contract 2021-C15 Street Tree Pruning – Each year a certain number of street trees are 
pruned to include shaping, clearance, deadwood removal, and hazard mitigation. 


26. Contract 2021-C16 Chesapeake Bay Pollutant Reduction Plan (CBPRP) Design and 
Permitting – In compliance with our MS4 permit and CBPRP, certain projects will be 
advanced through the design and permitting phase. 


27. Contract 2021-C17 Guide Rail Replacement – Quotes are obtained to replace certain 
sections of guiderail as needed. 


28. Contract 2021-C18 Homestead Park Play Equipment Installation – Once equipment is 
selected, FTPW Engineering Section with assistance as needed from the Road Crew will 
procure, prepare the playground pit, and oversee installation of playground equipment. 


29. Contract 2021-C19 Louise E. Silvi Baseball Field Fence Installation – Work includes 
replacement of a section of ball field fence. 


30. Contract 2021-C20 Songbird Sanctuary Plan Implementation – A yet to be formalized 
scope of work including a perimeter walking path and tree planting will be moved forward by 
FTPW. 


31. Contract 2021-C21 Signal Luminaire Conversion to LED – This project includes converting 
select overhead lighting at traffic signal intersections from high pressure sodium to LED. 


32. Contract 2021-C22 Playground Safety and Update Program – Each year funding is 
provided to update playground equipment found to be deficient based on playground 
inspections. No project has yet been assigned to FTPW for this year. 


33. Contract 2021-C23 Traffic Signal Pole Replacement – Work includes replacement of a 
traffic signal pole at the intersection of West College Avenue and Science Park Road. The pole 
was damaged in a vehicle accident. The contract was awarded. 


34. Asset Management and Work Order Software – Staff continues to evaluate Dude Solutions 
and is evaluating TRAISR software. 








FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
WHITEHALL ROAD REGIONAL PARK 


SPECIAL MEETING 
MONDAY, MARCH 29, 2021 


2:00 p.m. 
 


I. ATTENDANCE 


The Board of Supervisors held a special meeting on Monday, March 29, 2021, via ZOOM.  In 
attendance were: 
 
Board: Laura Dininni- Chair 


Lisa Strickland – Vice Chair 
Patricia Stephens 
Prasentjit Mitra 


Staff: David Pribulka, Township Manager 
Kristina Aneckstein, Community Planner 


             
Others in attendance were:  Joe Viglione; Eric Norenberg; Brian Brushwood; Kathy; Leah 
Witzig; Jim May; lukef; Mark Kunkle; Marley Parish; Matt Vidic; Melanie Lucas; Mike Stratton; 
Nicolas Auvillian; Pam Salokangas; Patti; Shannon Messick; Stephanie Staniar; Thomas 
Wilson; and Wes Glebe. 
 


II. CALL TO ORDER 


The meeting was called to order at 2:03 p.m.  Mr. Pribulka introduced the Zoom engagement 
etiquette and rules. 


 
III. WHITEHALL ROAD REGIONAL PARK PHASE 1 DEVELOPMENT 


Ms. Dininni introduced the goals of the Special Meeting and the items which are proposed for 
discussion.  She reviewed the most recent discussions relative to the development of 
Whitehall Road Regional Park and how the Parks Authority voted to proceed at their most 
recent meeting, which included awarding of two of the seven bids, and a plan to rescope and 
rebid the remaining five agreements. 
  
Ms. Strickland suggested the COG consider the suggestion of Peter Marshall, Councilman for 
State College Borough, to engage the managers and a designated elected official from each 
municipality about potential master plan modifications that could result in cost containment for 
the project.  Mr. Mitra and Ms. Stephens agreed on this approach.  Mr. Mitra reemphasized 
his position that, where possible, parking should be reduced.  
 
Ms. Dininni suggested a liaison be designated by the Board to attend the Centre Region Parks 
Authority meetings as decisions are being made.  Ms. Dininni reviewed a conceptual drawing 
submitted by a resident that include modifications to the proposed master plan.  
 
The Board discussed suggesting substituting costs associated with parking for the installation 
of the restrooms if possible.  The Board also discussed the implications that changes would 
have on the master plan and the approved land development plan.  The Board discussed 
potential parking changes. 
 


D R
 A


 F
 T







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
WRRP Special Meeting 
Monday, March 29, 2021 
Page 2 
 


Ms. Dininni suggested a letter to capture the suggestions as a Board to COG General Forum 
and the Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority about the discussions that took place 
by the Board.  Ms. Stephens noted that she does not want the letter to sound like an ultimatum 
or directive.  The letter was summarized as a request to reduce impervious surface and to 
identify what the operational costs would be per sq. ft. of parking for a stormwater fee.  The 
Board clarified their request to want to be present (or a designee of the Board) for the 
discussions on rescoping prior to the bids being re-issued.  Ms. Strickland suggested that the 
Manager be the designee of the Board to represent the Township in its request.  Ms. Dininni 
suggested that the Township’s position would be open-ended so as not to unduly influence 
the discussions of the Authority and not limit the options available to them.  The Board clarified 
that the communication to the Parks Authority should note that the stormwater fee and 
operational expenses associated with the proposed development should be considered, 
including that reducing the impervious surface or capitalizing on available credits may reduce 
their fee. 
  
Ms. Salokangas review the proposed rescoping process in front of the Park Authority. 


 
Ms. Strickland reiterated that the letter does not include a Board recommendation that the 
Park Authority revise the Park Master Plan, but to suggest modifications within the approved 
master plan and land development plan.  The Board reviewed their recommendations for a 
restroom facility at the park.  The Board agreed that the restroom facility, if it would indeed 
change the approved land development requirement, may be deprioritized or that the 
restroom amenity be reduced to contain cost. 
 
Ms. Dininni noted that the State College Borough Water Authority has suggested that future 
phases of the park remain undeveloped.  Ms. Salokangas noted that the land development 
plan does include grading of future phases of the site for stormwater management purposes. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 


Ms. Auvillain expressed support for the development of active play fields.  Mr. Lovisky 
expressed support for the park and the development of the regional park and its facilities 
without further delay. Ms. Dininni clarified that the discussion was not intended to further 
delay the park.  Ms. Zeiss reiterated Mr. Lovisky’s comments and noted that her opinion 
is that fields should take precedence over restrooms.  Mr. Vidic also reiterated Mr. 
Lovisky’s comments and noted that the parking needs to include considerations for the 
variety of uses and how tournament play is accounted for in the park’s development. Mr. 
Fallon noted that turf and lights will significantly improve youth sports in the State College 
area.  Mr. Brushwood with State College Warrior’s Lacross echoed previous comments 
and noted that restrooms and pavilions add to the attraction for outside organizations to 
utilize the field.  


 
Ms. Dininni requested an updated benchmark analysis and more details on how the proposed 
changes in the restroom amenity would impact the short- and long-term operational costs 
associated with the park.  Ms. Stephens and Ms. Strickland disagreed with the request.  Mr. 


D R
 A


 F
 T







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
WRRP Special Meeting 
Monday, March 29, 2021 
Page 3 
 


Mitra concurred.  Ms. Dininni noted that her request was for the purposes of local budgeting 
that would be expected to supplement the operational costs associated with the park.  


 


Ms. Dininni expressed concern about emergency access to the park.  Ms. Stephens reiterated 
her opinion that Peter Marshall’s suggestion should be prioritized.  Ms. Strickland agreed. 
 
The Board directed the Manager to schedule a further discussion on the financing options for 
the first Regular Meeting in May. 
 


ADJOURNMENT 


Ms. Stephens moved to adjourn. The Board adjourned at 4:20 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
David Pribulka, Township Manager 
For the Board of Supervisors 


D R
 A


 F
 T












RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA, 


CONDEMNING ACTS OF HATRED, BIAS, AND EXCLUSIONARY BEHAVIOR TOWARDS 


PEOPLE OF COLOR, ESPECIALLY ASIANS, ASIAN-AMERICANS, AND PACIFIC 


ISLANDERS, HEREAFTER REFERRED TO AS “AAPI”, AND JOINS OTHER COMMUNITIES 


AROUND THE WORLD IN PURSUIT OF RACIAL AND SOCIAL EQUITY. 


WHEREAS, recent attacks and acts of hate against people of color and members of 


the AAPI community have escalated across the United States with the rise of nativistic 


attitudes exhibited on social media and broadcast journalism and AAPI groups are being 


scapegoated; and 


WHEREAS, the United States has a history of systemic racism in our institutions and 


the misconception persists that AAPI are non-American or even foreigners in their own country; 


and 


WHEREAS, the United States has engaged in more than a century of racial targeting 


of AAPI including the passage of the Chinese Exclusion Act of 1882, the detention of 120,000 


innocent Japanese Americans during WWII and more recently the last administration’s 


attempt to add a citizenship question to the United States census; and 


WHEREAS, on January 26, 2021, the Office of the President issued an executive 


order recognizing the federal government’s role in furthering harmful acts against members 


of the AAPI community across the United States; and 


WHEREAS, the Federal Bureau of Investigation recognizes the gap in data collection 


and public reporting of hate incidents, and the Office of the President has called for expanding 


data collection and public reporting of hate incidents; and 


WHEREAS, the Office of the President has called for partnership with state and local 


governments to prevent discrimination against Asian Americans; and 


WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has issued a statement condemning 


racial violence against AAPI. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Ferguson 


Township remains committed to ensuring that everyone in our community has equitable access 


to resources and equal protection under the law. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Ferguson Township 


recognizes that if a member of our community is the victim of racially motivated bias of violence, 


or has the potential to be, it is incumbent on the governing body to implement measures to 


address that violence. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Ferguson Township 


calls on our neighbors in our community and around the nation and globe to respect human 


dignity and stop bias, prejudice, and hate. 







BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Ferguson Township 


urges all businesses, educational institutions, and community organizations to stop 


discrimination against patrons and students, and to stand up against acts of hate or bias. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Ferguson Township 


recognizes that true change requires participation and acceptance of the entire community. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Ferguson Township 


stands united with our fellow municipalities and the Centre Region Council of Governments in 


making the Centre Region a welcoming, safe, livable, and vibrant community for all. 


RESOLVED, this 19th day of April 2021. 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


By: 
 Laura Dininni, Chair
 Board of Supervisors 


 [ S E A  L ] 


ATTEST: 


By: 
 David G. Pribulka, Secretary 








 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
SOLAR WORKSESSION MINUTES 


SOLAR POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 31, 2021 


3:00 p.m. 


I. ATTENDANCE
The Board of Supervisors held a work session on Wednesday, March 31, 2021, via ZOOM.  In
attendance were:


Board:              Staff 
Laura Dininni- Chair  David Pribulka, Township Manager  
Lisa Strickland – Vice Chair David Modricker, Public Works Director 
Steve Miller 
Prasentjit Mitra 
Patricia Stephens 


Others in attendance were: Summer Brown, Recording Secretary; Marcus Sheffer, 7 Group 
representative; Jason Grottini, Envinity representative; Peter Dawson Buck, College Township 
Resident.  


II. CALL TO ORDER
The Board of Supervisors solar work session was called to order on Wednesday, March 31, 2021
at 3:02 pm.


III. SOLAR POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT


a. Discuss the Basis of Design for Public Works Building 6
Mr. David Modricker reviewed the solar power purchase agreement (PPA) and onsite
renewable energy with the Board. Mr. Modricker stated that Public Works Building 6 was
built with LEED gold standards in mind and as part of that the building was built with the
capability of solar panels to be installed on the roof. Mr. Modricker stated that a request for
proposals (RFP) for a solar photovoltaic system was advertised and the Township received
two proposals back. Mr. Marcus Sheffer with the 7 Group is present to review the proposals
with the Board.


b. Review Request for Proposals for a Solar PPA
Mr. Modricker briefly went over some key items that were included in the RFP. Mr. Modricker
stated that this solar PPA would contribute to the buildings LEED certification. Mr. Modricker
noted that a unique factor about the RFP was that the Township was looking for proposals
that would put a solar array on the roof with no upfront cost and pay for power consumption
of the life of the solar array and that entity provides financing, operations, and maintenance.


The proposals that were received didn’t meet all of the Township’s criteria. A major
difference between the proposals was that one company offered financing and operations
maintenance for the first 5 years but on year 6 the Township would have to do a buyout of
the system. Mr. Modricker noted that the reason the proposal wasn’t fulfilled was because
the system we requested is not big enough for financing. The companies stated that they
would be able to meet the RFP criteria if the system was bigger.


D R
A F


T







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Wednesday, March 31, 2021 
Page 2 


c. Review Proposals 
Mr. Modricker stated that the proposals were submitted from Envinity and EIS Solar. Mr. 
Modricker introduced Mr. Marcus Sheffer with the 7 Group and gave the Board an overview 
of his work on the project. Mr. Sheffer summarized the proposals in detail to the Board. Mr. 
Sheffer stated that it really comes down to money. Mr. Sheffer stated that both proposals 
come from experienced practitioners, however the RFP was not set up to do a complete 
comparison between the two.  Mr. Sheffer explained that Envinity included the hybrid 
approach which included system financing but the financing would be in place for 5 years 
with the option to take advantage of the subsidies. However, in year 6 the Township would 
have to buy out the remaining value of the system. After the buy out the Township would 
achieve a positive cash flow. Mr. Sheffer noted that Envinity is a local company and has 
expressed interest in trying to help the Township make this work.  


 
Mr. Sheffer reviewed the proposal from EIS which was a more straight forward PPA that 
didn’t include a lot of financing options. Mr. Sheffer stated that EIS is also located in 
Pennsylvania and is based out of Pittsburgh. Mr. Sheffer stated that EIS was asked to 
provide more information on financing. The Township asked how big of PPA does this project 
need to be made to make it more financially viable. EIS stated that a 400 KW range would 
be the size needed. Mr. Modricker stated that to make a 400 KW system work the Township 
would need to cover the rooves of Public Works Buildings 4, 6, and the Administration 
building. Mr. Sheffer noted that if the Township decided on this there will be no upfront cost, 
and it will generate a positive cash rate. Mr. Sheffer reviewed the 4 options the Township 
has: an outright purchase with no option to take advantage of subsidies, finance the project 
through a company but have a buy out in year 6, do more of a straight forward PPA and 
cover other buildings, or do nothing.  
 


d. Discuss options to award a solar PPA 
Mr. Modricker stated that staff is interested in receiving feedback on a campus wide solar 
array option as this could likely achieve the power purchase agreement. Mr. Pribulka stated 
that the Board needs to consider the region wide PPA and how a campus wide option may 
jeopardize that. Mr. Pribulka stated that the solar array on Public Works building 6 is crucial 
for its LEED certification points. The Board discussed the Township’s role in the regional 
PPA. Mr. Pribulka suggested using recovery and federal funding and put out competitive 
bids for a solar array for Public Works building 6.  
 
Mr. Jason Grottini who is a representative from Envinity stated that he is also a member of 
the regional PPA working group. Mr. Grottini stated that the Township will still be able to 
participate in the regional PPA as it would take 100,000 KW and that is equal to an entire 
field of solar arrays and the arrays produced from the Township will help achieve that goal. 
The Board discussed the impact on the Public Works building 6 LEED certifications these 
options would have.  The Board continued discussion on buying the system outright and 
some members stated that they would like more information on the system and pricing. Mr. 
Modricker stated that this would be equal to a capital budget item such as a fitted plow truck. 
Mr. Sheffer stated that the Township would receive more than 2 bids if the Township was 
buying the system outright.  Ms. Dininni stated that it seems like the Board would like to 
participate in the regional agreement and put an array on the new Public Works building.  
 
Mr. Pribulka stated that once bids are received staff can give a more definitive information 
to answer Board member questions. Mr. Sheffer suggested asking for both out right and 
hybrid bids. Mr. Modricker stated that the Township would use specifications from Mr. 


D R A F 
T







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Wednesday, March 31, 2021 
Page 3 


Sheffer and would follow normal Township bid procedure. The Board agreed with staff on 
advertising bid for a system that would be bought by the Township.  


 
IV. ADJOURNMENT 


Ms. Dininni called for a motion to adjourn the solar work session. Ms. Patricia Stephens made a 
motion to adjourn and the Board of Supervisors meeting was adjourned at 4:35 pm.  


 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
David Pribulka, Township Manager 
For the Board of Supervisors 


 


D R A F 
T












 
 


- A Home Rule Municipality - 


 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive  •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 
Telephone: 814-238-4651  •   Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 
 


PLANNING & ZONING DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Monday, April 19, 2021 


 


PLANNING COMMISSION 
The Planning Commission met April 12th to discuss COVID Observations and potential solutions to aid in 
a post-COVID world. Discussions included the idea of extending the COVID-19 Flexible Business Support 
Resolution, internet connectivity, additional business surveys, as well as the Township taking on a 
proactive role in economic development in the Township. 


LAND DEVELOPMENT PLANS AND OTHER PROJECTS 


1. Active Plans are listed below for the Board of Supervisors (04/14/2021). 
o Orchard View Subdivision (24-004-,067) 
o State College Borough Water Authority (24-006-055E) 
o West College Student Housing Lot Consolidation and Land Development Plan 


(24-002A-015; 24-002A-016; 24-002A-017; 24-002A-018; and 36-010-006) 
o Wasson/Ash Ave. Subdivision Plan 


(24-002A-132; 24-002A-134; 24-002A-135) 
o Sycamore Drive Subdivision 


(24-009A-254) 
2. Community Planner is working on updating website forms for the department to make them 


interactive.  
3. Zoning Administrator is working with applicants on building a new home on their lot, SCBWA 


Improvements for Scott Road Pump Station and researching property easements. 
4. PZ Staff met with resident to discuss a potential minor subdivision. 
5. PZ Staff met with COG Representatives to discuss phases of their approved Whitehall Road 


Regional Park land development plan. 
6. Community Planner and PZ Director attended the CRPA/Municipal Staff Meeting. 
7. PZ Director attended the Leadership Team Meeting, Centre County Housing and Land Trust 


Meeting, and the Homeowner’s Association Open Forum Meeting. 


































































































		doc02077120210413104105.pdf (p.1-15)

		doc03670120210413102217.pdf (p.16-19)

		doc03670220210413102243.pdf (p.20-23)






 
RESOLUTION NO. ________ 


 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
ESTABLISHING A PROGRAM PLAN AND PROCESS FOR INTEGRATING GREEN 
INFRASTRUCTURE INTO TOWNSHIP PARKS.  
 


WHEREAS, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors recognizes the importance and 
the potential for environmental benefits with an increased number of green infrastructure features 
within Ferguson Township parks; and  


 
WHEREAS, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors recognizes the value in having 


a standard approach to converting a designated area into an interconnected network of open 
space within Township parks by approving a green infrastructure policy; and 
 


WHEREAS, the policy will establish a program plan with park classifications, definitions, 
and examples of green infrastructure spaces as well as formalizes a process for integrating green 
infrastructure into appropriate park areas with written maintenance plans and procedures 
provided for each approved green infrastructure within Township parks.  
 


NOW THEREFORE, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors adopts the Ferguson 
Township Green Infrastructure Policy, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 
 


RESOLVED this 19th day of April 2021. 
 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
 
 
 
      By:__________________________________ 
           Laura Dininni, Chair 
           Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  [ S E A L ] 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
David G. Pribulka, Secretary 







“Exhibit A” 


Ferguson Township Park Green Infrastructure Policy 
 


I. Purpose 
 


a. Ferguson Township recognizes the importance of maintaining the condition, 
accessibility, and safety of its naturalized environments to serve as a green feature or 
green infrastructure in developed and undeveloped parks.  The focus of this policy is to 
establish a program plan with definitions and a process for integrating green 
infrastructure into appropriate park areas and formalize how and when maintenance 
plans and procedures are created for approved green infrastructures within Township 
Parks.  
 


II. Definitions  
 


a. Park Classifications 
 


i. Mini Parks – Smallest park type, addresses limited recreation need. Provides 
close to home recreation.  Requires high level of maintenance associated with 
well-developed park and playground and high visitation.  
 


ii. Neighborhood Parks – Focus of neighborhood; in walking/biking distance of 
visitors.  Provides access to basic recreation opportunities.  Contributes to 
neighborhood identity.  Establishes sense of community.  Requires high level of 
maintenance associated with well-developed park and reasonably high visitation.  


 
iii. Regional/Community Parks – Large park for active and passive recreation; 


serves residents municipality-wide.  Accommodates large groups.  Variety of 
recreation opportunities for all ages and interests.  Space for organized, large 
scale, high participation events, family destination with fitness and wellness 
opportunities.  Requires mixed level of maintenance associated with moderate 
level of development, budget restrictions, inability to perform higher levels of 
maintenance.  Potential for park “friends” or adopt a-park-partner.  


 
iv. Natural Preserve – An area of land within a municipal park that is managed to 


conserve wildlife or plant habitat or other natural features.  Protects resources.  
Provides opportunities for environmental education.  Requires lower level of 
maintenance.  


 
b. Natural Areas – Also referred to as “Natural Resource Areas” that are designated areas 


within municipal parks for preservation of significant natural resources, remnant 
landscapes, open space, and visual aesthetics/buffering.  Designed with minimal 
recreational use and vary in size depending on the existing resource.  
 


c. Green Infrastructure refers to an interconnected network of open space within municipal 
parks consisting of natural areas and other green features that protects ecosystem 
functions and contribute to clean air and water.  Examples include the following: 


i. planted meadow(s) – designated area purposefully planted with native grass, 
forbe, and wildflower seed to provide food sources and habitat for wildlife and 
pollinators.  Low-mow and planted meadows are examples. 
 


ii. meadow(s) - designated area where existing site vegetation is evaluated to 
identify and remove invasive species with a continued maintenance plan to 







2 
 


prevent the spread of invasive species from park to park.  Low-mow and no-mow 
meadows are examples.  


 
iii. Grow Zone – refers to all types of meadows, with native seed mix plantings or 


natural vegetation growth,  
 


iv. Pollinator gardens and plots - designated area that is planted with specific 
plant types beneficial to pollinators in a designed garden.  Used for demonstration 
and educational purposes. Typically requires ongoing maintenance including 
weeding, mulching, trimming, plant care. 


 
d. Undeveloped area – an area within the park that is not for active use.  


 
e. Future phase of development – a designated area within the park planned to be 


develop in a future phase of development.  
 


III. Pre-Planning and Assessment for Green Infrastructure   
 


a. Ferguson Township parks may be evaluated to determine whether naturalizing a park 
area would benefit the park setting, expand or enhance habitat areas, and/or provide a 
sustainable landscape.  
 


b. Various site conditions have an impact on determining the most appropriate natural area 
practices available, or how a specific practice must be adapted to meet the physical 
constraints of the site.  Examples include, but are not limited to location, soil conditions, 
space availability or size and shape of existing parkland or land slated for park 
redevelopment, the need to integrate green infrastructure practices into existing 
landscapes, stormwater infrastructure or existing site features such as structures, mature 
trees, or other existing natural resources and rights-of-way within local municipal parks.  


 
c. Funding Prepare a cost estimate and identify for consideration a diverse support of 


funding streams including municipal designated dollars, grants, volunteer hours or in-
kind donations in the form of donated goods and services.  


 
d. Community Involvement Prepare a design for naturalizing park areas shall include an 


invitation to community members such as residents, nearby businesses, community 
organizations to engage early and often in the planning, design, and implementation 
process. Involving stakeholders at the beginning shall support equity and inclusivity 
through listening and empowering community involvement. 
 


IV. Process for Integrating Green Infrastructure into Appropriate Park Areas  
 


a. To identify and/or determine facilities, improvements, and appropriate park areas that 
shall be considered suitable for conversion to a natural environment, an established 
multidisciplinary team approach is required as part of the park planning process.  
Integrating naturalized areas for sustainable green infrastructure into existing parks, 
expanded parks and new park sites is accomplished through a park assessment and 
planning process or through the development of a Park Master Plan.  


 
b. The park assessment and planning process may be initiated following a citizen request, 


staff recommendation, Parks and Recreation Committee recommendation or is directed 
by the Township Manager or Board of Supervisors.  The park assessment and planning 







3 
 


process reviews Township Parks and considers the needs and interests of visitors, 
appropriateness of facilities, potential need for green stormwater facilities, and 
opportunities to integrate naturalized areas and functional improvements and 
consideration is given to any issues that need addressed.  


 
c. All requests and recommendations shall be submitted for review by completing the online 


Ferguson Township Parks and Recreation (FTPR) Request Form for Green 
Infrastructure.  The form is received by the Township Manager and Assistant to the  
Manager and will initiate the formal park assessment and planning process review.  
Commitment to construct green infrastructure when approved will be contingent on 
available resources, budget, site constraints, and other variables. 


 
i. Requests or recommendations for a naturalized area to be integrated into an 


existing park or part of new park shall be reviewed first by the Township Manager 
to evaluate the nature of the request or recommendation to confirm or deny that 
the scope of work is within the purview of the Township. 
 


1. If the scope of the work being requested is not permitted for the park 
property owner, the Manager will dismiss the request or recommendation.  
 


2. If the scope of work is within the purview of the Township, the Manager 
will require the formal process as outlined in this policy for integrating the 
naturalized area(s) into appropriate park settings and initiate the process 
for review. 


 
ii. Ferguson Township Manager or Assistant to the Manager, Arborist, Geographic 


Information System (GIS) Technician will coordinate with CRPR Parks 
Maintenance Supervisor to attend a field view to observe, discuss and list options 
for naturalizing the park areas based on request or recommendation. 


 
iii. Parks and Recreation Committee reviews and discusses the options for 


naturalizing the park areas as proposed by Township and CRPR staff to generate 
conceptual idea(s) to be mapped in a site development drawing. 


 
iv. At the direction of the Township Manager, staff will prepare a site development 


map illustrating the natural area within the park for review and acceptance.  
 


v. In collaboration with the Township Arborist and CRPR, the Parks and Recreation 
Committee will recommend a maintenance plan, site development plan, and brief 
narrative to describe the design of the naturalized area. 


 
vi. Parks and Recreation Committee provides a recommendation for the Board of 


Supervisors to accept and approve for staff to implement the natural area for an 
initial observational period of 6 months. 


 
1.  Signage posted at the site as part of implementation is required. 


 
2. The public is encouraged to provide input in the form of an opinion survey 


available in print form in the office or online; 
 


3. Five months after the site feature has been developed in the park setting, 
the Board of Supervisors will opinion survey results and staff input to take 







4 
 


action at a regular meeting to conclude the six months observational 
period. 


 
vii. At a Regular Meeting, the Board of Supervisors will take action to: 


   
1) authorize advertisement of a resolution to approve a map with the natural area 
as a new site feature on the park plan; or 2) propose an amendment, direct staff 
to update the map and advertise a resolution at a future meeting after repeating 
steps 4(c)iii to 4(c)vi.; or 3) deny the request.  
 


V. Operations and maintenance  
 


a. Maintenance plans and procedures to ensure long-term maintenance for each green 
infrastructure feature shall be collaboratively prepared with Centre Region Parks and 
Recreation Agency in written form within 60 days of the Board of Supervisors accepting 
and approving the implementation of the naturalized area.  
 


b. The maintenance plan for each green infrastructure shall include the following: 
  


i. Identification of staff resources for routine inspections and maintenance. 
Consideration on which municipal departments have the equipment and skill to 
inspect and maintain the green infrastructure and determine what, if any, training 
is required.  
 


ii. Identify the common problems that require non-routine maintenance to aid staff 
in the field inspecting naturalized areas.  Common problems that trigger non-
routine maintenance include excess sediment accumulation, trash, debris, 
overgrown vegetation, dead or diseased vegetation, signs of erosion or standing 
water present more than 72 hours of a rainstorm.  


 
iii. Establish and continuously update to incorporate green infrastructure 


maintenance triggers and remedial actions.  Maintenance schedules will be 
updated and set for each type of practice based on the approved naturalized 
area, and a tracking system shall be in place to ensure that maintenance is 
performed as prescribed.  


 
iv. Secure funding for annual maintenance in the Operation Budget.  Staff will 


prepare and provide a cost estimate budget for each naturalized area to the 
Township Manager or Assistant to the Manager.  


 
v. Enlist the help of volunteers for routine maintenance, such as removing trash and 


weeds, can be accomplished and permitted with record of a volunteer waiver 
signed and on file. 


  
vi. Evaluate equipment needed to maintain green infrastructure and determine if 


additional equipment is needed to note in maintenance plan. Or establish 
procedures for cleaning equipment in effort to prevent the spread of invasive 
species and include in the maintenance plan for the naturalized area being 
approved.  


  





		ADP8C2C.tmp

		I. Purpose

		II. Definitions

		III. Pre-Planning and Assessment for Green Infrastructure












 TOTAL 


QUANTITY 


QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE
CONTRACT 


AMOUNT
QUANTITY AMOUNT QUANTITY AMOUNT TO DATE


6080001 Mobilization 1 LS  $ 12,000.00  $          12,000.00 0.88 $10,560.00 0.00 $0.00 $10,560.00 0.88 88.00 1,440.00$                     -$                     


9010001 Maintenance & Protection of Traffic During Construction
1 LS  $ 15,000.00 


 $          15,000.00 0.88 $13,200.00 0.00 $0.00 $13,200.00 0.88 88.00 1,800.00$                     -$                     


90000001 UVCIPP 12" Dia. Liner 119 LF  $      132.00  $          15,708.00 26.90 $3,550.80 0.00 $0.00 $3,550.80 26.90 22.61 12,157.20$                    -$                     


90000002 UVCIPP 15" Dia. Liner 1,843 LF  $        67.00  $        123,481.00 1,586.74 $106,311.58 0.00 $0.00 $106,311.58 1,586.74 86.10 17,169.42$                    -$                     


90000003 UVCIPP 18" Dia. Liner 1,166 LF  $      108.00  $        125,928.00 1,145.80 $123,746.40 0.00 $0.00 $123,746.40 1,145.80 98.27 2,181.60$                     -$                     


UVCIPP 20" Dia. Liner 268 LF  $      117.50 315.00 $37,012.50 0.00 $0.00 $37,012.50 315.00 #DIV/0! (37,012.50)$                  -$                     


9000004 UVCIPP 24" Dia. Liner 320 LF  $      121.50  $          38,880.00 0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 38,880.00$                    -$                     


90000005 UVCIPP 30" Dia. Liner 330 LF  $      142.50  $          47,025.00 343.10 $48,891.75 0.00 $0.00 $48,891.75 343.10 103.97 (1,866.75)$                    -$                     


9000006 UVCIPP 36" Dia. Liner 238 LF  $      201.50  $          47,957.00 251.10 $50,596.65 0.00 $0.00 $50,596.65 251.10 105.50 (2,639.65)$                    -$                     


 $        425,979.00 $393,869.68 $0.00 $393,869.68 32,109.32$                     $                      -   


Ferguson Township


Lining Project


 TOTAL 


COMPLETED 


AND STORED TO 


DATE 


%  BALANCE TO FINISH  RETAINAGE ITEM NO.


Contract 2020-C3: CIPP Lining


Payment Request No.  4


BID


DESCRIPTION OF WORK


National Water Main Cleaning Company


1806 Newark Turnpike


Kearny, NJ  07032


THIS PERIOD


National Water Main Cleaning Company


PREVIOUS APPLICATION


Page 1 of 1







2020-C3 Pay App
Quantities "Bid" length is based on GIS end of pipe to end of pipe


4/6/2021 Liner length should be length from middle of inlet to middle of inlet to account for additional length of liner for safety cap and seal to cure liner. This is reflected in "Ferg." qty.


Liner completed to date and verified by Ryan for Pay App 2 Liner completed to date and verified by Ryan for Pay App 3


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP QTYS.


Bid NWMCC Ferg. Pay App 1 Pay App 2 Pay App 3 Bid NWMCC Ferg. Pay App 1 Pay App 2 Pay App 3 Bid NWMCC Ferg. Pay App 1
Pay App 


2


Pay App 


3
Bid NWMCC Ferg. Pay App 1


Pay App 


2


Pay App 


3


BA8 SA2 CMP 40.3 43.8 46.8 46.8


SA1 SA2 CMP 21.9 24.9 26.9 26.9


SA2 SA3 CMP 88 91.7 94.7 94.7


SA3 SA4 CMP 107 110 110 103.4 SHOULD BE 15"


SA4 CON7 CMP 43 44.42 47.42 47.42


SA7 SA8 CMP SHOULD BE 15" 22.1 24.6 26.6 26.6


SA8 SA10 CMP 263.6 267.6 267.6


SA9 SA10 CMP 24 24.5 26.5 26.5


SA9 SA11 CMP 326 331.2 335.17 335.17


BCD5 BCD4 CMP 243 243.1 247 247


BCD4 BCD3 CMP 104 105 109 109 SHOULD BE 18"


BCD4 ROW CMP 63 64.2 67.17 67.17


BCD3 SHE13 CMP 241 242.1 245 245 SHOULD BE 18"


SHE13 SHE14 CMP 24 24.4 26.4 26.4


BCD2 WT2 CMP 46 48.8 50.8 50.8


WT2 WT1 CMP 24 24.9 26.9 26.9


WT1 BCD1 CMP 193 194.9 197.9 197.9


755 DEIBLER CMP 97.3 REMOVED FROM CONTRACT IN CHANGE ORDER #1


3760 W WHITEHALL (Kunkle Divide, west) CMP 33 36.1 40.1 40.1


3760 W WHITEHALL (Kunkle Divide, west) CMP 33 36 40 40


3760 W WHITEHALL (Kunkle Divide, middle) CMP 33 34.8 38.8 38.8


3760 W WHITEHALL (Kunkle Divide, middle) CMP 33 35 39 39


3760 W WHITEHALL (Kunkle Divide, East) CMP 33 35 39 39


3760 W WHITEHALL (Kunkle Divide, East) CMP 33 35.2 39.2 39.2


3760 W WHITEHALL (East) CMP Inlet 9 29 32 34 34


5190 W WHITEHALL (West) CMP Inlet 10 32 35.66 38.66 38.66


5190 W WHITEHALL (East) CMP Inlet 11 29 30.33 32.33 32.33


5800 W WHITEHALL CMP 33 35.9 39.9 39.9


5800 W WHITEHALL CMP 33 36 40 40


OAK LEAF CMP 171 171.6 175.6 175.6


OL5 OUTLET CMP 123 REMOVED FROM CONTRACT - NOT LINING BECAUSE OF SHARP BENDS. NOT INCLUDED IN CO #1. PICK UP IN ADJ. OF QTYS. AT END OF CONTRACT


CR12 CR13 CMP 264 270.5 274.5 274.5


CR13 CR15 CMP 191 192 196 196


COR2 COR4 CMP


COR4 COR5 CMP


COR5 COR6 CMP 27 23.7 26.7 26.7


COR5 COR8 CMP


COR8 COR7 CMP


COR7 CR16 CMP


CR17 CR18 CMP 26 26.8 28.8 28.8


119.20   24.90            26.90               -                 26.90             -                1,843.30         1,865.29       1,914.13       -                    1,450.44          463.69           897.50   771.50   818.40   -          818.4     -         -              308.0                     315.0             -                       267.6     47.4       


Check 26.9              Check 1,914.1          Check 818.4     Check 315.0     


overbilled


Pay Application Summary (Ferguson Twp. Only) 2640 -                  -                    -           -           


Bid Unit 


Price


Pay App 1 Sub-


Total
Pay App 2


Pay App 2 Sub-


Total
Pay App 3


Pay App 3 Sub-


Total
Pay App 4


Pay App 4 


Sub-Total
Work To Date % Completed final qtys sub-totals


$10,560.00 $5,280.00 $2,640.00 $2,640.00 $2,640.00 $2,640.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,560.00 100% 1.0000 $10,560.00


$13,200.00 $6,600.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,200.00 100% 1.0000 $13,200.00


$132.00 -                    26.9 $3,550.80 0.0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,550.80 23% 26.9000 $3,550.80


$67.00 -                    1,450.4 $97,179.48 463.690 $31,067.23 $0.00 $0.00 Dif (15") $128,246.71 104% 1586.7300 $106,310.91


$67.00 -                    -327.400 -$21,935.80 $0.00 $0.00 136.29 -$21,935.80


$108.00 -                    818.4 $88,387.20 0.000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Dif (18") $88,387.20 91% 1145.8000 $123,746.40


$108.00 -                    327.400 $35,359.20 $0.00 $0.00 327.40 $35,359.20


$117.50 -                    267.6 $31,443.00 47.4 $5,569.50 $0.00 $0.00 $37,012.50 122% 3238.09 = LF Installed to date, NWMCC Qty. 315.0000 $37,012.50


$121.50 -                    0.0 $0.00 0.0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 3,686      = Total length installed contract, BID Qty. (LF) 0.0000 $0.00


$142.50 -                    343.1 $48,891.75 0.0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,891.75 104% 87.84% = % Installed to date 343.1000 $48,891.75


$201.50 -                    251.1 $50,596.65 0.0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Total $50,596.65 106% 251.1000 $50,596.65


$11,880.00 $393,869.01 $393,869.01 102% 393,869.01


0% $19,693.45 Total Contract


$0.00


$0.00


$11,880.00 $393,869.01 Total Paid To Date


Contract Price (College & Ferg. Twps) $425,979.00


Contract Price (Ferguson Only) $386,262.00 $19,693.45


Budget (Ferguson): $569,000.00


$0.00


0%


$0.00


$19,693.45


$19,693.45


15" Dia. CIPP Length (FT) 20" Dia. CIPP Length (FT)18" Dia. CIPP Length (FT)


$53,200.12


UVCIPP 36” Dia. Liner (LF)


UVCIPP 30” Dia. Liner (LF)


UVCIPP 24” Dia. Liner (LF)


UVCIPP 20” Dia. Liner (LF)


$309,095.44


$0.00


-$16,893.44


5%


$325,988.88 $56,000.13


5%


-$19,693.45


$16,893.44


Item


Pay App Total:


Previous Retainage to Reimburse:


Retainage ($):


Retainage (%):


Pay App Sub-Total:


15" MISS  BILLED FROM PAY APP 2


18" MISS BILLED FROM PAY APP 2


UVCIPP 18” Dia. Liner (LF)


MOB/DEMOB (LS) (FERGUSON ONLY)


MPT (LS) (FERGUSON ONLY)


UVCIPP 15” Dia. Liner (LF)


UVCIPP 12” Dia. Liner (LF)


Catch Basin Start Catch Basin End Pipe Material


12" Dia. CIPP Length (FT)


SUB-TOTALS







Bid NWMCC Ferg. Pay App 1
Pay App 


2


Pay App 


3
Bid NWMCC Ferg. Pay App 1


Pay App 


2


Pay App 


3
Bid NWMCC Ferg. Pay App 1


Pay App 


2


Pay App 


3
NOTES 15" Dia 18" Dia


Packing slip says 15"


pipe was 20". Need packing slip


Pipe was 15" not 18". See packing slip 26.6 -26.6


258.3 20" LINER NOT 24". CORRECTED IN CHANGE ORDER # 1


Should be 18" not 15" -109 109


Installed 18" not 15" -245 245


152 155 159.8 159.8


178 179.3 183.3 183.3


145 151 155 155


24 24 26 26


69 67.1 70.1 70.1


258.3  -          -          -          -         -         330.0  334.3      343.1      -          343.1     -         238.0  242.1      251.1 -          251.1     -         Sub-Totals -327.40 327.40


Unit price $67.00 $108.00


Check -         Check 343.1     Check 251.1     Diameter Adjustment -$21,935.80 $35,359.20


Pay App 3 Adjustment $13,423.40


-           -           -           


Correction from miss billed in Pay 


App 2 Qty.
36" Dia. CIPP Length (FT)24" Dia. CIPP Length (FT) 30" Dia. CIPP Length (FT)





























































































FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL EVENTS 


PERMIT 


Use of this Form: 


Complete this application if the proposed assemblage, procession, or other special 
event will require the closure of Township roads, sidewalks, and/or bikeways.  Each 
application must be completed by an authorized agent of the sponsoring organization.  
Please complete this form in its entirety and submit it to Ferguson Township staff in 
accordance with the conditions enumerated in this application. For your convenience, 
this application also includes instructions and timelines for securing Pennsylvania 
Department of Transportation (PennDOT) and Centre Region Parks and Recreation 
(CRPR) Department approval should the event require closure of state roads and/or 
municipal/regional parks. Nothing in this application or associated policy shall 
supersede or override PennDOT or CRPR permit requirements. 


 Definitions: 


Assemblage – An organized group of people without vehicles, or with vehicles that are 
stationary, which encroaches onto a street or highway and interferes with the movement 
of pedestrian or vehicular traffic.  The term includes, but is not limited to, street fairs, 
block parties, organized demonstrations, and other recreational activities. An 
assemblage is a special event.


Authorized Agent – An individual or legal entity that has obtained authorization to act 
on behalf of the organization responsible for conducting the assemblage, procession, or 
special event for the purposes of completing all required parts of this application. 
Procession – An organized group of people, or people with vehicles (including 
bicycles), animals, or objects, moving along a roadway, or the berm or shoulder of a 
roadway or bikeway in a manner that interferes with the normal movement of traffic.  
The term includes, but is not limited to walks, foot races, parades, and marches. A 
procession shall not include a funeral caravan, military convoy or emergency service 
convoy.  Other processions shall be considered a special event.


Special Event – A procession, assemblage, or special activity held within the public 
right-of-way. 







State Road – A highway or bridge on the system of highways and bridges over which 
the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation has assumed or has been legislatively 
given jurisdiction. 


Any change in this application, regardless of progress in the approval process, must be 
resubmitted and routed through the same channels as if it were a new application. 


Applicant Information: 


Name of Applicant/Authorized Agent: __________________ Date: __________   


Address of Sponsor or Organization:  Phone:   


Cell:  


Email Address:   Fax:    __________ 


Primary Contact:   Phone:  _________ 


Secondary Contact: Phone:  _________ 


Date and time of Activity:  From:    To:  


Rain Date (if applicable):  From:    To:  


Activity Detail: 


Describe your event in detail using additional sheets, if necessary: 


Will this event be held solely on sidewalks ☐  No  ☐  Yes 
and/or bikeways? 


Does your event require a street closure? ☐  No  ☐  Yes 


If yes, select the type of road that will be closed: (For more information, see attached 
map and list) 


☐ State Road(s) Only (Additional Form Required: PennDOT TE-300 Form) 


☐ Local Road(s) Only 







☐ State Road(s) and Local Road(s) (Additional Form Required: PennDOT TE-300 
Form) 


Listed in order of route, what street(s) would you like closed for this event? (Use 
additional sheets, if necessary) 


How long will the street closure be in effect?      From:    To:  


Will the event cross any municipal or state roads? ☐  Yes ☐  No 


If yes, please indicate which roads the procession will cross: 


______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 


Will the event procession cross any state roads? ☐  Yes ☐  No 
(If yes, submit PennDOT TE-300 Form) 


Municipal/Regional Park Usage: 


If this event includes the use of a municipal/regional park, please contact the Centre 
Region Parks and Recreation (CRPR) Department by phone at (814) 231-3071 or by 
email at crpr@crcog.net prior submitting this form (see attached timeline).  Special park 
permits and conditions may also apply.  Once the approval is secured from the Centre 
Region Parks and Recreation Department, please have an authorized official complete 
the fields below, and attach any conditions associated with the approval to this form. 


Name: (Print)   Title of Official:   


Signature:    Date of Approval: 


Charitable Cause: 


Is the Sponsor an organization with 501(c)(3) tax exempt status? ☐ Yes ☐ No 


If this event is to benefit a charitable organization, please identify that organization: 



mailto:crpr@crcog.net





Health Considerations: 


Will there be food and drink provided to the public at this event? ☐  Yes ☐  No 


If yes, have you made arrangements for approval/inspections  ☐  Yes ☐  No 
with the Department of Ordinance Enforcement and Public  
Health?  
    
If no, please complete the form that is attached to this application and obtain approval 
prior to submission of this application. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


The Applicant recognizes and AGREES that Ferguson Township requires the 
proposed event to be conducted in such a manner that minimizes disruption to 
township residents and be within the limits established by existing ordinances.  By 
signing below, the Applicant AGREES to protect, defend, indemnify and hold 
Ferguson Township and its officers, employees and agents free and harmless from 
and against any and all losses, penalties, damages, settlements, costs or other 
expenses or liabilities of every kind and character arising directly or indirectly from 
this event.  The Applicant further AGREES to investigate, handle, respond to, provide 
defense for and defend any such claims, etc., at the Applicant’s sole expense and 
AGREES to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, even if such claims 
are groundless, false or fraudulent. 


Signature:              Date:       


OFFICE USE ONLY: ROUTING FOR APPROVAL 


     Police Dept. _____     _____ Public Works Dept.      _____      _____ 


     Health Dept. _____     _____      Township Manager       _____      _____ 


THIS SERVES AS YOUR PERMIT 


The Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors approved your application on: 


___________________________________________________________________ 


Conditions (if any) are as follows:  ________________________________________ 


___________________________________________________________________ 


Signature of Chairperson or  
authorized representative:      ________________________________________ 







Timeline and Checklist: 


☐ Contact the Centre Region Parks and Recreation Department (CRPR) at 
814-231-3071 if the event will include the use of a municipal/regional park. 


☐ If food will be served on public property, contact the Department of 
Ordinance Enforcement and Public Health (DOEPH) at the Borough of 
State College by phone at 814-234-7191 or by email at 
healthdept@statecollegepa.us. 


☐ Notify the Ferguson Township Police Department of your intent to host a 
special event regardless of whether or not the event will require the use of 
Township roads, bikeways, or sidewalks. 


☐ Complete the Ferguson Township Special Events Application. 
☐ Pay required application and escrow fees. 
☐ Submit Certificate of Insurance and any other necessary documents. 
☐ If denied a permit at any point in the process and you wish to appeal the 


decision, notify the Township Manager in writing of your request to do so. 


Step Timeline 


Preliminary event planning with the Centre 
Region Parks and Recreation Department, 
if necessary 


At least 45 days prior to the event* 


If food will be served, notify the DOEPH at 
the Borough of State College 


10 – 12 weeks prior to hosting an event 


Notify Ferguson Township Police 
Department of the intent to host an event 
and provide a general description of the 
event 


Complete Ferguson Township Special 
Events Application 


10 – 12 weeks prior to hosting an event* 


Remit application permit fee and escrow 
payments to township 


Due when application is submitted 


Submit Certificate of Insurance, proposed 
map of procession, a signed copy of the 
“Registration for a Food Event on Public 
Property Form” signed by the DOEPH, and 
a completed application checklist 


6 – 8 weeks prior to hosting an event 


If denied a permit, notify Township 
Manager in writing of intent to appeal


Within 7 days of receiving a denial 


*Note: Plan to apply for a permit from CRPR at least 10 – 12 weeks prior to events that
will also require a Ferguson Township Special Events Permit 


10 - 12 weeks prior to hosting an event IF 
the event will require the closure of 
township roads, bikeways, or sidewalks 
OR 3 weeks prior IF no closures required







Checklist for Hosting a Special Event on State Roads (to be completed after 
securing authorization from the township): 


☐ Complete PennDOT’s TE-300: Special Event Permit Application. 
(must be done after approval is secured from Ferguson Township) 


☐ Review PennDOT Title 67, Chapter 212.701 Subchapter H, Special Events. 


☐ Event Insurance Certificate 
(must meet Ferguson Township requirements above, and list the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania as an additional insured) 


☐ Notify Pennsylvania State Police (PSP) of special event 
(please contact Station Commander at Local PSP Barracks). 


☐ PennDOT requirements for notification and/or approval letter(s) for special 
events.  If the Special Event occurs on: 


☐ State Road(s) Only 


☐ Sponsor is required to send notification letter(s) to each 
municipality for special event involvement on state road. 


☐ Sponsor is required to submit a copy of the municipality notification 
letter(s) to the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation along 
with the TE-300: Special Events Permit Application. 


☐ State Road(s) and Local Road(s) 


☐ Sponsor is required to send notification letter to each municipality 
for special event involvement on state road. 


☐ Sponsor is required to obtain approval letter from each municipality 
for special event involvement on a local road. 


☐ Sponsor is required to submit a copy of each municipality 
notification and approval letter to the Pennsylvania Department of 
Transportation along with the TE-300: Special Events Permit 
Application 


☐ Submit completed and signed permit application and the required documents to 
the appropriate Pennsylvania Department of Transportation District Engineering Office 
eight (8) weeks prior to the date of the special event. 



https://imageserv11.team-logic.com/mediaLibrary/2032/TE-300_special_event_application_NEW.pdf

http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/067/chapter212/subchapHtoc.html

http://www.portal.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt?open=512&objID=4541&level=1&css=L1&mode=2





REGISTRATION OF A FOOD EVENT FOR CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS 


Department of Ordinance Enforcement and Public Health 


243 South Allen Street, State College, PA 16801 


(814) 234-7191 (phone)     (814) 234-7197 (fax) 


healthdept@statecollegepa.us 


 


This registration is intended for use by charitable organizations planning to give away food or drink items to 


the general public or sell food or drink items as a fundraiser. Groups planning to sell any food or drink must 


contact the State College Department of Ordinance Enforcement and Public Health and return the completed 


application along with proof of non-profit status to the above address prior to the activity. 


 


If giving away or selling baked goods, please attach a list of the items to be given away or sold along 


with the preparer’s name, address, and phone number. This information must be submitted with the 


application. Baked goods must be individually wrapped.  


 


The Department discourages the sale of potentially hazardous foods or drinks (meats, fish, dairy, etc.). If 


potentially hazardous foods or drinks are to be given away or sold more than three times per calendar year 


then the charitable organization must contact the Department of Ordinance Enforcement and Public Health 


to obtain the appropriate license and pay any fees that may apply.  


   


 Name of Group Name of Representative 


 


   


 Address of Representative   Phone Number        


 


   


 Email Date(s) of Event 


 


   


 Where will the event be held? Municipality 


 


What types of food(s) or drink(s) will be provided? ____________________________________________ 


____________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


Where will the food(s) or drink(s) be prepared? _______________________________________________ 


_______________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


If the food was not prepared in a licensed facility, a sign must be posted in public view to that effect.  


 


   


 Signature Date 
 


All applications must be submitted to the Department of Ordinance Enforcement and Public 


Health at least five (5) business days prior to the event. 
 


Serving the Borough of State College, College Township, Ferguson Township and Patton Township 







Guidelines for Charitable Organizations Serving Potentially Hazardous Foods 


 
 An approved sanitizer such as a quaternary sanitizer or chlorine mix must be used to clean food 


prep areas and equipment. (1 tablespoon to 1 gallon of water)  


 A method of hand washing must be available. 


 Gloves must be worn when handling any ready to eat foods such as buns, chips, lettuce, etc. 


 Thermometers must be used to check temperatures of potentially hazardous foods. 


 Foods must be cooked to the proper internal temperatures. Hamburger – 155°F for 15 sec.; 


Chicken – 165°F for 15 sec.   


 Hot foods/drinks being prepared and held more than four (4) hours must be held at 135°F and 


stored in an approved container.  


 Cold foods/drinks being prepared and held more than four (4) hours must be held at 41°F and 


stored in an approved container. 


 When cooking with any type of grill or potentially hot surface there must be a barricade between 


the cooking area and the public as a safeguard against injury. 


 A fire extinguisher must be kept within, but not closer than, 6 feet from the cooking area.  


 Any grease produced during the preparation of foods must be stored in a container and disposed 


of properly. 


 When selling or giving away food/drink,  a sign indicating that foods/drinks prepared at the event 


were not prepared in a licensed kitchen must be displayed and visible to the public during the 


event.  


 There should be a specific person designated to handle money and that person should not handle 


any food items.  


 Food/drink must be shielded from the elements. 


Organizations holding more than three events per calendar year and serving potentially 


hazardous foods/drinks must obtain an appropriate license from the Department of Ordinance 


Enforcement and Public Health, must certify a Person In Charge through an approved safe food 


handling program and are subject to inspection. 


 


For any additional information, please contact the Department of Ordinance Enforcement and 


Public Health at (814) 234-7191 or at healthdept@statecollegepa.us. 


 





		Name of ApplicantAuthorized Agent: Michael Franken

		Date: 4/1/2021

		Address of Sponsor or Organization 1: 

		Address of Sponsor or Organization 2: 1480 US 9 N, Ste 301, Woodbridge NJ 07095

		Phone: 201.977.6053

		Cell: 610.737.5620

		Email Address: Michael.Franken@nmss.org

		Fax: 732.855.6984

		Primary Contact: Michael Franken

		Phone_2: 201.977.6053

		Secondary Contact: 

		Phone_3: 

		Date and time of Activity: Sat 7/17/21

		From: 8 AM

		To: 5 PM

		Rain Date if applicable: N/A

		From_2: 

		To_2: 

		Describe your event in detail using additional sheets if necessary 1: Bike MS: Glimcher Keystone Country Ride is a charity bike ride

		Describe your event in detail using additional sheets if necessary 2: raising funds and awareness for the National MS Society. In Ferguson Township, we will only be riding on the shoulder

		Describe your event in detail using additional sheets if necessary 3: of Marengo Road heading south from Halfmoon Twp before turning right onto Dry Hollow Road and departing into Warriors Mark Twp.

		Check Box5: Off

		Check Box6: Yes

		Check Box1: Yes

		Check Box2: Yes

		Check Box3: Off

		Check Box4: Off

		additional sheets if necessary 1: No road closures are necessary - however, we will be riding on open, public roadways, including Marengo Road

		additional sheets if necessary 2: and Dry Hollow Road

		additional sheets if necessary 3: 

		From_3: N/A

		To_3: N/A

		Will the event cross any municipal or state roads: No_3

		If yes please indicate which roads the procession will cross 1: 

		If yes please indicate which roads the procession will cross 2: 

		Will the event procession cross any state roads: No_4

		Name Print: 

		Title of Official: 

		Date of Approval: 

		Is the Sponsor an organization with 501c3 tax exempt status: Yes_5

		If this event is to benefit a charitable organization please identify that organization: National Multiple Sclerosis Society - EIN 13-5661935

		Check Box7: Off

		Date_2: 

		The Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors approved your application on: 

		Conditions if any are as follows 1: 

		Conditions if any are as follows 2: 

		authorized representative: 

		Check Box22: Off

		Check Box23: Yes

		Check Box24: Off

		Check Box25: Off

		Check Box26: Off

		Check Box27: Off

		Check Box28: Off

		Check Box29: Off

		Check Box32: Off

		Check Box33: Off

		Check Box34: Off

		Check Box8: Off

		Check Box9: Off

		Check Box10: Off

		Check Box11: Off

		Check Box12: Off

		Check Box13: Off

		Check Box14: Off

		Check Box15: Off

		Check Box16: Off

		Check Box17: Off

		Check Box18: Off

		Check Box19: Off

		Check Box20: Off

		Text1: 

		Text2: 

		Text3: 

		Text4: 

		Text5: 

		Text6: 

		Text7: 

		Text9: 

		Text10: 

		Text11: 

		Text12: 

		Text13: 

		Text14: 

		Text15: 








RESOLUTION  ___________ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON TOWNSHIP, CENTRE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA AUTHORIZING THE TOWNSHIP MANAGER TO SUBMIT A TOURISM 
GRANT APPLICATION TO THE HAPPY VALLEY ADVENTURE BUREAU WITH MILLHEIM 
BOROUGH FOR AN AGRITOURISM EVENT. 


WHEREAS, the Ferguson Township Strategic Plan identifies goals of Economic 
Development; Promotion of Municipal Identity; and Partnerships and Regional Thinking; and 


WHEREAS, the promotion of agricultural tourism, locally sourced food, and the 
preservation of agricultural heritage are cornerstones of the Township’s economic development 
strategy; and 


WHEREAS, the Borough of Millheim and Ferguson Township desire to partner on a 
special event that would connect the two municipalities together through the celebration and 
promotion of local food, music, and agriculture; and 


WHEREAS, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors, through adoption of this 
resolution, expresses its support for the event and authorizes the use of local matching dollars 
in an amount not to exceed $4,500.00 to supplement a grant application to the Happy 
Valley Adventure Bureau Tourism Grant program. 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
hereby authorizes the Township Manager to submit a Tourism Grant application to the Happy 
Valley Adventure Bureau with Millheim Borough for an Agritourism Event.  


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors hereby 
appropriates an amount not to exceed $4,500.00 from the Township’s Economic Development 
account to be offered as local match for the grant. 


RESOLVED this 19th day of April 2021. 


 TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


 By:____________________________ 
 Laura Dininni, Chair 
 Board of Supervisors 


  [ S  E  A  L ] 
ATTEST: 


By:__________________________________ 
David G. Pribulka, Secretary 








1


Pribulka,David


From: Strickland,Lisa
Sent: Thursday, March 18, 2021 10:34 AM
To: Pribulka,David
Cc: Dininni,Laura
Subject: Consent Agenda Item


Hi Dave,  
I’d like to request the following item be added to the next consent agenda:  A Board discussion and review of 
the TSD with the goal of informing the associated work plan item of the Planning Commission.  This discussion 
and work item will lay the foundation for the expected engagement of a consultant in 2022 to revise the 
ordinance.   


The agenda item may include: A brief overview of the ordinance including the intention/vision, design 
standards, and district boundaries; identifying areas of particular concern in the district and the ordinance 
(parking, building heights, alleys, district boundaries, and incentives); a directive to the Planning Commission 
to, in accordance with their work plan, examine the Terraced Streetscape District, deliberate on the vision of 
the district, obstacles to development and needed changes to the ordinance.  Framing of the goals for the 
revision of the ordinance could then be further developed through a joint work session with the Board.  Taking 
the time to thoughtfully establish preferences and a direction for the district throughout this year will lay the 
foundation for a successful RFP and rewrite process in 2022.  
 
Thanks, 
Lisa 


 
 







§ 27-304. Terraced Streetscape (TS) District. [Ord. No. 1049,
11/18/2019]


1. Specific Intent. It is the intent of this district to encourage
innovation and to promote flexibility, economy, and ingenuity in
development within the TS District for the purpose of allowing for
an increase in the permissible density or intensity of a particular
use, based upon the standards, criteria and incentives set forth
herein and in Chapter 22. The application of design standards and
any permissible increases in density or mix of uses shall be
dependent on the extent to which a project is consistent with and
achieves the following design objectives and goals:


A. Establishes a pedestrian-oriented district that accommodates
and encourages pedestrian and other multimodal travel
alternatives by including sidewalks, greenways, and/or bike
path linkages and does not promote vehicular travel.


B. Promotes development that creates shared parking facilities
through the use of either surface parking lots or structured
parking and decreases curb cuts by encouraging a "park
once" approach to servicing retail and residential
development.


C. Promotes viable public transit by developing at an
appropriate density with attention to transit routes and by
providing transit stops or hubs within the proposed district.


D. Provides opportunities to integrate age and income groups
through the provision of a wide range of housing alternatives
that are suitably mixed throughout the zoning district.


E. Promotes development that, through the use of distinctive
architectural elements and siting criteria, creates community
character.


F. Utilizes increased building height and mixed uses to achieve a
more compact development footprint and efficient pattern of
development while utilizing existing infrastructure.


G. Promotes development that creates and retains a human-
scaled context.


H. Encourages energy efficiency, sustainable development, and
green construction.


:1







I. Allows for small scale retail and entertainment uses that
contribute to and enhance evening and weekend activity in
the corridor.


2. Use Regulations. A building may be erected, altered, or used and
a lot may be used, or occupied, for any of the following purposes
and no other:


A. Permitted principal uses, subject to the lot sizes as set forth
below, as well as the maximum square footage criteria as
specified.


(1) Conversion of an existing single-family detached dwelling
unit to include accommodation of a nonresidential use
such as art studio, gallery, handicraft or photography
studio, or professional office(s).


(2) Conversion of an existing dwelling from apartment units
back to a single-family dwelling.


(3) Reconstruction of a single-family dwelling unit that exists
at the time of adoption of this section and is subsequently
destroyed or partially destroyed by any means to an
extent of 75% or more of the market valuation of all
structures and other improvements on the lot as per the
provisions of § 27-803, Subsection 1C, herein, only as
long as such unit is designed to incorporate the
nonresidential uses identified in § 27-304, Subsection
2A(1) above. All such properties shall be designed to
comply with all provisions of the district when
reconstructed.


(4) Playground, greenway, trail, square, commons, plaza,
transit area, courtyard or public area, community
gardens.


(5) Bed-and-breakfast with no accessory services.


(6) Farm market (seasonal).


(7) Retail sale, service or rental of basic convenience
commercial goods and services such as, but not limited
to, books, flowers, antiques, gifts, jewelry, or music.


(8) Business or professional office.


(9) Vertical mixed use building involving a combination of
uses authorized uses.


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:2







(10) Hotel.


(11) Eating establishment.


(12) Brewery, cideries and craft distilleries (beverage
production facilities).


(13) Community theater or playhouse.


(14) Nonprofit or civic service agency.


(15) Pharmacy with no drive-through.


(16) Health club.


(17) Bank or financial office with no drive-through.


(18) Eating and licensed drinking establishments with no
drive-through.


(19) Salon or spa.


(20) Medical/dental office.


(21) Structured parking when provided as part of or
accessory to a proposed vertical mixed-use structure.


(22) Multifamily dwelling units (other than university
housing) only if part of a vertical mixed-use structure; no
more than three unrelated individuals may reside in each
dwelling unit.


(23) Gallery, handicraft, art, or photography studio,
professional office for accountant, architect, attorney or
similar profession.


(24) Uses associated with private or public institutes of higher
education; in this zoning district, these shall be limited to
the following principal uses: classrooms, research
facilities and labs; administrative and faculty offices, and
residence halls for graduate and undergraduate student
housing only when staffed, owned and operated by the
university which the students attend.


B. Lots up to and Including .39 Acres. The permitted principal
uses as set forth in § 27-304, Subsection 2A(1) through (6)
only.


C. Lots from .40 Acres, Up to and Including Lots of .99 Acres.
The permitted principal uses as set forth in the chapter,
subject to the following:


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:3







(1) Any structure that will be located on the corner of a lot
that is at least 0.40 acres in size and that involves an
intersection with West College Avenue must address both
frontages (no blank walls) and be a minimum of 55 feet in
height. The structure shall be designed in accordance
with the applicable provisions of Chapter 22. The facade
of buildings on corner lots may be accentuated by towers,
corner building entrances or other distinctive elements;
however, all structures on such lots shall be designed to
architecturally enhance the corner location and all effort
shall be made to ensure that such structure is a signature
building within the district.


(2) The entire first floor of all structures located on lots that
have frontage on West College Avenue must be devoted to
retail or commercial uses permitted in the district.


(a) To allow pedestrian access to office, hotel, or
residential uses located above street level, lobbies
may be allowed within the required retail storefront
space, provided that street frontage of the lobby is
limited relative to the property's overall retail
frontage and that the storefront design of the lobby
provides continuity to the retail character of the site
and the overall street.


(3) Any vertical mixed-use building not fronting on West
College Avenue must dedicate a minimum of 50% of the
first floor square footage of the building to nonresidential
uses as specified.


D. Lots or Combined Lots Totaling 1 Acre or Larger. All
permitted principal uses as set forth above subject to the
same criteria as identified in § 27-304, Subsection 2C(1)
through (3) above.


E. Conditional Uses. All of the following conditional uses shall be
permitted only upon a lot, or combined lots, that total one
acre or larger upon approval by the Board of Supervisors:


(1) Any use not specifically permitted within the TS District
that is deemed to be an acceptable use due to its
consistency with the stated intent of the district, and the
application of appropriate design criteria as determined
by the Board of Supervisors through the conditional use
approval process.


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:4







(2) Any use not specifically excluded in § 27-304, Subsection
2F, that would be deemed to be an acceptable use within
the TS District and is consistent with the stated intent of
the district and the application of appropriate design
criteria as determined by the Board of Supervisors
through the conditional use approval process.


(3) Conference center subject to the following criteria:


(a) Maximum building footprint of 30,000 square feet.


(b) All parking must be provided in an on- or off-site
parking structure.


(c) The building must adhere to the design requirements
in Chapter 22 and must have lot frontage on West
College Avenue.


(d) The center may include eating and sleeping
accommodations if incorporated in a manner that is
consistent with the intent of the district.


(4) Uses accessory to permitted principal uses, subject to the
following criteria:


(a) The proposed accessory use is associated with a use
specifically permitted in the district.


1) The proposed accessory use is complementary to
the specific intent of the TS Zoning District and
the West College Avenue streetscape.


2) Sufficient parking exists or can be established to
support the proposed accessory use under the
parking standards specified in this district.


3) Conformance with the criteria found in § 27-204.


(5) Structured parking as a stand-alone structure subject to
the following criteria:


(a) Conformance to the design requirements as
stipulated in Chapter 22 as they pertain to
architectural scaling elements; building materials
and other design considerations that minimize the
monotony of repetitive structural elements by varying
the facade treatments from bay to bay, integrating
planter walls, and/or incorporating landscaping along
long undifferentiated expanses of wall.


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:5







(b) Must be wrapped at ground level with retail or other
activity-generating use(s) permitted in the district.
Any portion of the ground floor that does not
incorporate retail or service-oriented uses must
provide additional landscaping to create a separation
from pedestrian activity.


(c) Minimize the dominance of the vehicular entrance
and provide a human scale and pedestrian orientation
along any street frontage.


(d) Must be established through a public-private
partnership with the Township and/or developer of a
separate site in the district.


(e) No access to the structure is permitted from the West
College Avenue corridor. Access must be provided
from a cartway that parallels the corridor. Vehicles
may exit onto West College Avenue; however,
depending on the location, may be prohibited from
making a left turning movement.


(f) Maximum height 60 feet. Fifteen feet may be added
through the use of incentives as specified in § 27-304,
Subsection 3A(2)(c) below.


(6) Structures (other than parking structures) above 55 feet
subject to the following criteria:


(a) The structure does not exceed 75 feet in height,
including all rooftop appurtenances other than solar
panels or rooftop wind energy conversion systems.


(b) The appearance of any portion of the facade between
55 feet and 75 feet is distinguished from the facade
treatment/material of the portion of the structure
between 35 feet and 55 feet per the design
requirements in Chapter 22.


(c) Any vertical mixed-use structure that contains more
than two floors devoted to residential units must
provide full-time, on-site management.


(d) The application of sufficient incentives from § 27-304,
Subsection 3B, below, to reach a height above the
permitted 55 feet.


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:6







F. Prohibited Uses. Only those uses specifically identified above
or found to be consistent with the intent of the district are
permitted in the TS District. The following represent some,
but not all, of the uses that are specifically prohibited in the
TS District:


(1) Convenience stores with fuel pumps.


(2) Vehicle garages and repair shops.


(3) Adult entertainment.


(4) Equipment rental.


(5) Motor vehicle display, repair, and sales.


(6) Child day care/preschool.


(7) Private and public K-12 schools.


(8) Private recreation areas, arenas, and stadiums.


(9) Car wash.


(10) Motels.


(11) Drive-through.


(12) Surface parking lots that are not an accessory use to and
required by a permitted principal use or approved
conditional use on the same lot.


G. All development in the TS District is subject to the design
standards found in Chapter 22.


3. Height, Area and Bulk Regulations. The following regulations
shall be observed for all permitted principal uses:


A. Maximum Height.


(1) Lots up to and including .39 acres and any lot that does
not have lot frontage on West College Avenue (an
arterial): 35 feet; incentives may not be applied to
increase this height.


(2) Lots of .40 acres and up with frontage on an arterial
street:


(a) By right maximum of 55 feet; 55 feet required on
corner lots of this size.


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:7







(b) Additional height up to 75 feet for lots of at least one
acre may be obtained through the use of incentives
set forth in § 27-304, Subsection 3B below; use of any
incentive(s) other than Subsection 3B retains the
requirement to obtain conditional use approval.


(c) Maximum height of parking structures is 60 feet, not
including any underground parking levels. Additional
height of up to 15 feet may be added specifically to
this use if a minimum of 50% of the roof is planted as
a green roof or roof garden, or if a wind energy
conversion system and/or solar panels are placed on
the roof and provide energy for the parking structure
and/or adjacent structures.


(d) Minimum height of all structures on lots of this size
other than corner lots which are subject to
Subsection 2C(1) above: A street wall at least two
stories or 30 feet in height (whichever is greater)
shall be maintained for a minimum of 65% of the
length of the lot frontage through placement of the
principal structure or extension of its facade with an
appropriate architectural element.


B. Building Height Incentives.


(1) If a shared parking facility is provided or used to
accommodate the use(s) on the lot, an additional 10 feet
may be added to the permitted maximum.


(2) If structured parking is provided to accommodate the
use(s) on the lot and provides space for use by others, an
additional 20 feet may be added to the permitted
maximum without the need to obtain conditional use
approval.


(3) If 10% of the total residential units in a vertical mixed-use
building are established and maintained as owner-
occupied workforce units, an additional 20 feet may be
added to the permitted maximum.


(4) If 15% of the total residential units in a vertical mixed-use
building are established and maintained as age-restricted
units, an additional 20 feet may be added to the permitted
maximum.


C. Building Occupancy. The maximum square footage per
individual nonresidential use is 10,000 square feet/floor. The


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:8







maximum achievable through use of the incentives set forth
below in Subsection 3C(1) through (4) is a maximum of
15,000 square feet/use/floor.


(1) Incorporation of day lighting through clerestories, roof
monitors, light shelves, or other technologies throughout
30% of the building allows the maximum square footage/
individual use to expand 2,500 square feet/floor.


(2) If structured parking to meet the parking requirement of
the site is provided on- or off-site, the maximum square
footage per individual use may expand by 5,000 square
feet/use/floor.


(3) Incorporation of on-site drainage retention, such as
bioswales or rain gardens. Into the landscaping design
and the use of gray water for site irrigation allows the
maximum square footage/individual use to expand 2,500
square feet/floor.


(4) Use of on-site, nonpolluting, renewable technologies
(solar, geothermal, wind or biomass) for self-supply
energy for a minimum of 5% of the total projected energy
use allows the maximum square footage/individual use to
expand 2,500 square feet/floor.


D. Yard Regulations.


(1) Front Yard.


(a) Buildings shall be located on the sidewalk line of the
primary street. Sidewalks shall be 12 feet deep from
the back edge of the curb on West College Avenue,
and a minimum of five feet deep from the back edge
of the curb on all side streets and cross streets off of
West College Avenue. This area is subject to all
sidewalk and streetscape requirements as specified in
the design regulations of Chapter 22 or officially
adopted streetscape plan for the Township. A
standard five-foot sidewalk shall be installed for the
length of any portion of a lot that abuts an existing
alley.


(b) Building frontages along streets shall break any flat,
monolithic facade by including architectural elements
such as bay windows, recessed entrances, or other
articulation so as to provide pedestrian scale to the
first floor.


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:9







1) The building facade may recede from the street
wall by as much as 18 inches to allow for columns
or other architectural elements as parts of the
street wall.


2) A setback not to exceed 15 feet measured from
the back of the sidewalk is permitted, provided
that no less than 65% of the street wall is
maintained. Recesses on the ground floor to
accommodate entryways, display windows,
planters, or similar features shall not be
considered as setbacks provided that the directly
adjacent upper stories (to a minimum of 30 feet)
have been built to the street wall.


(c) All structures on a lot must maintain a minimum of
65% of their facade along the sidewalk line and 50%
of the length and 50% of the ground level wall height
or 15 feet above finished grade, whichever is less, of
any building facade facing and/or adjacent to a public
street, or facing into a park, plaza or other public
outdoor space shall be transparent.


1) Darkly tinted windows and mirrored windows
which block two-way visibility are prohibited as
ground floor windows required under this
subsection. Storefront windows may not be
completely obscured with display cases or
signage that prevents customers and pedestrians
from seeing inside.


2) Continuous window walls shall be avoided by
providing architectural building treatments,
mullions, building modulation, entry doors, and/
or columns at appropriate intervals.


(2) Side Yard.


(a) A side yard of 10 feet will be applicable except in the
circumstances set forth below.


1) In the event that the side of a building would have
frontage on a cross street, this shall be
considered as a front yard and will be subject to
the setback and design requirements as set forth
above. However, the depth of sidewalk from back


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:10







of curb may be maintained at five feet along the
cross street.


2) In the event that the side yard is adjacent to
another lot that fronts on West College Avenue,
there will be no required side yard setback and
new buildings may be constructed with a zero lot
line.


3) In the event that the side yard is adjacent to a
structured parking facility, there will be no side
yard setback required and new buildings may be
constructed with a zero lot line.


4) In the event that the side yard abuts an alley
which coincides with the district boundary, this
side yard shall be established as a rear yard
consistent with the provisions for a rear yard as
indicated below.


(b) Pavement to accommodate surface parking may not
encroach within the required setbacks.


(3) Rear Yard.


(a) On each lot there shall be a rear yard, the depth of
which shall be five feet. However, if the rear yard is
adjacent to a property with a single-family residential
dwelling unit, or a property outside of the TS District,
a twelve-foot landscaped buffer shall be provided at
the property line and shall constitute the required
setback. Surface parking may not encroach within the
required setback.


1) The required buffer shall be composed of one
canopy tree or evergreen tree and 15 shrubs per
35 linear feet of the lot line.


(b) If the rear yard of a lot abuts an alley, whether in or
out of the district, a five-foot concrete sidewalk shall
be provided along the entire length of the property
adjacent to the alley. Buildings may directly abut this
sidewalk. If the alley coincides with the district
boundary, the twelve-foot landscaped buffer required
above shall be provided in addition to the five-foot
sidewalk, establishing a total seventeen-foot setback.


(4) Building Separation.


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:11







(a) All buildings built on a zero lot line shall be
independent and no structural wall may be shared by
buildings on adjacent lots. Buildings on the same lot
may be connected by enclosed walkways or covered
walks.


E. Impervious Lot Coverage.


(1) Lots up to and including .39 acres: 50%, up to a maximum
of 60% permitted for each lot by way of the incentives set
forth at Subsection 3F below.


(2) Lots from .40 acres up to and including lots of .99 acres:
60%, up to a maximum of 75% for each lot by way of the
incentives set forth at Subsection 3F below.


(3) Lots one acre or larger: 75%, up to a maximum of 95% for
each lot by way of the incentives set forth at Subsection
3F below.


F. Impervious Coverage Incentives. In no event shall the
maximum total impervious coverage, with any of the
incentives provided for within this section, exceed 95% of the
site as measured within all existing or proposed lot lines.


(1) If a green roof or roof garden(s) covering a minimum of
60% of the roof is provided on the structure(s) on the lot,
an additional 10% coverage is permitted.


(2) If an approved pervious parking surface is provided for a
least 50% of the required on-site parking, an additional
10% coverage is permitted.


(3) If the proposal is for vertical expansion of an existing use,
an additional 10% coverage is permitted.


(4) If the proposal is to add upper floor office or residential
units to create a mixed-use structure out of an existing
single-use building, an additional 10% coverage is
permitted.


(5) If the entire roof is a cool roof that reduces cooling loads,
an additional 5% coverage is permitted.


(6) If the proposal is to undo a previous conversion of a
single-family dwelling from apartments back into a single-
family dwelling an additional 10% coverage is permitted.


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:12







G. Parking Requirements. The regulations set forth herein are
intended to apply within the TS District and may differ from
the provisions of Chapter 22.


(1) The required parking may be met through the use of on-
site, off-site, and remote or structured parking, or any
combination thereof.


(2) When an on-site surface parking area is proposed, it shall
be located underneath or to the side or rear of the
structure(s) it is intended to serve and shall have
vehicular access from the side or rear of the lot. On-site
parking in the front yard is specifically prohibited.


(3) When surface parking is located to the side of a structure,
it must be set back from the sidewalk edges a minimum of
10 feet. This additional setback shall be used to
accommodate screening composed of a low architectural
wall, masonry piers, fencing, or a combination thereof,
and a continuous four-foot high (at time of planting) shrub
hedge that screens the parking and defines the sidewalk
edge. Additional deciduous and evergreen trees may be
used to supplement the required plantings.


(4) Surface parking located to the side of a structure may not
extend to a side street. The corner lots are subject to the
use and yard requirements as stipulated above.


(5) The maximum number of permitted spaces in an on-site
surface parking lot is 30. However, if acceptable pervious
paving is used for the entire parking area, this number
may be increased to 45.


(6) Parking areas shall be designed so as to optimize the
potential to serve more than one building or more than
one use on a site or adjoining sites as long as the location
and design remain consistent with the other criteria of
this section.


(7) To be counted toward the minimum number of required
spaces, off-site parking must be located within two blocks
or 1/4 mile of the main entrance to the use that requires
the spaces. If the off-site spaces are not in a publicly
owned and operated parking structure, documentation of
the reservation of such spaces for each use must be
provided in the form of a shared parking agreement.


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:13







(8) Residential parking within the TS District shall be
provided at the rate of 1.0 space for each studio or one-
bedroom unit and 1.5 spaces for each unit that is two
bedrooms or larger, subject to the following criteria:


(a) To utilize this parking standard, all surface parking on
the site shall be priced separately from the cost of the
unit. Such fee structure would not be applicable to
the use of driveways, attached garages, or
underground and understructure parking spaces on-
site but would be applicable to the use of off-site
parking spaces in a structured parking facility.


(b) The use of incentives cannot reduce this required
parking ratio.


(9) Parking for nonresidential uses within the TS District
shall be provided at the rate of 1/500 square feet, subject
to the following criteria:


(a) Where shared parking can be arranged, the amount
of required parking shall be dictated in accordance
with the provisions of the ULI Shared Parking
Handbook, Second Edition (2005).


(b) Where either on- or off-site shared parking is utilized,
an agreement establishing the rights to use of the
spaces shall be prepared, submitted and, upon
approval by the Township, recorded.


(c) Additional reductions may be considered through the
use of incentives as listed elsewhere in this section.


(10) Every nonresidential use with a floor area of 10,000
square feet or more must provide a loading/unloading
area. Curbside deliveries are permitted so long as they do
not block travel lanes.


(11) All uses shall provide bicycle parking accommodations on
site. See § 22-502, Subsection 3.


(12) All egress from a parking area shall be designed so that
motor vehicles leaving the parking area will enter the
public street traveling in a forward direction.


(13) All surface parking lots must be suitably landscaped to
minimize noise, glare, and other nuisance characteristics
as well as enhance the environment and ecology of the


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:14







site and surrounding area. At a minimum, all surface
parking areas shall be landscaped in accordance with the
provisions of § 27-707, Subsection 14B and C and shall
demonstrate that a minimum of 5% of the internal surface
parking area has been devoted to landscaping area.


(14) Surface parking space dimensions shall be in accordance
with the provisions of § 27-601.


4. Plan Processing and Procedure. The following general
requirements shall apply to any proposal for development within
the TS District:


A. Eligibility. The site proposed for development shall be under
single ownership and shall be developed according to a single
master plan that depicts full build-out of the site with
common authority and responsibility.


(1) The site shall be served by both public sewer and public
water and notice of capacity and intent to serve shall be
provided prior to approval of any final plan.


(2) Any subdivision or land development proposal within the
TS District that involves multiple phases of development
shall follow the procedures outlined below, including each
of the following steps:


(a) Initial conference.


(b) General master plan.


(c) Final plan.


B. Initial Conference. An initial conference shall be scheduled to
discuss the proposed development. The conference shall
include appropriate representative(s) of the developer and
the Township. The goal of the conference is to review the
development proposal and to establish its consistency with
the intent and purpose of the TS District as established by
this section and associated design manual (Chapter 22, Part
5A). The applicant may submit any information they deem
necessary to substantiate conformance with the objectives of
the TS District. This step shall be required regardless of
whether the development will be phased.


C. General Master Plan. A master plan shall be required
whenever a development is proposed to be phased or where
the developer wishes to obtain a preliminary level of approval


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:15







prior to preparation of a final plan. Where such circumstances
do not exist, the project may be submitted as a final plan.
Review of the general master plan shall proceed as outlined
in the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance, Chapter
22, § 22-303, Subsections 3 and 6, including review by the
Township Planning Commission, review by the Centre County
Planning Commission or its designee, and review by the
Board of Supervisors.


(1) The general master plan shall cover the entire tract,
regardless of any intended phasing of the proposed
development. The plan shall show the size and location of
all access locations, parking facilities, public space, and
service areas. Accompanying the master plan shall be
rendered architectural elevation and perspective
drawings providing a clear representation of the
relationship of the proposed development to the site and
its visual impact on adjacent properties and a narrative
clarifying and illustrating the significance of the
applicant's proposed design. In addition, the plan
submission must include:


(a) A completed application for subdivision or land
development approval and payment of all application
and escrow fees.


(b) Written notice of acceptance of the design proposal
by staff as a result of the required initial conference.


(c) Five black- or blue-on-white prints of the general
master plan and 10 reduced 11-inch-by-17-inch
copies of all plan sheets prepared in conformance
with all provisions of this Part 3 and the associated
design guidelines.


(d) Such plans shall be drawn at a legible scale and shall
include a key map showing the location of the site in
relation to adjacent properties and the larger
neighborhood, adjacent zoning, and road system
connections identifying existing and proposed roads
within 500 feet.


(e) All dimensions of the site shall be in feet and
decimals; bearings shall be in degrees, minutes, and
seconds. Lot line descriptions shall read in a
clockwise direction. The survey of the site shall not


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:16







have an error of closure greater than one inch in
10,000 feet.


(f) This plan shall be legible in every detail and shall
identify the proposed project name, the name and
address of the owner of the tract, the developer/
subdivider and the firm that prepared the plan, as
well as the plan date and the date of all plan revisions.


(g) The plan shall show the existing tract boundary with
bearings and distances and identify the total acreage
of the entire existing tract, the zoning district, lot
size, and/or density requirements of the applicable
zoning regulations, and the location of existing lot
line markers along the perimeter of the entire
existing tract as well as the general location of all
existing man-made features including any historic
structures, utilities, adjacent land uses, adjacent
roadways, and other existing public infrastructure
such as sewer and water mains, fire hydrants and
stormwater management facilities.


(h) The presence of existing natural features including,
but not limited to, soil types, unique vegetation, tree
masses, closed depressions, sinkholes, watercourses,
floodplains, steep slopes, archaeological sites, burial
sites, wetlands, solid waste disposal areas and
topography of the site shall be identified on the plan
and any necessary approvals for encroachment in
these areas shall be obtained.


(i) The proposed general lot layout shall be shown on the
plan including the location of the various types of land
uses and approximate location of lot lines; building
setback measurements; the approximate location,
use, height, and bulk of buildings; the proposed units
of occupancy and resultant density calculation; the
approximate location and size of park space or public
plazas; the approximate floor space and general
configuration of all nonresidential uses and the
provisions for access and parking.


(j) The general layout of any proposed streets, alleys,
and sidewalks, including cartway and right-of-way
widths, shall be identified by the plan. A typical street


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:17







cross-section and street center line profile shall be
provided for any proposed street or alleyway.


D. Final Plan.


(1) Review and approval of the final plan shall proceed as
outlined in the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance, Chapter 22, § 22-304, Subsections 1 and 7,
including review by the Township Planning Commission,
review by the Centre County Planning Commission or its
designee, and review by the Board of Supervisors.
Rendered architectural elevation and perspective
drawings providing a clear representation of the
relationship of the proposed development to the site and
its visual impact on adjacent properties and a narrative
clarifying and illustrating the significance of the
applicant's proposed design must also be submitted with
the final plan. Written notice of acceptance of the design
proposal by staff as a result of the required initial
conference will also be required. For projects that are not
phased, this step will follow the initial conference.


(2) In addition to addressing all of the requirements of
Chapter 22, § 22-401 through § 22-403, the final plan
submission shall address the following criteria. In the
event of a conflict between these standards and criteria
and those contained in Chapter 22, the standards and
criteria set forth in this subsection shall control.


(a) TS District development plans shall address all design
requirements set forth in the Township's Subdivision
and Land Development Ordinance (Chapter 22). This
shall include but not be limited to information on the
following, whether or not specific requirements are
established in Chapter 22:


1) Exterior building materials.


2) Special building features and design elements.


3) Signage and graphics.


4) Lighting.


5) Open space areas, including commons, plazas and
pedestrian spaces.


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:18







6) Circulation systems for vehicles and pedestrians,
including linkages with adjoining properties and
transit stops as well as between parking areas
and building entrance(s).


7) Landscape and hardscape design, including
paving materials and plant materials to be used
for buffering, screening, in parking areas and
detention basins and any building related
planting.


8) Refuse facilities providing the appropriate
containers in accordance with the standards of
the Centre Region refuse and recycling program.


5. Stormwater Management Site Plan. The control of erosion and
sediment during construction is subject to approvals of Centre
County Conservation District, and the ongoing management of
stormwater on the tract, shall be accomplished in accordance
with Chapter 26, Part 1, provided that the proposed plan for the
control of erosion and sedimentation may be submitted as a
component of the final land development plan for the associated
phase or stage of construction. Efforts must be made to improve
the current systems on the site and to ensure no harm or damage
is caused to the existing storm system and adjoining properties.


A. The final plan shall reflect and be accompanied by supporting
documentation identifying the ownership and method of
administering and maintaining all permanent stormwater
management facilities in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 26, § 26-703 and § 26-704.


B. The agreement, declaration of easement(s) or other legally
binding documentation shall be submitted to the Township for
review. Upon review, the Township may require the
agreement to contain provisions for requiring the posting
and/or periodic payment of escrow funds by the private entity
to guarantee proper maintenance of the facilities.


§ 27-304 § 27-304


:19







Part 5A
DESIGN STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE


TERRACED STREETSCAPE DISTRICT


§ 22-5A01. Intent. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


§ 22-5A02. Purpose. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


1. The standards included in this Part 5A are intended to establish
guidelines for development activity in the area designated as the
"Terraced Streetscape Zoning District" on the Township's Official
Zoning Map. The district generally extends from the Township
boundary on the east to Blue Course Drive on the west and from
West Campus Drive on the north to Beaver Avenue on the south.


2. These guidelines are intended to aid the Township and property
owners in making sensitive and appropriate decisions with regard
to the built environment and quality of space within the district.
Adherence to these design standards will ensure that the built
environment is attractive and harmonious, with both other parts
of the built environment and the natural environment. It will also
promote vitality and a pedestrian focused area that is
distinguishable in character from the surrounding area.


1. Design guidelines provide a common basis for making decisions
about design elements that affect individual properties as well as
the overall character of the district. The guidelines are not
intended to dictate solutions but rather provide general
information to guide the Township and property owners in
making decisions by providing appropriate choices for a variety of
specific design issues. The guidelines are intended to inform the
community and property owners of the policies and standards
expected by the Township within the established district and to
ensure quality development that enhances the character of the
district.


2. The provisions of this Part 5A also identify several design
approaches that will enhance both the appearance and potential
value of existing properties within the district and help to ensure
that the desired character is established uniformly.


3. This Part 5A will serve as a guide to the Township but will not
necessarily dictate the final outcome. Each project has unique
circumstances that will be considered and result in the Township
applying the standards on a project-by-project basis; ensuring


§ 22-5A01 § 22-5A02


:1







§ 22-5A03. Statutory Authority. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


§ 22-5A04. Goals. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


that the character of individual structures observes the
fundamental standards of quality anticipated within the district.


1. Pursuant to § 708-A of the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning
Code,1 the written and graphic design guidelines included herein
are established to assist applicants in the preparation of land
development plans for projects within the Terraced Streetscape
Zoning District. The design guidelines take effect only when a
project is initiated by a property owner or tenant to alter an
existing structure or to construct a new one. The guidelines do
not require existing properties to initiate changes nor is there any
deadline that forces existing properties into compliance or
otherwise alters the nonconforming rights established in Chapter
27, § 27-803.


2. Property owners, tenants, developers and architects are
encouraged to use these guidelines as a starting point for all
projects within the Terraced Streetscape District. These
standards will assist them by providing a basic framework for
planning of a project and serve as a reference as well as
regulatory manual. The Township will apply these provisions in
the review and approval of development proposals and in the
issuance of permits as a measure of the observance of the goals
and intent of the district.


1. The goal of the application of the design standards set forth
herein is to shape and protect the character and appeal of the
Terraced Streetscape District within the Township. These
provisions are designed to ensure that all proposed new
construction and renovation or expansion activity is consistent
with the standards of quality as well as respect for the built
environment within the district as it relates to appearance, scale
and density.


2. Specific goals include:


A. To promote and improve the perception of the district.


B. To protect the desired appearance of the district.


C. To promote a sense of identity and place.


1. Editor's Note: See 53 P.S. § 10708-A.


§ 22-5A02 § 22-5A04


:2







§ 22-5A05. Context. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


Development projects within an urban or suburban setting are part
of a larger context that requires that architects, developers, and
approval authorities make decisions within the parameters of an
established and diverse physical setting. Each project within the
Terraced Streetscape District will ultimately become part of the
larger neighborhood fabric and environmental context: a sensitivity
to the natural features of land, water and vegetation in the
development project. Buildings within the district should therefore
be planned with the utmost consideration for adjacent structures and
properties while exhibiting compliance with the principal goals of
the district and thoughtfulness for the overall quality of place and
adherence to a sensitivity of natural resources.


§ 22-5A06. Design Principles. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


D. To prioritize and encourage pedestrian activity.


E. To convey a sense of human/pedestrian scale in common
areas, streetscaped areas and public outdoor spaces.


F. To ensure development practices within the district meet the
expected standards.


G. To attract a dynamic and diverse concentration of uses and to
foster economic interaction among the mix of uses in the
district.


H. To ensure sustainability of the development.


1. Successful urban environments accommodate and foster multiple
uses and activities while simultaneously addressing human scale
and safety. These environments result from the cumulative effect
of well-designed individual sites that are mindful of their context.
Enjoyable and pleasant streetscapes, as well as walkable
destinations, combine to give a neighborhood its recognizable
character. To accomplish this, proper zoning and architectural
standards need to be applied.


2. Basic principles of project planning and site design within the
Terraced Streetscape District include:


A. Promote a diversity of uses/occupancies.


B. Create functional pedestrian bikeway and public transit
linkages.


§ 22-5A04 § 22-5A06


:3







§ 22-5A07. Synergy. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


§ 22-5A08. Density. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


The issue of proper density and compactness can be measured in
several ways. Standards of density derived from national guidelines
established by the Congress for New Urbanism will be used as a
basis for proposed projects in the Terraced Streetscape District.
Nonresidential development should achieve a density whereby the
floor area ratio (FAR) for the site is 1.0 or greater. Any residential
development within a vertical mixed-use structure should achieve
a minimum density of 10 units/acre or higher. These recommended
densities, when enhanced by proper attention to articulation and
detail and integrated with the planned streetscape design, will lend


C. Foster a distinctive identity that prioritizes high quality
design and development.


D. Incorporate the landscape and green spaces into civic assets.


E. Foster intensity of development and compactness.


F. Use landscaping, green space and existing vegetation to
address traffic calming, issues of identity, territoriality and
privacy.


G. Ensure the perception of safety by way of proper lighting/
sightline strategies.


1. The district is designed to encourage as much density and mix of
occupancies as is practical. It is the synergy of diverse and
complimentary uses that make a mixed-use neighborhood
experientially rich and attractive. In such mixed-use settings, the
issues of identity, territoriality and privacy need to be addressed
as do connectivity to public common areas, gathering spaces,
public transit, and retail and service operations. Awareness of
these issues and a balanced approach to the definition of space
and the associated access is required.


2. Single-development projects that integrate both commercial and
residential components shall locate the commercial uses on the
ground floor level, so as to encourage direct interface with
pedestrians. Office functions may occupy upper stories above the
first floor. Residential uses in a vertical mixed-use structures,
however, may only occupy upper floors above the ground floor,
and above any commercial uses.


§ 22-5A06 § 22-5A08


:4







themselves to a more urban and vibrant neighborhood along the West
College Avenue corridor.


§ 22-5A09. Streetscape Design Standards. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/
18/2019]


1. The West College Avenue Corridor is intended to be the center
and focal point of the district. The corridor is conducive to density
and mixed-use development and is intended to be accompanied
by streetscape treatment that is pedestrian friendly and
consistent with the following design requirements or any officially
adopted streetscape plan:


A. Sidewalks shall be a minimum of 12 feet in depth from back of
curb to building face along West College Avenue.


(1) Sidewalks shall be scored in patterns that modulate the
scale of the sidewalk and may include a variety of
dimensional sizes including square, rectangular or
diagonal patterns at the applicant's discretion and in
keeping with the intent of the design standards.


(2) All score lines shall utilize a twice-tooled troweled edge
on all pattern joints, including construction and
expansion joints. In the case of stamped or colored
concrete, this requirement may be modified at the
discretion of the Board of Supervisors.


(3) All curbs, sidewalks, handicapped ramps and crosswalks
shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the
latest official version of the Americans with Disabilities
Act.2


(4) All proposed sidewalks, curbs, crosswalks shall be
designed and constructed in accordance with the
provisions and specifications established by the Township
and specified herein or in an officially adopted
streetscape plan.


B. A two-foot-wide minimum paver accent band shall be
installed along the back of the curbline along all sidewalks on
West College Avenue. The pavers shall be standard four
inches by eight inches brick size, red color. Pavers may be
traditional clay brick or pressed concrete. Color and pattern
of the paver field may include various size pavers and colors


2. Editor's Note: See 42 U.S.C.A. § 12101.


§ 22-5A08 § 22-5A09


:5







at the discretion of the applicant, subject to approval by the
Board of Supervisors.


(1) Decorative brick, concrete pavers or pavement
treatments shall be considered as an integrated feature to
properties on gateway corners in the Township, the main
entrance of buildings, public plazas, pedestrian access
areas and public roads as noted.


(2) Street signs, regulatory signs, wayfinding signs, utility
poles, streetlighting, utility appurtenances and traffic
signal poles are to be placed within the paver accent band
unless otherwise required by ordinance or upon review by
the Township Engineer.


C. Four-foot-wide by twenty-foot-long minimum, planter beds
shall be incorporated parallel to the curbline adjacent to West
College Avenue. Construction of these beds to function as
rain gardens, in accordance with Township construction
standards, is encouraged. Measurement shall be from outside
edge to outside edge of planting area.


(1) Planters shall be spaced a minimum of 40 feet on center
for the width of the proposed lot or length of the unit
block where the site is located. The spacing and location
may be adjusted dependent on site conditions, clear sight
triangles and at the discretion of the Township Engineer
and Board of Supervisors.


(2) Planters may intersect the two-foot side accent paver
bans as noted above.


§ 22-5A09 § 22-5A09


:6







(3) Planters shall be curbed with brick or pavers to match
adjacent paver accent band or other materials consistent
with the architecture of the proposed project. In no case
shall the width and height of the raised curb exceed six
inches in either direction. Planter edge may include a
decorative metal fencing garden edge to accent and
highlight the planting area. The fencing may be part of
the raised curb or independent thereof. In no case shall
the fencing exceed 24 inches in height.


(4) Planters shall be backfilled with CU-Structural Soil® or
approved equal for the full length and width of the planter
to a depth of three feet where feasible or otherwise
directed by the Township Engineer.


(5) Planter areas shall be planted with a perennial, semi- or
evergreen ground cover as a year-round base planting.
Planters shall also incorporate seasonal plantings to
provide four season visual interest. The applicant shall
provide a list of proposed seasonal plantings to be
provided and maintained by the property owner and/or
tenant. These may include but are not limited to tulips,
impatiens, petunias, mums and ornamental kale. The use
of ornamental grasses, perennials, and ornamental
shrubs is also encouraged.


(6) The planting plan for the accent planting beds shall be
prepared and sealed by a Pennsylvania registered
landscape architect.


(7) Where feasible, applicants are encouraged to utilize and
incorporate planter areas into the project's overall
stormwater management strategy as bioretention/water
quality filter areas. The use of planter areas as a
stormwater best management practice (BMP) will be
subject to review and approval by the Township Engineer
and must be consistent with the Township's overall


§ 22-5A09 § 22-5A09


:7







stormwater management plan and objectives for
improving water quality and reducing runoff volumes.


D. Pedestrian scale, period-style lighting standards shall be used
along the West College Avenue street edge, immediately
adjacent to the proposed project site. The horizontal spacing
of the light fixtures shall be consistent with meeting required
light levels established by Township ordinance.


(1) Streetlights shall utilize decorative, fluted or tapered
poles with decorative base covers to match the style of
pole.


(2) Poles shall be cast iron, steel or aluminum, painted black.


(3) Poles shall be located within the proposed paver accent
band.


(4) Streetlight lamps shall incorporate night sky friendly,
energy efficient, full cut-off optics. The use of LED
technology is encouraged.


(5) Poles along West College Avenue shall incorporate banner
brackets for upper and lower banner arms, to hang one
banner, perpendicular to the street edge.


(6) Poles along West College Avenue shall include provisions
for two planter arms, one on each side of the pole, parallel
to the street edge.


(7) Poles along West College Avenue shall include provisions
for one exterior rated duplex electrical outlet located
immediately below the point of attachment between
luminaire and pole.


E. To mitigate the negative impacts of heat island effects, a
minimum of one street tree shall be planted in the center of
each four-foot-by-twenty-foot accent planting bed. The
selected species and sizing of tree shall be in accordance with
Chapter 25, Trees. Shrub varieties shall be included in a


§ 22-5A09 § 22-5A09


:8







landscaping and planting plan prepared and sealed by a
Pennsylvania registered landscape architect and approved by
the Township Tree Commission.


F. Each project with frontage on West College Avenue shall
include the provision of site furnishings consistent with the
intended creation of an inviting, safe and enjoyable
pedestrian experience. These furnishings may include
benches, trash and recycling receptacles, bike racks, bus
shelters, and individual freestanding planters.


(1) Site furnishings shall be constructed of
nonbiodegradable, vandal resistant materials such as cast
iron, steel, aluminum, or recycled plastic components.


(2) Site furnishings shall be period style consistent with the
overall character of the area or any officially adopted
Streetscape Plan.


(3) Site furnishings shall be from a coordinated family of
furnishings by the same manufacturer unless otherwise
approved by the Township.


(4) Benches shall be a minimum of six feet in length and shall
incorporate a center armrest.


(5) Trash receptacles shall be a minimum of thirty-two-gallon
capacity and shall utilize the smallest possible
semicovered top opening to prevent the deposition of
large trash bags or household debris.


(6) Recycling receptacles shall be provided and incorporated
consistent with Centre Region refuse and recycling
requirements.


(7) Benches and receptacles shall be grouped together along
the street edge but not within the required accent paver
band. Where feasible, these groupings may occur
between accent planting beds when two or more beds are
included along the frontage of a project.


(8) Bus shelters may be incorporated subject to the review
and approval of CATA. The style of shelter shall be
consistent with the overall site furnishings palette.


2. Streets perpendicular to the West College Avenue Corridor will
also provide for a variety of uses, but at a slightly reduced scale.
The sidewalks and streetscape treatment along these streets will


§ 22-5A09 § 22-5A09


:9







§ 22-5A10. Building Design and Facade Considerations. [Ord.
No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


Issues of character, aesthetic contribution, scale, proportion and
material quality shall all be evenly considered along with the
traditional measures of zoning and code compliance when evaluating
building design. To minimize subjectivity in the consideration of these
elements, the following guidelines shall be considered.


§ 22-5A11. Building Massing and Composition. [Ord. No.
1050, 11/18/2019]


be correspondingly reduced in scale, with fixtures and landscape
features more conducive to a side street location.


1. Consideration toward scale and the transition of building height
from one site to the next must be taken into account. While
abrupt changes in scale between two adjacent properties are
generally discouraged, articulation of the building to address
relevant issues of scale combined with appropriate setbacks and
landscaping can help soften these transitions. Graduated massing
of building heights is preferred and should be accomplished in
accordance with the provisions of the district as specified herein
as well as in Chapter 27, Zoning.


2. Larger infill development that respects massing and articulation
becomes a harmonious part of the block.


§ 22-5A09 § 22-5A11


:10







§ 22-5A12. Articulation of Facades. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/
2019]


3. Structures on West College Avenue are to be located on or near
the street line as to engender a physical presence on the main
thoroughfare and support a more pedestrian-centered focus.
Parking areas in front of buildings are prohibited, as are any
other features that detract from pedestrian access to the front of
the building. Building entrances shall be designed in such a
manner as to be immediately recognizable, accessible and safe.


A. It is the intent of the district to create the greatest practical
commercial density along the West College Avenue corridor.
Commercial occupancies perform best when they are visible
and easily accessible. Storefronts are to be designed to be as
open and transparent as practical in accordance with the
district regulations.


1. Development projects within the Terraced Streetscape District
shall be mindful of the fact that well-articulated building facades
provide visual interest and enhance the experience of the
neighborhood. Whereas large unarticulated building masses can
negate any sense of human scale within the block, large buildings
that are sensible in their composition and reverent to the scale of
pedestrians are generally more successful and appealing.


A. New buildings in the district shall observe some of the basic
parameters of scale and proportion (see examples below). It
is the intent of these regulations to ensure that no single
building appear too diminutive as to defy the basic tenets of
the district which requires that landowners maximize the
volume and development potential of their site.


(1) Single-story building facades are required to convey a
greater sense of height, consistent with the scale of
adjacent or surrounding multistory structures, through
use of a parapet. All structures fronting on West College
Avenue shall conform to the building height regulations of
the district.


(2) All structures shall convey the greatest practical density
and vibrancy by way of articulating multiple occupancy/
tenancy through appropriate ground floor storefront
design. This will enhance the pedestrian experience as
well as improve the massing of larger commercial
structures.


§ 22-5A11 § 22-5A12


:11







B. Streetscapes and building facade design in the district are
required to execute the rhythm created by many individual
facades and storefronts that relate to the scale of the
pedestrian. A building's massing shall contribute positively to
a pedestrian-friendly public realm. Long, unbroken walls are
overwhelming and must be divided into rhythmic blocks
bringing the design of the facade closer to a human scale.


C. Larger buildings are required to subdivide the appearance of
their facades and storefronts, as to make them seem to be
smaller, individual buildings. Articulation by means of
material difference, color difference, and vertical/horizontal
variation in alignment, recesses or projections are required to
accomplish the appearance of individual facades.


(1) The upper floors of multistory buildings are required to
provide a differentiation of color or material to break up
the facade massing of the building exterior.


(2) Storefronts and facade treatment at ground level must be
differentiated every 40 feet or less, to provide proper
articulation at street level.


D. The ground floor of any multistory building is required to be
articulated from the stories above it. The appearance of a
specialized and welcoming storefront, building entrance or
any other pedestrian appropriate treatment is required to
enhance the pedestrian street life generated in the district.


§ 22-5A12 § 22-5A12


:12







E. Where buildings of 55 feet or higher are proposed, in addition
to articulating their ground floor, articulation of their
uppermost floor(s) must occur as well.


F. Facade treatment of multistory buildings should also include
appropriate consideration in the design of the top of the
building. Rooflines for pitched roof structures should be
articulated to subdivide the mass and appearance of the roof
area toward the predominant facade. Strategies include the
introduction of dormers, roofed vents, chimney stacks, or
variation in finished rooflines.


G. Facade treatment for flat roofed buildings shall include
parapets, built-up cornices or both, as appropriate to the
architectural style of the proposed building. Building tops
shall be visually interesting, and compliment the character of
the building, as well as contributing positively to the
character of the district.


§ 22-5A12 § 22-5A12


:13







§ 22-5A13. Storefront Design. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


H. Multistory buildings, due to their size and presence, are
encouraged to be creative in their use of massing, articulation
and design. Developers of multistory buildings shall consider
their appearance from multiple vantage points.


1. Commercial occupancies at ground floor level, especially spaces
intended for retail or restaurant uses, are required to incorporate
standards for successful storefront design. Good storefront
design integrates means of maximizing transparency and
openness with durability and energy efficiency.


A. Storefronts need to be differentiated (every 40 feet,
maximum) from one another to create an attractive and visual
interest for pedestrians. The surface area of storefronts in the
district is required to be 50% (minimum) transparent (glass),
to optimize public viewing. This will enhance the pedestrian
experience.


B. Storefronts shall be constructed with durable finishes
consistent with the expected high traffic/pedestrian
environment. Consideration must also be given to lighting
strategies so that both the storefront and the interior space
behind it are well lit, and easily seen.


C. Avoid excessive visual clutter; especially that produced by too
much interior signage.


D. Outdoor signage shall fit the character and proportion of the
building and enhance the architecture. Signage shall be
clearly visible without dominating the building facade or
obscuring architectural details.


§ 22-5A12 § 22-5A13


:14







§ 22-5A14. Corner Building Sites. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


E. Benches and other moveable objects, such as bike racks or
trash containers, shall be coordinated with the building
entrance so as not to obstruct sidewalk traffic or diminish the
appearance of the facade.


F. Awnings and/or vegetation may be utilized to add interest and
aesthetic quality to the building and the streetscape. Awnings
and canopies must be compatible with the building and
windows in scale, proportion and color.


1. Corner buildings serve as landmarks within the district and, as a
result, special consideration must be given to their design so that
they address the intersection as well as complimenting other,
adjacent buildings in the district.


A. Proposed corner buildings need to address the intersection
they front through the inclusion of accentuating features,
such as towers, turrets, chamfers, canopies or recessed
areaways to highlight their cornermost facades.


(1) Building corners can be accentuated in a variety of ways.
Employing novel geometries while utilizing the same
color palette is a subtle approach while the introduction
of more elaborate elements and accent materials and/or
color results in a more predominant/more recognizable
structure.


(2) A common approach is to differentiate the bay of the
building that is closest to the corner through the use of
offsets, additional height, and differences in roofline,
color or material. This will help to delineate and
symbolically mark the intersection and physically note its
importance.


§ 22-5A13 § 22-5A14


:15







§ 22-5A15. Parking Structures and Incentives. [Ord. No. 1050,
11/18/2019]


(3) The creation of additional public space on the corner can
be achieved through the use of a recessed or chamfered
entrance that broadens the common area and makes the
space more usable. Porticos, colonnades, stoops,
vegetation, and similar features fronting the corner
further enhance the presence of the building and improve
the visual character.


1. Parking structures and elevated parking decks within the district
need to exhibit sensitivity to scale and massing. These structures
also need to relate to pedestrian scale and attempt to integrate
with other structures in the broader environment by way of
articulation and material usage. A key objective shall be to
disguise the structure's function as car storage through the use of
screening elements, spandrel panels or glazing systems in
conjunction with good facade design strategies.


A. Design strategies that include locating stairwells and/or
elevator towers on a corner or public accessway improves the
overall pedestrian interface with these structures while also
improving their massing. These strategies also open the
possibility of improved articulation, fenestration, and use of
materials for facade enhancement. Lighting can also be
employed to further enhance and accent the structure,
providing a visual focal point at night.


(1) Material and/or color usage shall differentiate the ground
and upper floors of the structure to improve the
relationship with pedestrian scale and the streetscape.


(2) Facades shall avoid the appearance of support columns
unless combined with a screening system. Use of
masonry, composite panels or EIFS systems will lend a
sense of permanence and evoke the image of a
conventional building rather than an open deck.


(3) Metal or mesh screening systems can be used to obscure
stored cars. These systems should also employ masonry
or other suitable material so that the resulting facade
does not appear out of character.


§ 22-5A14 § 22-5A15


:16







(4) Glazing or curtain wall systems can also be used to screen
cars and achieve the look of a more conventional building.
Window walls or windows set in a backup wall can be
detailed to create a more uniform and interesting
appearance to the overall structure while concealing its
use for parking.


(5) Installation of green roofs can be used to:


(a) Retain rainwater and, together with plants, return a
portion of this water to the atmosphere through
evaporation and transpiration (evapotranspiration).


(b) Reduce and clean stormwater volume.


(c) Retain and delay runoff to ease stress on stormwater
infrastructure and sewers.


B. Storefronts and leasable commercial space shall be
incorporated into the ground floor plan of parking structures.
The storefronts shall enhance the streetscape and conform to
the design requirements of the Terraced Streetscape zoning.


C. Parking Incentives.


(1) The parking requirements for nonresidential
development, or nonresidential uses within vertical
mixed-use structures as set forth herein, may be reduced
by use of the following:


§ 22-5A15 § 22-5A15


:17







§ 22-5A16. Exterior Materials. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


§ 22-5A17. Color Selection. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


(a) Provide additional landscaping and/or open space
that is 20% greater than that required by this chapter.
Reduce total required parking spaces by 10%.


(b) Provide and maintain at least 10% of the housing
units as age-restricted units. Reduce total required
parking spaces by 15%.


(c) Provide and maintain at least 10% of the housing
units as owner-occupied workforce housing units.
Reduce total required parking spaces by 15%.


(2) The incentives may be mixed or matched, but no incentive
may be used to obtain multiple bonuses. For example, a
green roof may count toward additional impervious on a
lot, or an extra story of structured parking, but not both.


1. Buildings designed with authentic materials in a manner that
evidences craftsmanship and detail lend a sense of authenticity
and permanence to the buildings themselves. Authentic and
permanent materials on building exteriors will provide visual
continuity and discernible character to the zoning district.


A. Authentic materials, such as brick, cast stone, limestone,
concrete block and other conventional masonry products,
should be used. Exterior finish systems and proprietary panel
systems can be employed to the extent that they complement
the material quality of the building and surrounding
structures and are used in combination with more permanent/
natural materials (a synthetic or EIFS clad building with a
masonry base detail, for example).


1. In general, it is recommended that the color palette selected for
the building exterior not include exceptionally bright or overly
colorful schemes. Subtle and complimentary color choices, such


§ 22-5A15 § 22-5A17


:18







§ 22-5A18. Signage. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


§ 22-5A19. Lighting. [Ord. No. 1050, 11/18/2019]


as more naturalistic or muted tones, are suggested. However,
vibrant colors can be used for accent and trim.


A. Painted strips or pronounced patterns on wall surfaces or
large surface areas of brilliant color are distracting and shall
be avoided.


1. It is important that the nature of the signage employed by a
business does not conflict with the character or goals of the
district. Good sign design can both enhance the business and add
a dimension of vibrancy and visual interest.


A. The following recommendations shall be considered:


(1) Signs hung parallel to the business shall not overwhelm
the storefront or architectural detail of the building.


(2) Lighting shall not produce glare and automated signage
shall not be permitted.


(3) Signs should be designed to draw the attention of the
pedestrian rather than motorists within the district.
Projecting signage, hung perpendicular to the building, is
recommended.


(4) Graphics should be clear and legible. Limited text or
company colors/logos should be considered over a heavily
stylized or cluttered and confusing sign face.


1. The lighting of buildings, entryways, building surfaces or
landscape within the district is desirable. Exterior lighting will


§ 22-5A17 § 22-5A19


:19







enliven the district and add a sense of vibrancy as well as
enhancing the safety of the area. The use of energy efficient
luminaires or LED lighting is encouraged.


A. Commercial facades in the district should utilize lighting in a
creative and innovative manner to highlight their business.
However, visually distracting and automated signage or
moving lighting shall not be permitted.


B. Lighting that produces glare or impedes the vision of
motorists or pedestrian traffic is prohibited. Surface mounted
lighting must have fixtures that are aimed directly at the
targeted facade or surface area and away from traffic.


C. The surface up-lighting of a building is allowed; however,
light spillage or glare onto adjacent buildings or properties is
not permitted.


§ 22-5A19 § 22-5A19


:20








 


  


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 


Telephone: 814-238-4651 •  Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 


 
TO:  Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
   
FROM:  Ryan Scanlan, E.I.T., Assistant Township Engineer 
     
THRU:  David J. Modricker, P.E., Public Works Director 
 
DATE:  April 6, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: AWARD OF 2021-C9 MICROSURFACING 
  
Bids were opened publicly via Zoom at 2:00 pm on Tuesday, March 9, 2021 and read aloud for Contract 


2021-C9 ‘Microsurfacing’ for select streets in Ferguson and Harris Townships. This is a co-operative 


contract that is administered by Ferguson Township. 


 


The bid opening was attended by Tyler Karsteatter of Ameron Construction, Summer Krape, Ron Seybert 


and Ryan Scanlan of Ferguson Township. The bid was advertised in the Centre Daily Times on Tuesday 


February 23, 2021. 


 


One bid was received on the contract, as follows: 


 


  Total Project  Ferguson Township’s Share 


Asphalt Paving Systems, Inc. $435,839.52  $419,346.72 


  


In an effort to solicit additional bidders, the advertisement was sent to ten (10) contractors who are 


qualified to perform this work. The bid that was received is consistent with prior year costs as well as 


costs tabulated on PennDOT’s system for the same work. 


 


The engineer’s estimate for this contract is $434,830.63 (intown and west end roads). Ferguson 


Township’s share of the contract amount is $419,346.72. The current 2021 Budget includes $434,000 for 


microsurfacing. Attached is the bid tabulation with unit prices for each pay item and the breakdown of 


municipal shares. 


 


I recommend the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2021-C9, ‘Microsurfacing’; in the amount of 


$435,839.52 to Asphalt Paving Systems, Inc. 


 
 
Attachments: 2021-C9 Bid Tabulation and Municipal Cost Shares 
 
 
Copy: D. Pribulka (via email) 
 D. Modricker (via email) 


R. Seybert (via email) 
2021-C9 Contract 







FERGUSON TOWNSHIP


Project: 2021-C9 Microsurfacing


Bid Tabulation


QTY


ITEM


No.


UNIT


DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL
UNIT 


PRICE
TOTAL QTY TOTAL QTY TOTAL


33,727


4483


3214


SY


POLYMER-MODIFIED EMULSIFIED ASPHALT PAVING 


SYSTEM (MICRO SURFACING), DOUBLE APPLICATION, 


TYPE A, SRL M (MODIFIED)


4.31$              145,362.41$     4.32$        145,699.68$     29,909 129,206.88$   3,818 16,492.80$     


67,162


4483


3215


SY


POLYMER-MODIFIED EMULSIFIED ASPHALT PAVING 


SYSTEM (MICRO SURFACING), DOUBLE APPLICATION, 


TYPE A, SRL L (MODIFIED)


4.31$              289,468.22$     4.32$        290,139.84$     67,162 290,139.84$   0 -$                


TOTAL 434,830.63$                               


Engineers Estimate


Muncipal Share Distribution


Harris TwpFerguson Twp


419,346.72$                      16,492.80$                     


Asphalt Paving Systems


435,839.52$                          








 


  


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 


Telephone: 814-238-4651 •  Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 


 
TO:  David Pribulka, Township Manager 


Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM: David Modricker P.E., Public Works Director 


  
 
 


DATE:  April 13, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: AWARD OF FUEL BID FOR 2021 
 
Bids were opened publicly via ZOOM  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83202414245?pwd=bnZtZkJkTXorTUpXcGhEdjFWVV
lFZz09 for the fuel contract at 1:30pm on Tuesday, April 13, 2021 and read 
aloud. David Modricker and Summer Brown of Ferguson Township were present. 
The fuel bid was advertised in the Centre Daily Times and sent out to potential 
bidders. 
 
Two fuel bids were received and are summarized as follows:  
 
Nittany Oil Co.     $59,239.50 
JJ Powell, Inc.     $59,587.50 
 
Bids are within the current budget amount of $91,330.00 (FTPW gasoline 
$16,170 + FTPW diesel $31,450 + FTPD gasoline $43,710). The actual cost will 
depend on our consumption and the escalating wholesale price index. I 
recommend that the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2021-C7a, Fuel Bid, to  
Nittany Oil Co. in the amount of $59,239.50. 
 
 
 
File: Contract  2021-C7a Fuel 



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83202414245?pwd=bnZtZkJkTXorTUpXcGhEdjFWVVlFZz09

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83202414245?pwd=bnZtZkJkTXorTUpXcGhEdjFWVVlFZz09






 


  


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 


Telephone: 814-238-4651 •  Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 


 
TO:   David Pribulka, Township Manager 


Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
FROM:  David Modricker P.E., Public Works Director 


  
 
    


DATE:  April 13, 2021 
SUBJECT: AWARD OF MATERIALS BID FOR 2021 – “Aggregate and Asphalt” 
 
Bids were opened publicly for the aggregate and asphalt contract at 1:00pm on Tuesday, April 
13, 2021 via ZOOM  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89314064821?pwd=MHVUeUtvVmZ3UGdYbVErTHB0cVYrQT09 
and read aloud. David Modricker and Summer Brown of Ferguson Township were present.  
The contract was advertised in the Centre Daily Times and notice was provided to potential 
bidders.  
 
One bid was received for aggregate as summarized on the attached bid tabulation. Aggregate 
is bid delivered to the Township at 3147 Research Drive. The sole bidder was Glenn O. 
Hawbaker, Inc. 
 
Two bids were received for asphalt materials as summarized on the attached bid tabulation. 
Asphalt material is bid FOB (freight on board), meaning our trucks drive to the asphalt plant 
and pick it up. Bidders were Glenn O. Hawbaker, Inc. and HRI, Inc. 
 
Based on my review, I recommend that the Board of Supervisors award items 1, 2, 3, and 4 
(aggregate) to Glenn O. Hawbaker, Inc. in the amount of $17,800.00 and items 5, 6, 7, and 8 
(asphalt) to HRI in the amount of $64,800.00 all under Contract 2021-C7c, Aggregate and 
Asphalt. 
 
The budget for this year’s road materials from fund 35.438.245 is $25,000. At the time of 
bidding, it was expected that FTPW would pave the laydown yard, a section of Harold Drive, 
and base repair a section of Gatesburg Road, and the stone and pavement materials would be 
charged to fund 32 TIF. While it is not expected that the latter work will be performed this year, 
the bids are within budget. 
 
 
 
File: Contract 2021-C7c aggregate and asphalt 



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89314064821?pwd=MHVUeUtvVmZ3UGdYbVErTHB0cVYrQT09





MS-963


SCHEDULE OF PRICES - MATERIALS


GOH aggregate


1 2 3* 4**


ITEM APPROX. UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL


NO. QUANTITY UNIT DESCRIPTION DELIVERED FOB PLANT FOB PLANT


TO TWP.


1 100 TON 2B Stone $15.00 $1,500.00


2 100 TON Type AS2, Anti - Skid $17.00 $1,700.00


3 1000 TON 2A Stone $13.00 $13,000.00


4 100 TON R-4 Rock $16.00 $1,600.00


5 100 TON 25mm Base Course $49.35 $4,935.00 $48.75 $4,875.00


PG64-22, <0.3 mESALS


6 800 TON 25mm Base Course $47.35 $37,880.00 $48.75 $39,000.00


PG64-22, 0.3 -3 mESALS


7 100 TON 25mm Base Course $51.85 $5,185.00 $48.75 $4,875.00


PG64-22, 10-30 mESALS


8 300 TON 9.5mm Wearing, SRL L $56.00 $16,800.00 $59.00 $17,700.00


PG64-22, <0.3 mESALS


$17,800.00 $64,800.00 $66,450.00


HRI bituminous, miles to 


plant = 18, 24 min drive


Contract 2021-C7c Attachment 1 Bid Results for Asphalt and Aggregate Contract 2019-C7c


GOH bituminous, miles to 


plant = 16, 24 min drive








CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3


State College, PA 16801
Phone: (814) 231-3077 Fax: (814) 231-3083 Website: www.crcog.net


HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Video Conference 


April 7, 2021 
12:15 PM 


 
 


 
GENERAL MEETING INFORMATION 


 
 


STEP #1:  Click HERE to RSVP and REGISTER for the meeting via ZOOM 
        After you RSVP, a link to register via Zoom will be shown. Click to register. 
        Once registered, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about  
        joining the meeting. 
 
STEP #2:  Click HERE to locate the AGENDA and ATTACHMENTS 
        Should you desire to annotate any attachments you must download them first. 


 
To attend this meeting by phone: +1 929 205 6099  |  Meeting ID: 865 8512 9786 


 
Meeting Contact: Rebecca Petitt (rpetitt@crcog.net, 814-272-1447) 


 
This meeting will be recorded, and electronic files of the meeting will be made available on 
the COG website upon its conclusion. 


 
We ask that non-voting participants remain muted with their video turned off unless 
recognized or are actively speaking. To reduce audio interference, please remain off 
speakerphone during the meeting.  


 
VOTING PROCEDURES: Members will provide their vote by voice. Clarification will be 
sought by the Chair if the vote is unclear. Members opposed to a motion should vote 
“No”. For additional information on COG Voting Procedures, please click HERE. 


 
PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES: Members of the public may comment on any items 
not already on the agenda (five minutes per person). Comments relating to specific items 
on the agenda should be deferred until that point in the meeting. For additional 
information on COG public meeting guidelines, please click HERE. 
 
To access agendas and minutes of previously held meetings, and to learn more about the 
COG Human Resources Committee on our website, please click HERE. 







Human Resources Committee Agenda 
April 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 6 


 
 


CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3


State College, PA  16801
Phone:  (814) 231- -


HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Video Conference 


Wednesday, April 7, 2021 
12:15 PM 


AGENDA


1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mr. Strouse will convene the meeting. Ms. Petitt will review the meeting procedures. 


 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 


 
Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda 
(five minutes per person time limit please). Comments relating to specific items on the 
agenda should be deferred until that point in the meeting. Submitted comments will be 
read into the record by the Recording Secretary at the appropriate time in the meeting. 
 


3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 


A copy of the minutes from the March 3, 2021 Human Resources Committee meeting is 
enclosed for approval. 
 


4. JOB DESCRIPTION – ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – Presented by Becca 
Petitt  
 
As discussed at the March 3, 2021, HR Committee meeting, the Centre Region Code 
Administration (CRCA) has a vacancy for the position of Administrative Services Manager 
(previously Code Services Manager).  The position was newly created in 2019 and only one 


During the COVID-19 health emergency, to continue business operations of the COG and 
ensure the safety of municipal officials and staff, and to adhere to health emergency 
recommendations while remaining in compliance with Pennsylvania’s guidelines for public 
meetings, the Human Resources Committee meeting will be held via video conference.  
Written public comment or requests to speak to the Human Resources Committee for items 
not on the agenda, and requests to comment to specific agenda items below may be submitted 
in advance by emailing rpetitt@crcog.net  







Human Resources Committee Agenda 
April 7, 2021 
Page 3 of 6 


person has filled the role.  Staff took the opportunity to review the position’s job 
description, title, and salary range for accuracy.  The salary range remained the same, 
however, in order to help attract qualified applicants to the position, the title was changed 
to Administrative Services Manager.  Aside from the title change, other changes to the job 
description include: 


Strong communication and interpersonal skills 
Personnel management experience with the ability to mentor, lead, and inspire staff 
Ability to facilitate conflict resolution 
Coordinate the operations and functions of the regional code software and act as 
the IT support liaison for the agency 
Assist the Agency Director to develop the annual program plan, detailed and 
summary budget documents; assist in proactively monitoring the budget status 
throughout the year 
Building Code Official (BCO) Certification 


Mr. Eric Norenberg verbally reviewed the proposed changes with the HR Committee at its 
March meeting.  Following the March meeting, the revised draft job description was shared 
with the HR Committee via email for comment prior to advertising.  This helped COG 
move forward with the advertisement of the position as quickly as possible.  As agreed, 
enclosed is the revised job description for the HR Committee’s official review and approval.  
Also enclosed is the 2021 COG Salary Schedule which reflects the change in title to 
Administrative Services Manager.  A suggested motion for the Committee is as follows: 
 


“That the COG Human Resources Committee approve the job description for 
the Administrative Services Manager, dated March 9, 2021, and that the change 
in title be also be reflected accordingly on the 2021 COG Salary Schedule, dated 
April 7, 2021.” 


 
All municipalities should vote on this motion. 
 


5. 2022 COG WAGE SURVEY – Presented by Becca Petitt and Eric Norenberg 
 
This is a discussion agenda item. 
 
In January of 2020, a COG-wide wage survey was proposed as a potential HR work task for 
2021.  Understandably, when the pandemic hit in March of 2020, there was not an 
appetite for the expense of the study in the 2021 budget.  Further, a COG-wide strategic 
plan was proposed for 2021 and it was determined that a wage survey may be better suited 
to follow the results of the strategic plan.  Again, in January of 2021, a potential HR work 
task was for the Committee to review the need and develop a scope of work for a COG 
wage study.  As we look to budget for 2022, staff strongly recommend moving forward with 
a wage study in 2022 for multiple reasons, including: 


 
The last COG-wide wage study was completed over 15 years ago in 2005, with a partial 
conducted in 2014, and CRCA only in 2017.   







Human Resources Committee Agenda 
April 7, 2021 
Page 4 of 6 


A living wage 
o Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) salaried exemption increase 


Effective January 1, 2020, employees who do not earn at least $35,568 a 
year ($684 a week) have to be paid overtime, even if they’re classified as 
a manager or professional 


o Continued discussions of minimum wage increase(s) 
Develop methods for staff recruitment, retention, and succession planning 


o At times it has been very difficult for COG to attract new talent 
o Many long-time employees are nearing retirement, including Agency Directors 


Standardize a part-time pay schedule 
o Currently the part-time pay schedules are independently set by each agency 


Staff morale 
o Over time new positions have been placed in the schedule, creating room for 


perceived or unintentional inequities 
o Many employees find it hard to meet mid-point or grow within the scale 
o Other employees reached the top of their scale and are stagnant 


 
The HR Committee is asked to discuss building support for a wage study to be considered 
throughout the 2022 budget process.  The Committee is also asked to help in developing a 
scope of work for the project.  For example: 
 


Should we hire a consultant to perform the work? 
What communities should we survey? 


o We live in Central PA, however, we should consider the cost of living in our 
area, as well as the top-notch services provided and the talent we wish to attract 
that may require drawing candidate pools from a wider area 


o Are there classifications that should be benchmarked against private, education 
or non-profit sector positions? 


Should we review all of COG’s job descriptions  
o Many haven’t been officially reviewed since wage study in 2005 
o Current format is very lengthy 
o We may wish to consider creating job families to ease wage benchmarking in the 


future 
o Suggestions have been made to consider classifications for remote work, as well 


as to add language about sustainability, values, etc. 
Should the wage study incorporate all part-time positions? 


o Currently the part-time pay schedules are independently set by each agency 
Should the study include research about staff recruitment, retention, and succession 
planning? 


o At times it has been very difficult for COG to attract new talent 
 
If for some reason, the wage study does not stay on track through the 2022 budget 
development, at a minimum, the Committee should consider review of the COG Agency 
Directors positions (job descriptions and salaries) following the substantial increase in the 
salary range for the Executive Director position and to prepare as COG has several Agency 
Directors nearing retirement.   







Human Resources Committee Agenda 
April 7, 2021 
Page 5 of 6 


 
The Committee’s overall discussion and input will be valuable to COG staff as they 
prepare for the upcoming 2022 budget season. 
 
 


6. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
A. Matter of Record – On March 18th and 23rd in lieu of the annual supervisory 


training, Ms. Petitt coordinated an all staff virtual workshop.  The workshops were 
led by Ms. Jennifer Handke from Consulting With A Purpose.  The three-hour 
workshops titled Communication That Connects focused on team building, 
understanding the different styles of communication, and successfully navigating 
change.  During polls conducted at the end of each workshop, COG staff expressed 
an interest in additional professional development opportunities in the form of 
lunch and learn sessions.  Ms. Handke will join the COG Executive Director, HR 
Officer, and Agency Directors on April 7th for a virtual debrief session and to 
discuss potential lunch and learn topics and next steps. 


B. Matter of Record – The Executive Committee authorized another extension of the 
COVID-19 Emergency Leave through April 30, 2021.  Staff continue to unravel 
federal regulations associated with the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).  If a 
further update is available, it will be presented at the meeting. 


C. Matter of Record – The standardization of the COG employment application 
remains a work in progress. Currently, we are working with Schlow IT staff to help 
us develop the application in an on-line format. 


D. Matter of Record – The Work From Home policy was presented to the General 
Forum on Monday, March 22, 2021.  The policy was adopted by the General 
Forum contingent upon further guidance from COG’s labor attorney regarding 
potential OSHA (Occupational Safety & Health Administration) liabilities.  


It is important to note that the entire home is not considered the workspace; only 
the designated workspace within the home.  We also learned that while OSHA does 
have good standards to follow, they do not have jurisdiction over municipal 
entities/local governments.  Therefore, injuries that occur during work from home 
scenarios are a Workers Compensation matter for us, more than an OSHA 
concern.  COG’s labor attorney feels the Work From Home policy, agreement, and 
safety checklist are best business practice and sufficient with regards to safety and 
reporting any injuries that may occur while working from home.    


E. Matter of Record - The Centre Region Parks and Recreation Agency Staffing Study 
grant of $10,000 has been awarded by the PA Department of Conservation and 
Natural Resources.  This grant requires a $1,000 match which was in place within 
the 2021 budget.  Once we have the grant contract in place, we will be able to move 
forward with contracting with Ms. Sue Landes, Recreation Parks Solutions, request 
grant funds, and begin the study.  







Human Resources Committee Agenda 
April 7, 2021 
Page 6 of 6 


F. Matter of Record - The following represents a list of vacancies of COG full-time 
and part-time, year-round positions: 


a. Code – Code Division Manager – The position is currently being advertised 
publicly as open until filled.  First round interviews expected to be held in the first 
week of April. 


b. Code – Administrative Services Manager – The position is currently being 
advertised publicly as open until filled.  First round of applications will be reviewed 
in April and top applicants will be invited to participate in an interview. 


c. Parks – Parks Caretaker I (2 positions) – Seasonal employee, Mr. Storm Smith has 
accepted offer of full-time employment and started on March 1, 2021.  Mr. Mason 
Bock has accepted an offer of full-time employment, with a May 2021 start date. 


d. Schlow – Head of Patron Services – The position was advertised internally only, 
with interviews being held the last week in March.  Candidates will also be giving a 
presentation to Schlow’s management team during the first week of April as a 
second step in the interview process. 


7. CALENDAR 
 
A calendar with upcoming COG committee, General Forum, and municipal meetings can 
be found by clicking the following link: COG and Municipal Meeting Overlay Calendar 
 


8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
ENCLOSURES 
 


Item #       Description 
03  Human Resources Committee Meeting Minutes ~March 3, 2021 
04  Job Description Administrative Services Manager 
04  2021 COG Salary Schedule 








CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3 


State College, PA 16801 
Phone: (814) 231-3077 Fax: (814) 231-3083 Website: www.crcog.net 


 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 


Video Conference 
April 8, 2021 


8:30 AM 
 
 


 
GENERAL MEETING INFORMATION 


 
 


STEP #1:  Click HERE to RSVP and REGISTER for the meeting via ZOOM 
        After you RSVP, a link to register via Zoom will be shown. Click to register. 
        Once registered, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about  
        joining the meeting. 
 
STEP #2:  Click HERE to locate the AGENDA and ATTACHMENTS 
        Should you desire to annotate any attachments you must download them first. 


 
To attend this meeting by phone: +1 929 205 6099  |  Meeting ID: 859 0551 8785 


 
Meeting Contact: Cary Asendorf (casendorf@crcog.net, 814-231-3077) 


 
 This meeting will be recorded, and electronic files of the meeting will be made available on 


the COG website upon its conclusion. 
 


 We ask that non-voting participants remain muted with their video turned off unless 
recognized or are actively speaking. To reduce audio interference, please remain off 
speakerphone during the meeting.  


 
 VOTING PROCEDURES: Members will provide their vote by voice. Clarification will be 


sought by the Chair if the vote is unclear. Members opposed to a motion should vote 
“No”. For additional information on COG Voting Procedures, please click HERE. 


 
 PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES: Members of the public may comment on any items 


not already on the agenda (five minutes per person). Comments relating to specific items 
on the agenda should be deferred until that point in the meeting. For additional 
information on COG public meeting guidelines, please click HERE. 
 


 To access agendas and minutes of previously held meetings, and to learn more about the 
COG Executive Committee on our website, please click HERE. 







Finance Committee Agenda 
April 8, 2021 
Page 2 of 7 


 
 


CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3 


State College, PA 16801 
Phone: (814) 231-3077 Fax: (814) 231-3083 Website: www.crcog.net 


 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 


Video Conference 
April 8, 2021 


8:30 AM 
 


 
During the COVID-19 health emergency, to continue business operations of the 
COG and ensure the safety of municipal officials and staff, and to adhere to health 
emergency recommendations while remaining in compliance with Pennsylvania’s 
guidelines for public meetings, this Finance Committee meeting will be held via 
video conference. Written public comment or requests to speak to the Finance 
Committee for items not on the agenda, and requests to comment to specific agenda 
items listed below, may be submitted in advance by emailing casendorf@crcog.net. 
 


AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 


 


Mr. Myers will convene the meeting. Mr. Asendorf perform a roll call of members. 
 


2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 


Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda 
(five minute per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the 
agenda should be deferred until that point in the meeting. 
 


3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (Action) 
 


A copy of the minutes from the March 11, 2021 Finance Committee meetings are enclosed 
for approval. 


 
4.       UPDATE REGARDING CONCORD PUBLIC FINANCIAL ADVISORS               


      (DISCUSSION) (time estimate – 5-10 minutes) 
 


The Committee should receive a report on the requests for proposal (RFP) for bank loans and a 
timeline for the borrowing to occur. 
 
At the March General Forum meeting the General Forum authorized the retention of Mr. 
Chris Gibbons of Concord Public Financial Advisors to complete a borrowing that 
includes multiple options including Option 1A, Option 1B, and Option 4. 







Finance Committee Agenda 
April 8, 2021 
Page 3 of 7 


 
The enclosed document outlines the three options and the RFP will be shared with the 
Committee at the meeting.  Also, a timeline is enclosed to outline of the future steps 
associated with the borrowing. 
 
The Committee should receive this update and ask any questions they may have about the 
RFP, next steps, and the timeline. 
 


5. REVISION TO THE COG DETAILED BUDGET DOCUMENT (Discussion) (time 
estimate 15-20 minutes) 
 
The Committee should review the enclosed summary section of the detailed budget and begin 
discussing how the summary information in the detailed budget is desired to be presented.  This will be 
on ongoing discussion covering multiple meetings. 
 
Enclosed is the summary section of the 2021 detailed budget and an initial draft section of 
the proposed revised summary section of the detailed budget developed and reviewed by 
Staff.  The Committee received this at its March meeting as well and deferred the 
discussion on the updated draft, which has taken into account comments received in 
previous budget meetings, until its April meeting.  
 
The previously identified changes to the document include: 
 


 Clarification around the utilization of “Schedule B”s 
 Elimination of pages containing redundant information 
 Introduction of COG-wide Revenue Summary Information by Category 
 Introduction of COG-wide Expenditure Summary Information by Category 


 
The goal of this information is to provide more focused summary information to the 
elected officials for both revenues and expenditures based on the information contained in 
the individual detailed budget sections. 
 
The Finance Committee should review the proposed change to the summary section of the 
detailed budget document and provide comments on the appropriateness, transparency, 
and functionality of the summary information, and, if they deem the changes to be worthy 
of consideration, also provide suggestions to staff as to how to improve it beyond the 
proposed format.  


 
6. COG FORMULA CALCULATIONS (Discussion) (time estimate 15 minutes) 


 
The Committee should review the enclosed summary of COG formulas, their calculation 
methodology, and decide if there are any specific formulas that need to be brought back for further 
discussion and analysis at its May meeting. 
At the request of the Finance Committee (Work Task #16) COG staff has compiled a 
listing of the various COG Formulas and their calculation methodology.  The Finance 
Committee should review these calculations and determine if they wish to discuss any of 







Finance Committee Agenda 
April 8, 2021 
Page 4 of 7 


the calculations in greater detail.  The discussion at this meeting should encompass a 
request to bring back more information at the May meeting, suggestions for alternate 
formulas to investigate for the May meeting, and a compilation of the pros/cons of the 
current/alternate formulas. 
 
If there is a desire to investigate the transition between formulas prior practice dictates this 
should be a recommendation to and subsequently approved by the General Forum. At this 
point in time Staff feels it to be premature to make such a recommendation and believes 
that discussion should occur at the May Finance Committee meeting to allow the 
Committee members additional time to assess the suggested/desired changes and allow 
staff time to perform additional analysis and historical research associated with how the 
currently used formula(s) were agreed upon and calculate the impacts of any proposed 
changes. 


 
7. FINANCIAL UPDATE (Informational) (time estimate 10 minutes) 


 
This is an informational agenda item. The Committee should receive an update from COG staff and 
ask questions they deem appropriate. 
 
Since the May 2020 meeting COG staff has continued to monitor its financial condition 
on a monthly basis.  In addition to the feared decreases in municipal income, some of the 
programmatic functions at COG have been impacted as well.  Since the onset of the 
pandemic staff has taken selected actions related to hiring freezes, furloughs, and 
postponement of capital expenses.   
 
To track these variations and their impact on the 2021 operating budgets, COG staff 
analyzed the January through March monthly reports noting any significant differences.  In 
addition, COG staff will begin tracking the changes in the monthly analyses and assessed 
the continuing impact of COVID-19 shut down on the assumptions in the 2021 COG 
operating budgets as the year progresses. 


 
The Committee should review the analysis presented by Mr. Asendorf and ask questions 
they deem pertinent.  COG staff intends to continue rolling this analysis forward on a 
monthly basis to identify variations from the budget and trend them appropriately. 
 


8. FACILITIES COMMITTEE (Informational) (time estimate 5 minutes) 
 


This is an informational agenda item. The Committee should receive the update from Ms. Hartle and 
ask questions they deem appropriate. 


 


Ms. Patti Hartle will provide an update the Facilities Committee’s April meeting.   
 
 


9. MONTHLY REPORTS (Action) 
 


This is an action agenda item. The Committee should review and approve the voucher report. 
 







Finance Committee Agenda 
April 8, 2021 
Page 5 of 7 


Copies of the March 2021 voucher report are enclosed with this agenda. To proceed, the 
Committee should consider the following motion: 


“That the Finance Committee approves the March 2021 voucher report for the 
Centre Region COG.”  


Copies of the March 2021 COG financial report (electronically, only) will be distributed 
with the meeting reminder next Wednesday.   


If the Committee has any questions about the items in the voucher report, please let 
Finance Director Joe Viglione (jviglione@crcog.net or 231-3062) know as soon as possible 
so that the information can be researched prior to the next Committee meeting. 


10. OTHER BUSINESS 
 


A. Matter of Record – The 2020 audit on site fieldwork for the Centre Region COG, 
Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority, Schlow Library, and the Library 
Federation has completed. 


B. Matter of Record – The following is an update of the status of planning and 
evaluation studies currently underway at the COG. 


 Planning Activity Status 
1 IT Study The RFP was released in mid-March.  Responses are due 


by April 23.  The RFP was advertised on the COG 
website and twice in the Centre Daily Times.  Notices 
were also sent to area IT consulting firms identified by 
our intern last fall and to COSTARS IT consulting 
vendors on the PA Department of General Services 
approved list. 


2 COG Strategic 
Plan 


Last month, elected officials were asked for their input 
on the COG Mission and Vision statements.  Following 
refinement, the statements and surveying of COG staff, 
the next step will be to engage elected officials during the 
April General Forum meeting for feedback, which will 
help us move towards final mission and vision 
statements as well as final values for the COG strategic 
plan.  Professional assistance is being provide by Penn 
State University’s Office of Planning, Assessment and 
Institutional Research. 


3 Code Software 
Study 


The committee has met with TRAISR for a virtual site 
visit and is in the process of scheduling virtual site visits 
for OpenGov.  We anticipate completing these in the 
next two weeks and rendering a decision by the end of 
the month.  


4 COG Facilities 
Evaluation 


No significant update beyond the Facilities Committee 
report. 







Finance Committee Agenda 
April 8, 2021 
Page 6 of 7 


5 Solar Power 
Purchase 
Agreement 
(SPPA) Working 
Group 


The April and May meetings were combined and moved 
to May 12th. Currently the intention is for the Working 
Group to approve the release of the draft RFP for energy 
consulting services at that meeting. 


6 Fleet 
Management 
Plan/COG 
Building Parking 
Lot Study 


There is agreement among COG staff and the elected 
officials that this should be a priority work objective for 
2021 and has been included on the Finance 
Committee’s Priority Work Task List. Staff is soliciting 
examples of fleet management plans.  If any Committee 
members have such plans in your municipality or 
workplace that would be good examples, we would 
appreciate a copy. 


7 Evaluation of 
Boardwalk at 
Millbrook Marsh 
Nature Center 


The Feasibility Study Working Group participated in 
additional Q & A at the March 10 meeting to ensure 
that all edits and comments will be considered for the 
final draft of the Feasibility Study (Part I). LAN 
Associates will spend the second half of March making 
final edits and adjustments to the report; it is hoped that 
a final draft report will be ready for distribution to 
DCNR, the Facilities Committee, the CRPR Authority, 
and possibly other groups during the month of 
April/May. Based on feedback from all reviews, LAN will 
make final edits and formally submit the 70% Boardwalk 
Feasibility Study in June/July.  The Working Group also 
asked LAN Associates for a proposal for the Part II 
Feasibility Study which would include any additional site 
testing necessary to complete the report, additional work 
on the permitting related to the project, grant funding 
opportunities, and of course, finish the design drawings, 
once an option is chosen.  The Agency staff met with 
DCNR in late February to discuss grant opportunities for 
the Part II Study. Unfortunately, because we are not 
ready to move into development, DCNR cannot provide 
any additional funding for completing the study/design 
documents.  The Agency staff will be reviewing funds 
available through MMNC’s Capital Budget to see what is 
available for supplementing the $50,000 in place at this 
time; there were several cost-savings projects where saved 
funds could be applied toward this study.   


8 Whitehall Road 
Regional Park 


The Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority held 
a Special Meeting on Thursday, March 25 to make 
decisions on bids for Whitehall Road Regional Park.  All 
bids were rejected except Bid No. 04 – Fencing and Bid 
No. 05 – Playground Equipment Installation.  Planning 
work is underway to sequence the development of Phase 







Finance Committee Agenda 
April 8, 2021 
Page 7 of 7 


I in order to try to meet the current budget and to 
include restrooms.  To facilitate easy access to 
documents, resources and current information about the 
WRRP project, staff is developing a special website.  The 
link and other details will be shared when the site goes 
live. 


 


11. ADJOURNMENT 







